VERITAS
LIBERTAS

STATE COLLEGE OF FLORIDA..
MANATEE-SARASOTA

DISTRICT BOARD OF TRUSTEES

December 9, 2025




SCF Mission:

State College of Florida, Manatee-Sarasota, guided by measurable standards of institutional
excellence, provides engaging and accessible learning environments that result in student
success and community prosperity.

SCF Vision:

State College of Florida, Manatee-Sarasota is the region's first choice for innovative,
responsive, quality education, workforce training and community partnership.

SCF Values:

Integrity. We have a tradition of delivering our promises responsibly and transparently.
Collaboration. SCF is boldly engaging our partners to achieve the dynamic future we envision.
Innovation. We define best practices and create opportunity with forethought.

Inclusivity. SCF is an open access institution where all are welcomed and supported as part of
the SCF college community.



AGENDA

The District Board of Trustees

State College of Florida, Manatee - Sarasota

Regular Meeting
SCF Bradenton - Board Room
December9, 2025 5:30pm

1. Meeting Call to Order - Mr. Goodson

2. Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance - Dr. Hale

3. Public Comment - Mr. Goodson

4. President’s Report - President Gregory

5. Mission Moment - Fleet Force CDL - Tra Williams & Terri Clark
6. CFO Report - JenniferPrice

7. Approval of Non-Financial Consent Agenda Items (“Consent Agenda A”)

Exhibit A: Minutes of October 28, 2025 BOT Meeting - Page 5

Exhibit B: Amended Fall 2025 Lifelong Learning & Workforce Development Schedule - Page 8

Exhibit C: CDR - Curriculum Revisions Dec. 2025 - Page 12

Exhibit D: HR Personnel Actions Monthly Report October 2025 - Page 14

Exhibit E: SCFCS Bradenton, Annual Audit, Year Ending June 30, 2025 - Page 15

Exhibit F: SCFCS Venice, Annual Audit, Year Ending June 30, 2025 - Page 54

Exhibit G: SCF/SCFCS 2026-2027 Annual Articulation Agreement - Page 92

8. Approval of Financial Consent Agenda Items (“Consent Agenda B”)

Exhibit H: Monthly Financial Report - Page 104

Exhibit I: Budget Amendment FY 2025-26 September 2025 #8-10 Page 115

Exhibit J: Acceptance of Gifts and Grants September 2025 - Page 119

Exhibit K: Write-Offs - Page 120

Exhibit L: Property Disposals - Page 123

9. Facilities Project List (Informational Only) - Chris Wellman
Exhibit M: Project List - Page 126

10. Facilities
Construction Projects & Updates — Chris Wellman
Exhibit N: Building 26 Roof Replacement - Page 127

11. Public Notice, Public Hearing and Final Action for Revised Rule - Board Chair
Synopsis of Pending Rule Revisions for Final Action - Mr. Prouty
Exhibit O: Responsibility and Authority of the President No. 6HX14-1.07 - Page 128


https://6HX14-1.07

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

Old Business

New Business
o SCF Board Self Evaluation Recap - Mark Goodson

SCF Foundation - Cassandra Holmes

Board Comments

Board Adjournment



Exhibit A

MINUTES
THE DISTRICT BOARD OF TRUSTEES -- STATE COLLEGE OF FLORIDA, MANATEE — SARASOTA
REGULAR MEETING

Date: October 28, 2025 5:30 p.m. Location: SCF Venice

Proceedings:
The District Board of Trustees of State College of Florida, Manatee — Sarasota held a Regular
Meeting on October 28, 2025 at SCF Bradenton.

Board Members Present: Mark Goodson, Mike Fuller, Taylor Collins, Lon Deckard, Jamie
DiDomenico, Jennifer Infanti, Britt Riner, Karen Rose, and Rod Thomson

Administrators Present: President Tommy Gregory, Vice Presidents Dr. Ryan Hale, Jennifer Price,
Dr. Brittany Pyjas, Dr. Patricia Rand, and Chris Wellman. Absent: General Counsel Steve Prouty.

1. Meeting Call to Order - Mr. Thomson
Mr. Goodson called the meeting to order at 5:30 pm.

2. Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance
Dr. Pyjas delivered the invocation and led the pledge.

3. Public Comment
Faculty member Philip Travis made public comment on faculty salaries.
Faculty member Jennifer Bieselin made public comment on faculty shortage.
Faculty member Maria Spelleri made public comment on her upcoming retirement.
Faculty member Katherine Bzura made public comment on SCF students and faculty dedication.

4. President’s Report
President Gregory applauded Dr. Rand for her appointment as SCF’s Vice President of Academic
Affairs. President Gregory highlighted SCF Venice’s growth and commended faculty for rising to
the challenge. He observed that significant overloads are not a sustainable model and that the
administration is evaluating ways to address the faculty shortage. President Gregory recognized
SCF’s guest Dr. Bill Jervey. President Gregory praise Melodie Dickerson and the SCF Chamber
Choir for their recent performance at the Florida Senate Designation Ceremony in Tallahassee.
President Gregory distributed to each of the Trustees the SCF pamphlet “SCF Fast Facts”. The
President explained that this is a useful resource for them to keep handy to assist them in
answering questions they could be asked when they are out in the community.

5. Mission Moment
Professor Dr. Andy Swanson - Fundamentals of Biology
Dr. Swanson provided an overview of the SCF Venice Fundamentals of Biology class. He explained
this is a class that students who want to major in Biology would take. Dr. Swanson highlighted
various experiments and the tools that are used in the class. Dr. Swanson introduced a few of his
students, who shared their experiences. Dr. Swanson and the students answered Trustee
questions.



6. Approval of Non-Financial Consent Agenda Items (Consent Agenda A)

Exhibit A: | Minutes of September 30, 2025 BOT Meeting - Page 5

Exhibit B: | Amended Fall 2025 Lifelong Learning & Workforce Development Schedule - Page 9

Exhibit C: | HR Personnel Actions Monthly Report September 2025 - Page 13

Exhibit D: | 2024-25 Annual Athletic Report - Page 14

SCFCS Annual Allocation of Sales Surtax Revenue for Qualified Charter Schools

Exhibit E: Amendment - Page 34

After due discussion and consideration, Mr. Thomson motioned to approve the Non-Financial
Consent Agenda, Ms. Collins seconded, and the Board unanimously approved.

7. Approval of Financial Consent Agenda Items (Consent Agenda B)

Exhibit F: Monthly Financial Report August 2025 - Page 37

Exhibit G: Budget Amendment FY 2025-26 July 2025 #1-3 Page 42

Exhibit H: Budget Amendment FY 2025-26 August 2025 #4-7 Page 45

Exhibit I: SCFCS Financial Report(s) August 2025 - Page 49

Exhibit J: Acceptance of Gifts and Grants July 2025 - Page 51

Exhibit K: Acceptance of Gifts and Grants August 2025 - Page 52

Exhibit L: Property Disposals - Page 53

Exhibit M: Grant No. 25-06 Global Technology Industry Association Grant - Page 56

Exhibit N: Grant No. 25-07 National Science Foundation — Advanced Technological Education-
Statewide Manufacturing and Applied Responsive Technician Education in Florida -
Page 58

After due discussion and consideration, Mr. Fuller motioned to approve the Financial Consent
Agenda, Ms. Collins seconded, and the Board unanimously approved.

8. Facilities Project List (informational Only) - Chris Wellman
Exhibit O: Project List - Page 60

9. Facilities
Construction Projects & Updates — Chris Wellman
Exhibit P: Contract Approval for Parrish Phase 1 Development - Page 61
Mr. Wellman asked for the Board’s approval of the contract with Tandem Construction in the
amount of $33,983,264.80 for Parrish Phase 1 development.
After due discussion and consideration, Mr. Thomson motioned to approve the Exhibit P, Ms.
Collins seconded, and the Board unanimously approved.

Exhibit Q: Approval of Pre-Qualified Contractors - Page 62

Mr. Wellman shared with the Trustees the list of SCF’s 2025-26 Pre-Qualified Contractors and asked
for their approval. After due discussion and consideration, Mr. Fuller motioned to approve the
Exhibit Q, Mr. DiDomenico seconded, and the Board unanimously approved.


https://33,983,264.80

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

President’s Goals & Contract - Mr. Goodson
e President’s 2024-25 Completed Goals

Mr. Goodson presented to the Trustees the President’s Completed 2024-25 Goals Report and asked
for the Board’s approval. After due discussion and consideration, Mr. Thomson motioned to
approve the allocation of funds associated with the Completed Goals Report, Ms. Collins seconded,
and the Board unanimously approved.

e President’s 2025-26 Contract

Mr. Goodson presented to the Board a revised contract. After due discussion and consideration,
Mr. Thomson motioned to approve the revised President’s contract, Ms. Rose seconded, and the
Board unanimously approved.

Old Business
none

New Business
none

SCF Foundation Update - Cassandra Holmes

Cassandra Holmes introduced SCFF friend and donor Dr. Bill Jervey. Dr. Jervey shared with the
Trustees his background and his passion for higher education, especially SCF. Dr. Jervey expressed
his admiration for the College, the Collegiate School, and the Foundation.

Board Comments/Updates & Adjournment

Mr. Thomson conveyed his appreciation for updating the SCF Financials reporting. He shared his
enthusiasm for the upcoming groundbreaking of the Parrish campus. Mr. Thomson commented
that the Board made the right choice with the selection of Tommy Gregory for President.

Ms. Rose commended President Gregory for the revisions to his contract. She thanked the SCF
Faculty that came forward and recognized the challenges they face.

Ms. Collins expressed her appreciation for President Gregory, for Dr. Jervey, and for the SCF Venice
campus.

Ms. Riner commended Chris Wellman and the facilities staff for the Venice campus. She thanked
President Gregory for putting the College first and thanked Dr. Jervey for his generous support.
Mr. Deckard expressed his admiration for the group working together for common goals.

The meeting adjourned at 7:18 p.m.

Mark Goodson, Chair, Board of Trustees Tommy Gregory, Secretary, Board of Trustees



Exhibit B

(-@1e40d10d Aq pied saiouap 00°09)

Asejuswa|3 - uoneso|dx3
% (493U) 159 97) UoludpeIg 415| 00°62TS sz/62/0T |ST/T/0T P3N0 - UBISAq 35IN0D APRISAQ SHNOGOY NI 13q010 €TTLT
Aejuswa|3 3
N (423ud) 1S9 97) uoluapeug 43S| 00°62TS Sz/et/6 |sz/e/6 - UoneIo|dX3 4931 YINOA - 153MD SUIPOY “If UEISBUIA L1aqWaIdas (4474
N (423ua) 359\ 97) UoudpeIg 4DS| 00°67TS qz/og/6 |st/t/e U3 Yo, m:_vou_nwn”\_r_ﬁwhwﬂ‘__.“_ﬂcwcﬂ_,”w_\,_\”___ “MMHMMMM 8TTLT
[ooyds ysiH
N (423ud) 1S9 97) uoluapeug 43s| 00°62TS qz/og/0t [sz/L/ot DUE B|PPI - UONEIO|dX3 Yp3L YINOA - OIpMIS J01E3IY 1134010 LITLT
adod (L12) youey poomasie] 40S| 00°67S$ qz/1/0t |st/ve/e Aepo] Sujuue|d 1uswaiinay| ¥60LT
[|IsuJ0) (LI1D) youey poomasie 43S| 00°0S sg/v/et  [sT/v/Ta TOT AM4N2as e1doS| €80LT
[|IsuJ0) (LI1D) youey poomasie 43S| 00°0S qz/t/er [sT/e/Tn TOT AM4n2as e1dos| z80LT
[|IsuJ0) (LI1D) youey poomasie 43S| 00°0S qz/9/1T [Sz/9/1T TOT A14n2as e1dos| T8OLT
[|IsuJ0) (LI1D) youey poomasie 43S| 00°0S ST/v/1T [ST/v/TT TOT A14n23s e1d0S| 080LT
[|IsuJ0) (LI1D) youey poomasie 43S| 00°0S qz/6/ot  [stz/e/0T TOT AMJn2as e1d0S| 6£0LT
[|IsuJ0) (LI1D) youey poomasie 43S| 00°0S qz/L/ot [sz/L/ot TOT AM4n2as [e1dos| 8/0LT
[|IsuJ0) (LI1D) youey poomasie 43S| 00°0S qz/11/6 |St/11/6 TOT AMJnoas [eos| £/0LT
[|IsuJ0) (LI1D) youey poomasie 43S| 00°0S qz/6/6 Gz/6/6 TOT A14n2as [e1dos| 9/0LT
Suiyoeo) paJojie] pue ssaadng
32015 (L1D) youey poomaxet 43s| 00°SES SZ/TT/TT |ST/TT/TT 015195UD :Id b UOISS3S snuiog ApduIS puUe 110S (s35se[D 2|3ulS) 190LT
Suiyoeo) paJojie] pue ssa3dng
30015 (L1D) youey poomayet 43s| 00°s€$ SZ/IT/TT |ST/TT/1T 0151984 Y b UOISS3S snuog Aduwis pue 1105 (sassep ajgurg)| °90LT
32015 (L1D) youey poomasie] 43S| 00°5€S SZ/v1/0T |ST/vT/0T | Awdijdwis oul [jed :ANd € uolssas Ajijdwis pue 1Jos (sasse[d 3|3ulS)| 650LT
32015 (L1D) youey poomasie] 43S| 00°G€S SZ/v1/0T |ST/vT/0T | Awodldwis ol jjed AV € uolssas Ajijdwis pue 1Jos (sasse[d 3|3ulS)| 8S0LT
* (LI1D) youey poomasie] 43S| 00°0ZTS qz/Te/1t [sT/Te/it s9091d493ua) Aepl|oH dA13Sa4 IUIN-Wo0|g Ul 9Z0LT
* (LI1D) youey poomasie] 43S| 00°S6TS sg/v/et |sT/v/Ta s9031d491uad) Aepl|OH dAI3Sa4 WiNlwdId-woolg Ul SZOLT
* (LI1D) youey poomasie] 43S| 00°0ZTS GZ/ET/TT [ST/eT/TT ugisaq 1sanJeH IUlN-woolg Ul ¥Z0LT
* (LI1D) youey poomasie] 43S| 00°S6TS Gz/St/0t [sz/st/ot ugisaq 1sanieH wniwaid-woolg Ul €Z0LT
usyouy uayouy a|ddeauld| 00'66S$ qz/L1/6 |sT/LT/e Jauuiq auising ueljel| 9T0LT
auinsg (00€ 8ulp|ing) d21UBA 40S| 00'62ZTS S7/€2/0T [ST/€/ot C |9A97 - [99X3| 64691
auinsg (LI1D) youey poomasie] 43S| 00'6¢TS sg/v/et  |sT/v/Ta C |9A97 - [99X3| 8L691T
suinsg (LI1D) youey poomasie] 43S| 00'6¢TS Gz/6T/1T [Sz/6eT/TT ¥ [9A37 - [90X3| £/69T
auinsg (LI1D) youey poomasie] 43S| 00'6¢TS qz/og/6 |sz/og/6 T I9A97 - [99X3| 94691
[IEEEEN (8T 8uip|ing) uoyuapeuq 4JS| 00°61S qz/v1/0T [Ssz/L/ot SSe|2Ja)se|A ssaulpeay Jusawalinay| 10891
As|pna (LI1D) youey poomasie] 43S| 00'667S ST/YT/IT [ST/vT/TT dwe) 1009 diysispesal 40S| Tz/9T
Joypniisu| uonedo 994 uonin] 9ajeq puj 9leq Meis awe sse|) ai ssepd

SZ0T 11V4 ‘LNINdO1IAIA IDYOINYOM ANV DNINYYIT ONOTIHIT ‘SISYNOI LIAIYI-NON 40 I1NAIHIS AIANINY




(-@1e40d.10d Aq pied saiouap 00°09)

MIOVHL dIHSY3AV3T HOSINY3dNS

SZ0T 11V4 ‘LNINdO1IAIA IDYOINYOM ANV DNINYYIT ONOTIHIT ‘SISYNOI LIAIYI-NON 40 I1NAIHIS AIANINY

HUEEANS 00z| 0005 ST/ST/OT |ST/ST/ot (T Wed) 0T dol 3yl — 3|doad 3ndiia yum 3uljeaq - dOL E0EAR
MOVYL dIHSY3IAvIT
|03y299 swea] YosoIA [ 00°0S qz/6/0T |sz/e/0T 4OSIAY3dNS (€ J0 T Hed) Juawdo|anaQ |euostad-43LNI| C0ELT
- diyssapea wasdi|a1u| Ajjeuoiiowy JnoA Sujwiojsued] - 4OL
pasy swea] }osoIN| 00°0S S¢/L/oT  [sT/L/oT Aj2184N20Y 3JOIN pue Jdiseq adA] - BuipieodAdy - JOL| TOELT
aulnaQ (L12) youey poomaxel 43S| 00°0$ S¢/T/0T  [sT/T/01 SulId)|I4 13 sejnwJo4 |99X3 - dOL| 00€LT
Jaizedd wooz| 00°0$ Gz/og/6 |sz/og/6 MIVYL dIHSYIAVIT HOSIAYIANS 34n3n) Sutuuipy e Suip|ing - dOL| 662LT
supimeH swea] }osoIN| 00°0S Sz/st/6 |sT/st/e s)ooq ueyy aJoN yon|A oS Ateaqil 40S - dOL| £6T2LT
yyws swea] }osoIN| 0005 S¢/L1/6 |ST/LT/6 TOT uolleziuediQ 0 - dOL| 96TLT
aulnaQ (L12) youey poomaxeq 43S| 00°0$ S¢/L1/6 |ST/LT/6 julodiamod - dOL| S6TLT
MOVYL dIHSY3IAvIl
[03ydag swea] JosoIN| 00°0S S¢/v/e6  |st/v/e 4OSIAY3dNS (€ 40 T Hed) Juawdo|anaQ |euostad-VdINI| ¥62LT
- diyssapea wasdi|a1u| Ajjeuoiiowy JnoA Sujwiojsued] - 4OL
lojAel aulluQ : uonedol| 00°0S¢‘eS [Se/T/TT  [ST/8/01 3sl|e10ads uipo) diosener| 162/T
As|3eg swea| YosoNIA| 00°0SCES |ST/e/eT |ST/L/oT ¥si|eroads Suipo) uoyiAd| 062/LT
* (112) youey poomaxe 42S| 00°00ZS G7/81/0T (S¢/8T/0T GZ0T e\ uwnny| T8ZLT
poom (LI1D) youey poomasie] 43S| 00°0SSS SZ/v/TT |ST/€T/0T | (Youey poomayel) g Med - uoiiediunwiwo) pue a89|0) 4oy ysiidu3| 08ZLT
poom (112) youey poomaxeq 43S| 00°055S GZ/11/2T [S2/82/0T | (Youey poomaseT) z Hed - uonedlunwwo) pue 933(|0) 404 ysi|Sul| 6/2/1
poom (112) youey poomaxeq 43S| 00°055S Se/v/Tt  [ST/€T/0T | (Youey poomaseT) T Hed - uonedlunwwo) pue 933(|0) 404 ysi|dul| 8/Z/1
aulnag (112) youey poomaxe 42S| 00°6ZTS Sz/€t/6  |se/€e/6 T [9A97 - [99X3| TLTLT
sapue] (112) youey poomaxel 43S| 00°09S G7/8T/0T (S¢/8T/0T yoddns a1 o1seg (4dd/s19)| £92LT
sapue] (112) youey poomaxeq 43S| 00°09S G¢/St/ot [ST/se/ot poddns a1 o1seg (4dd/s19)| 9TZLT
sapue] (112) youey poomaxel 43S| 00°09S G7/8¢/0T (S¢/8¢/01 poddns a1 o1seg (4d2/s19)| TOZLT
sapue] (112) youey poomaxeq 43S| 00°09S S¢/ve/ot (ST/ve/ot poddns a1 o1seg (4d2/s79)| 00ZLT
sapue] (112) youey poomaxeq 42S| 00°09S S¢/ce/ot (se/ce/ot poddns a1 o1seg (4dD/s19)| 66TLT
sapue] (112) youey poomaxeq 43S| 00°09S S¢/L1/0T (ST/LT/0T poddns a1 o1seg (4dD/s19)| 86TLT
* 105 “_%Fs_\u,_,wmcm_u “Mﬂ\mw“%_w_m 00°0$ §7/st/ot |sz/s/ot gn|D oIy yyy~ uonel|ioe] SunaaN| 9/TLT
ueayd0) (00€ 8uip|ing) 2d1UdA 40S| 00°62S sg/e/Tr [se/e/aa iMmouy| 01 paaN NOA SulylAIang - TOT dJedIP3IN| SETLT
ueiysod (112) youey poomaxe 42S| 00°6ZS S¢/S/TT [ST/S/TT iMmouy| 01 paaN NOA SulylAIang - TOT dJedIPaIN| 6ZTLT
10dNnJlisuj uolijedon 994 uonijin] 9{jeq puj 9jeq uels wepN sse|p ai sse|d




(-@1e40d10d Aq pied saiouap 00°09)

SZ0T 11V4 ‘LNINdO1IAIA IDYOINYOM ANV DNINYYIT ONOTIHIT ‘SISYNOI LIAIYI-NON 40 I1NAIHIS AIANINY

Arespd (TT 8ulp|ing) uoluapeig 42S| 00°0$ SZ/T/T1  |S¢/og/6 (1492U0) JBqWAAON) pueg 132U0) AHunwwo) a9leue| 89€/T
Jaizeud aul|uQ : uonelol| 00'6LS Sg/s/Tr [se/s/aa Lonea.ddy yanoyL uawiaBesus suljand 99¢e/d
’ : : — 9pni3eJo 13 UoIHUS0I3Y :UNOH Jamod Juawdo|anaq |euOISSa401d
qun (423ud) 319 97) uoluapeuq 40S| 00°0SC'ES [Sz/¢/eT  [sz/L/oT Jadojanad gam IN/XN| ¥9€LT
qun (423ud) 319 97) uoluapeuq 40S| 00°0SC'€ES [ST/T/¢T  [Sz/9/0T 10)p3 PalIIL) SSaIdPIOM| €9€LT
Jolzeld wooz| 00°0S S¢/L1/6 |ST/LT/6 UoI323UU0) JO J9MOd dY1-3ulp|ing 3JOMIBN Sululed] 30es3uod| T9€/T
adl (112) youey poomaxe 42S| 00°6ZTS Gz/62/0T [ST/T/01 1si80jolg aulel 337 :499010| 09€LT
auinsg (112) youey poomaxe 42S| 00°6ZTS G¢/ST/0T (ST/ST/0T T |9A37 - [99X3| 6SELT
auinsg (L12) youey poomaxeq 43S| 00°0$ S¢/T/0T |S¢/LT/6 T [9A97 [99X3 - dOL| ¥SELT
auinsg (112) youey poomaxe 42S| 00°6ZTS SZ/9/11 [ST/9/T1 € |9A37 - [90X3| TQELT
epJad swesa] JosoNIN| 0005 SZ/9/11 [ST/9/T1 TOT SulNPAYDS JUBAT '@ SUOIIEAIDSDY WOOY - dOL| 9VELT
sHaqoy swesa] JosoNIN| 00°0S Sz/€/6 Se/€/6 Upa4) 983]|0) puoAag - 43S 38 OYM S,0YM - dOL| ¥FELT
1909 M (€ Buip|ing) uoluapeug 43S| 00°0S G7/8¢/0T (S¢/8¢/01 suollsinbay pue si1apJQ aseyaund :salseq Jauueq - dOL| TYELT
9|eduasseln swea| YOosoIA| 00°0S S¢/62/0T [ST/62/01 luiwas 8[5000 TreLT
' pue [ d9eyd Yum Jeljiwed U199 :Wo0Usse|) ayl Ul | - dOL
* (L12) youey poomaxeq 43S| 00°0$ S7/62/0T [ST/62/01 uonepuno4 Aq|as uonelljioeq SunnaslA| SEELT
* (L12) youey poomaxeq 43S| 00°0$ Sz/st/6 |sT/st/e U} EDH |EIUSIA JUBJU| JOJ UOIIRIDOSSY BPLIO|4™ UOIel|Ioeq SURPdIN| LEELT
* (L12) youey poomaxeq 43S| 00°0$ S¢/ct/6 |s¢/tr/e INg-uoileyl|ioe SUSdIAI| 9EELT
uewpJaem (008 8uip|ing) 321USA 42S| 00°0$ S2/91/0T |S2/9T/01 ¥dD - dOL| €TELT
ADVHL
1014dagd swesa] JosoNIN| 00°0S ST/ET/TIT [ST/ET/TT dIHSY3AV3I1 YOSIAY3dNS (€ 40 € Hed) suonedljddy Auunwwo) B ZTELT
340/ - diysiapesa Juasdijaiu| Ajjeuoinow Jnoj Sujwiojsued) - JO1
yuws swea| YOosoIA| 00°0S SZ/6T/1T (ST/6T/1T 3unayJe 1 uoedluNWWo) gdM - dOL| TTELT
yuws swea| YOosoIA| 00°0S Sg/T1/Ct (Sse/TT/en SWI04 1JOSONDIN - dOL| OTELT
auoQ s3uiyl
uuewsino wooz| 00°0$ Sz/ot/TT |sz/ot/eT Y431y U1 195 01 S|[1iS SUIdO[EABQ - JUBLIBSEUEIY BWI - dOL 60€LT
Xn1 (T 8uip|ing) uoluapeug 41S| 00°0S ST/TT/1T (ST/TT/TT UOI1e31UdLIQ USPNIS MBN dUdLRdXT - dOL| 80ELT
uuewino (L12) youey poomaxeq 43S| 00°0$ SZ/TT/1T (ST/eT/1t YOVdL dIHSYIAVST YOSINGIANS LOELT
(7 Med) 93y [e28IQ a3 ul 8jdoad HN2IIA YHIm SuiyIoM - dOL
Swel||Im (L12) youey poomaxeq 43S| 00°0$ ST/TT/1T [ST/TT/1T doe|dyJ0/N BY31 Ul 108dsaY - dOL| 90ELT
1a1Ze1 wooz| 000 cz/sz/0t |sz/ez/0t MIVYL dIHSYIAVY31 HOSIAYIdNS uonepalddy COE/T
’ y3nouy] uswade3du] 3uijan4 — apniiielo 1 uoiju30d3yY - dOL
o (¢Buping) vowspes 5| 0005 [se/refot [serzion | - TBUGH POISHO] BRI WpERY P Brved] e
J039n43su| uonedloq 994 uollin] {leqg puj aieq Meis awep sse|d ai ssep




(-@1e40d10d Aq pied saiouap 00°09)

aulnaQ (Buiutesy 1oeJ3u0d) elOSEIES BUS-HO| 00'62ZTS Sg/e/tT  [sz/e/ca T I9A97 - [99X3| T9V/L1

Jolzeld wooz| 00°0S qz/9t/et [sz/9t/et UJe7 8 Ydun 30eqpaad 3|2J1) ||N4 JINL 039S Sululed| 19BIU0D| 6EVLT

eJen wooz| 00°0S S¢/v/1T [ST/v/TT 0T Aepl|OH 3y} pIOAY 03 MOH ™ Sululel] 10eU0D | LEV/LT
doysy4om

N (423ud) 1S9 97) uoluapeug 42| 00°00TS sg/e/Tr [se/e/a 115 pazI[euosiad A101e4 15 AEPIIOH OH OH (S8 9T) ‘€ a3exoeq TIVLT
doysy4om

" (423ud) 1S9 9) uoluapeiqg 43S| 00°SLS sg/e/Tr [se/e/a I pazI[euosIad :A101e4 115 AEPIIOH OH OH (18 §) iz 39esped OTvLT
doysy4om

" (423ud) 1S9 M 97) uoluapeiq 42S| 00°05S sg/e/Tr [se/e/a I pazI[eusIag :A101e4 115 AEPIIOH OH OH (18 4) :  s%esped 60VL1
doysy4om

« (493ua) 359\ 97) UoluapeIg 4DS| 00°00TS sg/t/ar |s/e/Tn 115 pazI[euosIag AI01e4 115 AEPIIOH OH OH (s13 9T) ‘€ 98eyped LOVLT
doysy4om

" (423ud) 1S9 9) uoluapeiqg 43S| 00°SLS sg/e/Tr [se/e/a I pazI[euosiag :A1o1e4 115 AEPIIOH OH OH (18 8) :z 39esped 90vLT
doysy4om

N (423ua) 359\ 97) UoluapEIg 4DS| 00°05S sg/t/ar |st/e/Tn 11D pazIjeuosiag :Ai019e4 115 ABPIOH OH OH (SIS 1) :T a3exoed SOVLT

suinsg (112) youey poomaxe 43S| 00°6ZTS Sg/L1/Tt (SsT/LT/Tn 300|INQO HOSODIN| YOVLT

uuewniqg swea| 1JosoIA| 00°0S S¢/vT/1T [ST/vT/1T S94npad0J4d pue SwJo} uoilezioyiny [dAed] - dOl| £6€LT

3045 PlGAH Jo BuUIUO| 00°6/8S S¢/9/T1  [ST/8T/0T AJuQ T Med - auljuQ AT 1BBY pa|joJul| SEELT

yuws (TT Bulpjing) uojuapesg 425| 00°STS qZ/12/1T [Sz/€/ot 1USWBA|OAU| UoDNpoId| Y6ELT

Asipna wooz| 00°0$ S¢/12/01 |Se/Te/otT 1891 8 oun] BULNOY BUILIO €6€LT
[njaamod e 3uiysijgels3 :Aeqg ayi SulumQ Sululeu] 10esiuo)

Asipna (Sururesy 10e43U02) BD1UBA US-HO| 00°0$ S¢/ST/1T |Se/se/1T 200078 SMOPIM| Z6es1
T ’ ’ woisn) 19d Sululed] 321AISS JBWO0ISN) Sululed] 10e4luo)

uisy (112) youey poomaxeq 43S| 00°0ZS SZ/TT/TIT (ST/TT/TT $21qoJay 2dueq s,0L( 88€LT

uis|y (112) youey poomaxel 43S| 00°0ZS SZ/91/0T (S¢/9T/0T SJ1qoJay 2dueq s,0L( L8ELT

uia|y (L1D) yauey poomae 40S| 00°0ZS Se¢/v/iT |ST/v/TT e30A JIeyd| 98€/LT

uisy (L1D) youey poomasie] 43S| 00°0¢$ S¢/v1/0T (ST/vT/0T eS0A Jleyd| G8ELT

sopue] (LI1D) youey poomasie 43S| 00°0S S¢/v1/0T (ST/vT/0T gulures] ¥dd pue adeds 3unnas|A” Sululel] eU0)| Z8ELT

Asipng (112) youey poomaxe 42S| 00°667S Sg/L1/et (SsT/LT/Tn Ja1dey) xaN 3y - dwedjoog diysiapea] 405 T8ELT

uewJspa (L1D) youey poomasie] 43S| 00°0S$ SZ/T1/CT (ST/0T/1T siauuidag Joj a3pug| 6LELT

Aa|png auluQ : uonedo| 00°6LS$ qz/9t/et [sz/9t/et HOMIIN [EHOISSS401d SLELT
’ ’ |[NJJaMOod e Suizeat) 1unoH Jamod 1uswdo|ana(q |euolsSa404d

Ases|d (TT 8ulp|ing) uoiuapeug 40S| 00°0$ SC/ET/TT |ST/v/1T (1492U0) JaqWIADA(Q) pueg 1AUO) AlUNWIWO) d31eUBIAI[ E9ELT

J039n43su| uonedloq 994 uollin] {leqg puj aieq Meis awep sse|d ai ssep

SZ0Z 114 ‘LNINdO13IAIA IDYOINYOM ANV DNINY¥YIT ONOT3HN

‘§3SYNOI LIA3YI-NON 10 I1NAIHIS AIANINY




Exhibit C

RECOMMENDATION TO

STATE COLLEGE OF FLORIDA
MANATEE-SARASOTA
DISTRICT BOARD OF TRUSTEES

Title: Curriculum Revision

Background:
To ensure that the requirements are current and responsive to student needs, the Curriculum Development and Review

Committee has acted on requests from various departments to revise selected courses and programs, and to establish
new courses and programs.

Objective:

To approve actions of the Curriculum Development and Review Committee and the recommendations of the President
to manage curriculum changes as necessary.

Legal Authority:

Rule 6HX14-1.07 Responsibility and Authority of the President

Recommendation:

The President recommends that the Board of Trustees approve the recommendations of the Curriculum Development
and Review Committee to establish/revise/delete programs and courses as described. (See Attachment)

AP N P P N I N N 5 N P 3 P N B N 0 B 3 10 10 P I8 3 1 8 3 R 1 0 8 1 0 10 N 0 1 0 1 I 3 0 1 N I 5 8 0 1 P % P 0 5 10 P 3 0 3 0 0 5 08 8 P N PN 5 5 P 8 P

x@ﬂw /l.20.9045

ice President Academic A \ffairs Date
President Date
Chair, District Board of Trustees Date

e e
Board of Trustees Exhibit/CDR December 9, 2025 Page 1

12



PROGRAMS: NEW, REVISED, DELETED

Programs: New
None

Programs: Revised

Certificate. Accounting Applications [3001]...cccvviriiiiceieciciei s s se e b e b ssesbs s e sbasassnennas Revise Program
Certificate. Information Technology Analysis [3015] . .ccciiiiiiioiiieeee ettt ne s Revise Program
Certificate. Software Development Specialist [3008] ......ooeeveerieeeeiieeciieeeriee e Revise Title and Program

Programs: Deleted

COURSES: NEW, REVISED, DELETED

Courses: New

None

Courses: Revised

MUT 1241C Ear training & Sight singing | (1)(A.A.).......................Title change, add “C” component, Course description,

................................................................................................................................................ Student Learning Outcomes

MUT 1242C Ear training & Sight singing Il (1)(AA)eevieeeievcvennnn. Title change, add “C” component, Course description,

................................................................................................................................................ Student Learning Outcomes

MUT 2246C Ear training & Sight singing Il (1){(AA).ccoccivieeveeene... Title change, add “C” component, Course description,
................................................................................................................................................. Student Learning Outcomes
MUT 2247C Ear training & Sight singing IV (1)(A.A)..eccceveevvienenne, Title change, add “C” component, Course description,
................................................................................................................................................. Student Learning Outcomes
MVK 1111A Class Piano | (1) (A.A.) e Revised Course Description and student Learning Outcomes
MVK 11211B Class Piano I {1) (A AL ettt e e e et ere s st a b see et s Revised Course Description
MVK 2121A Class Piano 11 (1) (A.A.) e Revised Course Description and student Learning Outcomes
MVK 2121B Class Piano IV (1) (A.A.) eceeenneee. s Revised Course Description and student Learning Outcomes
MUT 1111 MUSIC ThEOIY | (3 ALAL) ettt ettt st ene et e aneenne e Add concurrent co-requisite
MUT 1112 MUSIC THEOY | (3){AA.) cieeiieeeiieeeie ettt san e saee s sae e saee s saba e e Add concurrent co-requisite
MUT2316 Music Theory'[ (3)[AA:)cuivmsamsssisnivvvarismsessisiemssisiim i Add concurrent co-requisite
MUT 2117 MUSIC ThEOTY | () {AAL) ettt ettt et sre e b e enesenee e Add concurrent co-requisite

Courses: Deleted

None

State Common Course Numbering System Changes (SCNS) — Information Item

None
e e ]

Board of Trustees Exhibit/CDR December 9, 2025 Page 2

13



Exhibit D

ELINEYN Areiqr] Aleiqr ‘yuejsissy 198180 5202/60/0L uennopeyojeyy| weuep
SjusweIey
uojuapelg 20UaI0g [elnieN Jsiferoadg poddng pue ueriuyos] Alojesoge 198180 5202/22/0L ||0Jy ulwelusg
youey poomaxe] Jsyua) bunsa ueiojuyos ] bunss ] 198180 G20Z/€2/0L 19|19y uuer
uojuapelg 20UaI0g [elnieN e 9ouaIog |elnjeN ‘Jabeuely |euoissajold G202/L1/0L Ailege( auuayyey
uojuspelg U0JESSSY PUB SSSUSAINSYT [BUOHN}ISU| Buioday [euonnyysul ‘Jojoaag uonensiuwpy 5202/80/01 s9|e) UINSN
uojuapelg uolyepuno4 BunayJe| pue SjusAT ‘B)elo0SsY JUSLUSIUBAPY |euoissajold 5202/.0/0L ajuody zenblpoy aoluer
uojuspe.g spy Bulwiopad aJ)eay ‘10jonusu| uononpold 19818) G202/90/0L uinog Ayjow ]
uojuapelg sweiboid uopeonp3 uoliesnp3 [eojul]) ‘10ssajold Juelsissy Rynoe4 5202/€0/0L uoja|dwa] 1Y
suoneiedag
uojuapelg uolyepuno4 $89IAJ8S pun4 pue BuuNOodY ‘I0JeUIPIO0D |euolssajoid o]
uojuspelg lloJAed pue Buunodoy JUBJUNOODY |euoIsssjold woi4 5202/82/01 UBWIISAA UljS}EY
uojuapelg 90110 SJleyy dIWBpedY pUe }SOAOId SIleYY OIWSPEDY ‘JUBpISaId I\ uonessiuIWwpy o]
uojuspelg 92110 SJleyy OIWSPEJY PUE }SOAOIH JSOAOId PUE JUSPISAId 991\ SAIINOSXT WIS uonessiuwpy woi4 5202/82/01 puey eljed
uojuapelg U0JBasay puUB SSaUSAINSYT [BUOlN}ISU| Buioday pue yoleasay |euolnjiisul ‘10joailq uopessiuwpy o]
uojuspelg U0JESS9Y PUB SSSUSAINSYT [BUOHN}ISU| 1sAleuy yoseasay Joluss |euoIsssjold woi4 5202/02/0) ueaouo(q,Q AsoelS
uojuapelg suonesado sosloig . |euoissajoid o]
pue ABojouyoa ] suonesadQ ‘Jojeulpioo)
uojuspelg Ayoges olgnd Ayajes 2lqnd “sieroads JEEYile) woi4 5202/02/0L uewloy| Jauue|
[ELIVEYN suonesadQ poddng suopeladQ ‘sieoadg J9alen ol
ELIIEYN soueusjule| pue Bujuueld ‘sanjioe Juswabeuepy . 19318) woi4 5202/02/0L Jexepy esiq
Sal)|1oe /001188 Jawo)sn) ‘Isieroads
sabuey)
ELIIEYN 90I1UBA - [00Y2S djelbs||0D asInN |00YyoS 19318) 5202/82/0L Jaqels JayyesH
youey poomae J9yue) bunsa | uerpluyos ] bunsa 198180 5202/22/0L uewdey) euuoa
ELIIEYN BuisinN ueIdluyos ] ge SIS I9318) 5202/02/0L susal9) eleRYdIN
uojuapelg Bunayiep BupayJe|y ‘10}0a.IQ Jue)sissy |euoissajold 5202/02/0L ybnd ou3
uojuspelg 90UaI0S [einieN Jsiferoads poddng pue uerdiuyos] Alojeioqe 19818) 5202/€1/0L JloJy ulwelusg
uojuspelg safuewnH pue ubisaq ‘uy ac Jopnasu| geq is818D §coz/eLioL ynws aulsyiey
uojuspelg Jessibay sy Jo 9040 Jeqsibay sy} Jo 9910 ‘JUElSISSY JEEYIle) G202/10/0) SWel||IA\ SIABL |
SjusuuIoddy
as jusunredag uonesyissery BLEENERTE] sweN

GZ0Z 1990300 :S}IqIYX3 pIeog SUOOY [dUUOSIdd 3OO S92IN0SAY UBWNH

14



Exhibit E

State College of Florida Collegiate
Schools, Bradenton Campus

Basic Financial Statements and
Supplemental Information

For the year ended
June 30, 2025



TABLE OF CONTENTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Statement of Net Position

Statement of Activities

Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds

Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds
to the Statement of Net Position

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balances to the Statement of Activities
- Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities
Statement of Fiduciary Net Position
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position
Notes to Financial Statements
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION
Budgetary Comparison Schedule — General Fund
Budgetary Comparison Schedule — Capital Outlay Revenue Fund
Notes to Required Supplemental Information
SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN
AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS
MANAGEMENT LETTER

MANAGEMENT FINDINGS, RECOMMENDATIONS, AND RESPONSES

Page

4-8

10

11

12

13

14
15
16

17-28

29
30

31

32-33
34-35

36



Partners

W. Ed Moss, Jr.
Joe M. Krusick
Ric Perez

Cor1 G. Novinich
Renee C. Varga

Winter Park, FL. 32789
501 S. New York Ave.
Phone; 407-644-5811
www.mosskrusick.com

Clearwater, FL 33761
29605 US Hwy 19 North
Phone: 727-785-7460

N. Palm Beach, F1. 33408
631 US Highway One
Phone: 561-848-9300

Miami Lakes, FL 33016
7900 NW 155th Street
Phone: 305-445-7956

Miramar, F1. 33025
11450 Interchange Circle
Phone: 954-435-4222

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Board of Trustees
State College of Florida Collegiate Schools, Bradenton Campus
Bradenton, Florida

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinions

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities and
each major fund, of State College of Florida Collegiate Schools, Bradenton Campus (the
“Charter School”), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2025, and the related notes to the
financial statements, which collectively comprise the Charter School’'s basic financial
statements as listed in the table of contents.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the respective financial position of the governmental activities and each major fund, of the
Charter School as of June 30, 2025, and the respective changes in financial position, and,
where applicable, cash flows if thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinions

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent
of the Charter School and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the
relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Emphasis of Matter

As discussed in Note 1, the financial statements of the Charter School are intended to present
the financial position, and the changes in financial position, of only that portion of the
governmental activities, and each major fund of the State College of Florida that is attributable
to the transactions of the Charter School. They do not purport to, and do not, present fairly the
financial position of the State College of Florida, as of June 30, 2025, the changes inits financial
position, for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America. Our opinions are not modified with respect to this matter.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America,
and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

1

Moss, Krusick & Associates, LLC "



Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements (continued)

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or
events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Charter School’s ability to continue
as a going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any currently known
information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government
Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are
considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence
the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing
Standards, we:

e Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Charter School’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

e Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that
raise substantial doubt about the Charter School’s ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable
period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters that
we identified during the audit.

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s
discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison information on pages 4-8 and 29-31 be presented to
supplement the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and, although
not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who
considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an
appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the
required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information
and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not
express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide
us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.



Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated September 22, 2025,
on our consideration of the Charter School’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The
purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Charter
School’s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Charter School’s internal
control over financial reporting and compliance.

Moss, Krusick & Associates, LLC

Winter Park, Florida
September 22, 2025



Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Management’s discussion and analysis (MD&A) provides an overview of the financial position and activities
of the State College of Florida Collegiate School, Bradenton Campus (the “Charter School”) for the fiscal
years ended June 30, 2025 and 2024. This discussion has been prepared by management and the
information contained in the MD&A is intended to highlight significant transactions, events and conditions,
and should be read in conjunction with the Charter School’s financial statements and notes thereto.
Responsibility for the completeness and fairness of this information rests with the Charter School’s
management. This discussion and analysis contain financial activities of the Charter School as a restricted
fund of the State College of Florida, Manatee-Sarasota (the “College”).

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

For the year ended June 30, 2025, the Charter School's revenues exceeded expenses by $76,729 resulting
in an ending net position balance of $4,591,655 The Charter School conducted operations for the 2024-
2025 academic year with revenues of $5,270,563.

For the year ended June 30, 2024, the Charter School's revenues exceeded expenses by $504,382
resulting in an ending net position balance of $4,514,926. The Charter School conducted operations for the
2023-2024 academic year with revenues of $5,639,541.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Charter School’s basic financial statements consists of three components:
- Government-wide financial statements
- Fund financial statements
- Notes to financial statements

The Charter School is a public charter school sponsored by the School District of Manatee County,
Florida. The initial charter was effective until June 30, 2015 and was renewed during 2015 until June
30, 2030. It is organized pursuant to Section 1002.33, Florida Statutes, and is governed by the District
Board of Trustees of the State College of Florida, Manatee-Sarasota, who are appointed by the
Governor of the State of Florida and confirmed by the Senate in regular session.

The Charter School is operated by the College and is housed on the College's Bradenton Campus. Itis
designed to provide students with the opportunity to graduate simultaneously with a high school diploma
and an Associate in Arts (AA) degree. Students will explore their potential, discover the importance of
higher education, and receive personalized attention in a close-knit school setting.

The Charter School is recognized as a separate restricted fund in the accounting system of the College.
The State of Florida Auditor General's Office audits the College's financial statements. The College adheres
to internal control procedures contained in the Board of Trustees Rules and the Accounting Manual of the
Florida College System. As a restricted fund of the College, the Charter School is subject to the same
internal control procedures as the College, and in addition, to the standards contained in the Financial and
Program Cost Accounting and Reporting for Florida Schools (Red Book) and other stipulated guidelines
for Charter Schools.

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements provide both short-term and long-term information about the
Charter School's overall financial condition in a manner similar to those of a private sector business. The
statements include a statement of net position and a statement of activities that are designed to provide
consolidated financial information about the governmental activities of the primary government presented
on the accrual basis of accounting.

20



Government-Wide Financial Statements (continued)

The statement of net position provides information about the Charter School's financial position, its assets
and liabilities, using an economic resources measurement focus. The difference between the assets and
liabilities, the net position, is a measure of the financial health of the Charter School. The statement of
activities presents information about the change in the Charter School's net position, the results of
operations, during the fiscal year. An increase or decrease in net position is an indication of whether the
Charter School's financial health is improving or deteriorating.

All of the Charter School's activities and services are reported in the government-wide financial
statements as governmental activities. The Charter School's governmental activities include instruction,
student support services, instructional support services, administrative support, facility maintenance, and
student transportation services. Revenues for current operations are received primarily from the Sponsor
pursuant to the funding provisions included in the charter.

Fund Financial Statements

Fund financial statements are one of the components of the basic financial statements. A fund is a
grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been segregated
for specific activities or objectives. The Charter School uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate
compliance with finance-related legal requirements and prudent fiscal management. Certain funds are
established by law while others are created by legal agreements, such as bond covenants. Fund financial
statements provide more detailed information about the Charter School's financial activities, focusing on
its most significant or "major" funds rather than fund types. This is in contrast to the entity wide perspective
contained in the government-wide statements. All of the operations of the Charter School are presented
in governmental funds only.

Governmental Funds: Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions
reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, the
governmental funds utilize a spendable financial resources measurement focus rather than the
economic resources measurement focus found in the government-wide financial statements. The
financial resources measurement focus allows the governmental fund statements to provide
information on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as balances of
spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year.

The governmental fund statements provide a detailed short-term view that may be used to evaluate
the Charter School's near-term financing requirements. This short-term view is useful when compared
to the long-term view presented as governmental activities in the government-wide financial
statements. To facilitate this comparison, both the governmental funds balance sheet and the
governmental funds statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a
reconciliation of governmental funds to governmental activities.

The governmental funds balance sheet and statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund
balances provide detailed information about the Charter School's governmental funds. The Charter School's
maijor funds are the General Fund, Grant Special Revenue Funds, and Capital Project Fund.

The Charter School adopts an annual appropriated budget for its governmental funds.

Custodial Fund: Custodial fund is used to report assets held in a fiduciary capacity for the benefit of
external parties, such as parent teacher organization. Custodial fund is not reflected in the
government-wide statements because the resources are not available to support the Charter School’s
own programs. In its fiduciary capacity, the Charter School is responsible for ensuring that the assets
reported in these funds are used only for their intended purposes.

21



Notes to Financial Statements

The notes provide additional information that is essential for a full understanding of the data provided
in the government-wide and fund financial statements.

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

Net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government's financial position. The following
is a summary of the Charter School's net position as of June 30.

2025 2024
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 3,730,468 $ 3,443,398
Accounts receivable 24,133 203,363
Capital assets, nondepreciable - 73,507
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 1,391,405 1,109,434
Right of use asset 2,198,649 2,466,962
Total assets 7,344,655 7,296,664
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 55,401 5,213
Accrued expenses 17,427 -
Accrued wages and benefits 211,776 127,856
Financed purchase obligation - current 61,330 33,197
Financed purchase obligation - noncurrent 15,707 -
Right of use liability - current 278,882 268,313
Right of use liability - noncurrent 1,919,767 2,198,649
Compensated absences - current 12,847 11,881
Compensated absences - noncurrent 179,863 136,629
Total liabilities 2,753,000 2,781,738
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 1,314,368 1,149,744
Restricted 1,194,908 740,942
Unrestricted 2,082,379 2,624,240
Total net position $ 4,591,655 $ 4,514,926

The restricted portion of the net position represents resources that are subject to restrictions on how they
may be used. Unrestricted net position may be used to meet the Charter School's ongoing obligations to
students, employees, and creditors.

The Charter School's 2025 net position increased by $76,729. This increase is primarily due to
increasing per student funding which was offset by increases in operating expenses from the prior year.

22



The key elements of the changes in the Charter School’s net position for the fiscal years ended June 30,
are as follows:

2025 2024
Revenues:
Federal through state and local $ 2416 $ 406,410
Florida education finance program 4,542,541 4,423,252
Other state revenue 249,697 126,182
Charter school capital outlay 291,959 280,832
School district local sales tax - 233,867
Dues and donations 56,000 51,920
Unresticted interest earnings 127,950 117,078
Total revenues 5,270,563 5,639,541
Expenses:
Instruction 3,235,904 3,004,340
Student support senices 148,195 125,480
Instructional staff training senvices 10,292 2,933
Instruction-related technology 269,644 144,298
School administration 802,057 778,965
Facilities acquisition 91,896 471,945
Fiscal senices 70,676 61,034
Food senices 65,328 54,708
Central senices 48,213 228
Student transportation senices 260,846 226,716
Operation of plant 182,660 262,286
Maintenance of plant 2177 -
Administrative technology senvices 5,946 2,226
Total expenses 5,193,834 5,135,159
Changes in net position 76,729 504,382
Net position - beginning 4,514,926 4,010,544
Net position - ending $ 4,591,655 $ 4,514,926

The largest source of revenue is the funds received by the local School District (86%). The primary
source of these funds comes from the State of Florida and flows through the local School District on behalf
of the Charter School. Revenues from state sources for current operations are primarily received
through the Florida Education Finance Program (FEFP) funding formula. The FEFP formula utilizes
student enroliment data and is designed to maintain equity in funding across all Florida school districts
including charter schools. Other significant state revenues from the School District are primarily for
acquisition, construction, leasing, and maintenance of educational facilities. These revenues accounted for
$291,959 or 6% of total revenues. Other significant funding includes revenues from dues and donations
and interest earnings, which amounts to $183,950, or 3% of all revenue.

The Charter School's State appropriations fluctuate with changes in enroliment; there was no change
in enrollment from the prior year with approximately 504 full-time equivalent students.

23



FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CHARTER SCHOOL'’S FUNDS

Major Governmental Funds

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the Charter School. At the end of the current fiscal year,
unassigned fund balance is $2,082,379.

The Grant Special Revenue Fund is a fund restricted for the use of operational Federal, State, and Local
grants. Fund Balance at the end of the current fiscal year is $0 after transfers out to the general fund of
$38,286.

The Capital Project Fund has a total fund balance of $1,194,908, all of which is restricted for the
acquisition, construction, leasing, and maintenance of capital assets.

GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

Budget revisions are due primarily to changes in estimated State funding levels and corresponding
adjustments to planned expenditures to ensure maintenance of an adequate fund balance. Actual revenues
are $2,420 or 0.05% more than budgeted. Actual expenditures are $28,631 less than budgeted.

ECONOMIC FACTORS THAT WILL AFFECT THE FUTURE

The Charter School's economic condition is closely tied to that of the State of Florida. It is expected that
the Charter School will continue to maintain its present level of services and financial health. The initial
contract between the School District of Manatee County, Florida, and the District Board of Trustees of State
College of Florida, Manatee-Sarasota was five (5) years and this contract was renewed by mutual written
agreement of the parties, pursuant to Florida law, in 2014-2015 for fifteen (15) years. The Charter School
opened with 6th and 7th grades and 132 students in 2010. The Charter School was fully enrolled in grades
6-12 and graduated its first class of seniors in 2014. The charter agreement specified a maximum of 540
seats; however, with the designation of a high-performing charter school from the Commission of the Florida
Department of Education, Pam Stewart, this allows for a 15% increase in enrollment. At this time, enroliment
is approximately 504 students. Every year since its opening, the Charter School has earned an "A" grade
from the Florida Department of Education, with the exception of the 2019-20 academic year, when no
grades were given due to COVID-19 pandemic. The Charter School is confident that it can maintain this
excellent standard as it continues to grow and provide an alternative educational opportunity for the
community.

REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION
This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of finances for those who may be interested.
Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for additional information

should be addressed to the Vice President for Finance and Administrative Services, State College of
Florida, Manatee-Sarasota, 5840 26th Street West, Bradenton, Florida 34207.

24



STATE COLLEGE OF FLORIDA COLLEGIATE SCHOOL - BRADENTON CAMPUS

Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable

Capital assets:

Depreciable capital assets, net
Right of use asset
Total assets

Liabilities:

Accounts payable

Accrued expenses

Accrued wages and benefits

Financed purchase obligation - current

A CHARTER SCHOOL AND RESTRICTED FUND OF
STATE COLLEGE OF FLORIDA, MANATEE-SARASOTA

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

June 30, 2025

ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION

Financed purchase obligation - noncurrent

Right of use liability - current

Right of use liability - noncurrent

Compensated absences - current

Compensated absences - noncurrent
Total liabilities

Net position:

Net investment in capital assets
Restricted - capital projects

Unrestricted

Total net position

Total liabilities and net position

Governmental
Activities

$ 3,730,468
24,133

1,391,405
2,198,649

$ 7,344,655

$ 55,401
17,427
211,776
61,330

15,707
278,882
1,919,767
12,847
179,863

2,753,000

1,314,368
1,194,908
2,082,379

4,591,655

$ 7,344,655

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

9

25



STATE COLLEGE OF FLORIDA COLLEGIATE SCHOOL - BRADENTON CAMPUS
A CHARTER SCHOOL AND RESTRICTED FUND OF
STATE COLLEGE OF FLORIDA, MANATEE-SARASOTA
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

Year Ended June 30, 2025

Program Revenues

Net Revenue

Operating Capital (Expense)
Grants and Grants and and Changes in
Functions/Programs Expenses Contributions Contributions Net Position
Governmental activities:
Instruction $ 3,235,904 $ 2,416 $ - $ (3,233,488)
Student support services 148,195 - - (148,195)
Instructional staff training services 10,292 - - (10,292)
Instruction-related technology 269,644 - - (269,644)
School administration 802,057 - 6,145 (795,912)
Facilities acquisition 91,896 - 535,511 443,615
Fiscal services 70,676 - - (70,676)
Food services 65,328 - - (65,328)
Central services 48,213 - - (48,213)
Student transportation services 260,846 - - (260,846)
Operation of plant 182,660 - - (182,660)
Maintenance of plant 2,177 - - (2,177)
Administrative technology services 5,946 - - (5,946)
Total governmental activities $ 5,193,834 $ 2,416 $ 541,656 (4,649,762)
General revenues:

State through School Board of Manatee County 4,542,541

Dues and donations 56,000

Unrestricted investment earnings 127,950

Total general revenues 4,726,491

Change in net position 76,729

Net position at July 1, 2024 4,514,926

Net position at June 30, 2025 $ 4,591,655

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

10
26



STATE COLLEGE OF FLORIDA COLLEGIATE SCHOOL - BRADENTON CAMPUS
A CHARTER SCHOOL AND RESTRICTED FUND OF
STATE COLLEGE OF FLORIDA, MANATEE-SARASOTA
BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

June 30, 2025

General Grant Special Capital
Fund Revenue Fund  Project Fund Total
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 2,558,849 § - $ 1,171,619 $ 3,730,468
Accounts receivable 844 - 23,289 24,133
Total assets $ 2559693 $ - $ 1,194908 $ 3,754,601
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable $ 55401  $ - $ - $ 55,401
Accrued expenses 17,427 - - 17,427
Accrued wages and benefits 211,776 - - 211,776
Total liabilities 284,604 - - 284,604
FUND BALANCES
Restricted - - 1,194,908 1,194,908
Unassigned 2,275,089 - - 2,275,089
Total fund balances 2,275,089 - 1,194,908 3,469,997
Total liabilities and fund balances $ 2,559,693 $ - $ 1,194908 $ 3,754,601

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

11



STATE COLLEGE OF FLORIDA COLLEGIATE SCHOOL - BRADENTON CAMPUS

A CHARTER SCHOOL AND RESTRICTED FUND OF
STATE COLLEGE OF FLORIDA, MANATEE-SARASOTA

RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL
FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

June 30, 2025

Fund balances - total governmental funds

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position are
different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and,
therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds.

Compensated absences are not due and payable in the current period;
therefore, are not reported in the fund statements.

Right of use asset used in governmental activities are not financial resources
and, therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds.

Right of use liability are not due and payable in the current period and,
therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds.

Financed purchase obligations are not due and payable in the current period
and, therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds.

Net position of governmental activities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

12

$

3,469,997

1,391,405

(192,710)

2,198,649

(2,198,649)

(77,037)

$

4,591,655

28



STATE COLLEGE OF FLORIDA COLLEGIATE SCHOOL - BRADENTON CAMPUS
A CHARTER SCHOOL AND RESTRICTED FUND OF
STATE COLLEGE OF FLORIDA, MANATEE-SARASOTA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Year Ended June 30, 2025

Grant
Special Total
General Revenue Capital Governmental
Fund Fund Outlay Fund Funds
Revenues

Federal sources:

Federal through state and local $ 2416  $ - $ - $ 2,416

State sources:

Florida education finance program 4,542,541 - - 4,542,541
Other state revenues 6,145 - 243,552 249,697
Charter school capital outlay - - 291,959 291,959

Local sources:

Dues and donations 56,000 - - 56,000

Interest earnings 127,950 - - 127,950

Total revenues 4,735,052 - 535,511 5,270,563
Expenditures

Instruction 2,857,854 - - 2,857,854

Student support services 148,195 - - 148,195

Instructional staff training services 10,292 - - 10,292

Instruction-related technology 263,795 - 5,849 269,644

School administration 802,057 - - 802,057

Facilities acquisition 36,480 - 55,416 91,896

Fiscal services 70,676 - - 70,676

Food services 65,328 - - 65,328

Central services 48,213 - - 48,213

Student transportation services 260,846 - - 260,846

Operation of plant 162,380 - 20,280 182,660

Administrative technology services 5,946 - - 5,946

Debt service:

Principal 89,217 - - 89,217
Interest 4,077 - - 4,077
Other capital outlay expenditures 407,357 - - 407,357
Total expenditures 5,232,713 - 81,545 5,314,258

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over

(under) expenditures (497,661) - 453,966 (43,695)
Other financing sources (uses)

Transfers 38,286 (38,286) - -
Net change in fund balances (459,375) (38,286) 453,966 (43,695)
Fund balances at July 1, 2024 2,734,464 38,286 740,942 3,513,692
Fund balances at June 30, 2025 $ 2,275,089 $ - $1,194908 $§ 3,469,997

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

13
29



STATE COLLEGE OF FLORIDA COLLEGIATE SCHOOL - BRADENTON CAMPUS
A CHARTER SCHOOL AND RESTRICTED FUND OF
STATE COLLEGE OF FLORIDA, MANATEE-SARASOTA

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

Year Ended June 30, 2025

Excess of revenues over expenditures - total governmental funds $

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities
are different because:

In the statement of activities, the cost of compensated absences is
measured by the amounts earned during the year, while in the
governmental funds expenditures are recognized based on the
amounts actually paid for the compensated absences. This is the
net amount of compensated absences used (earned) in excess of
the amount earned (paid) in the current period

Capital assets are reported in the governmental funds as
expenditures. However, in the statement of activities, the cost of
those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives as
depreciation expense in the current period. The difference is
comprised of:
Capital asset additions 403,287

Depreciation expense (194,765)

The issue of long-term debt provides current financial resources to
governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term
debt consumes current financial resources of governmental funds.
Neither transaction has an effect on net position. The difference is
comprised of:
Proceeds from financed purchase obligations 45,321
Principal payments (89,217)

(43,695)

(44,202)

208,522

(43,896)

Change in net position of governmental activities $

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

14

76,729

30



STATE COLLEGE OF FLORIDA COLLEGIATE SCHOOL - BRADENTON CAMPUS
A CHARTER SCHOOL AND RESTRICTED FUND OF
STATE COLLEGE OF FLORIDA, MANATEE-SARASOTA
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

June 30, 2025

Custodial Fund

ASSETS
Cash $ 23,826
Total assets $ 23,826
FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
Restricted for:
Individuals and organizations $ 23,893
Total net fiduciary position $ 23,893

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

15

31



STATE COLLEGE OF FLORIDA COLLEGIATE SCHOOL - BRADENTON
CAMPUS
A CHARTER SCHOOL AND RESTRICTED FUND OF
STATE COLLEGE OF FLORIDA, MANATEE-SARASOTA
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

Year Ended June 30, 2025

Custodial Fund

ADDITIONS
Membership dues and donations $ 28,368
Total additions 28,368
DEDUCTIONS

Restricted for:

PTO event expenses 23,026
Total deductions 23,026
Change in fiduciary net position 5,342
Fiduciary net position - beginning 18,551
Fiduciary net position - ending $ 23,893

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

16



STATE COLLEGE OF FLORIDA COLLEGIATE SCHOOL - BRADENTON CAMPUS
A CHARTER SCHOOL AND RESTRICTED FUND OF
STATE COLLEGE OF FLORIDA, MANATEE-SARASOTA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2025

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1. Reporting entity

The State College of Florida Collegiate School (the “Charter School”) is a restricted fund of State
College of Florida, Manatee-Sarasota (the “College”). As such, the financial statements of the
Charter School are intended to present the financial position, the changes in financial position of
only that portion of the activities of the College that is attributable to the Charter School. The general
operating rules of the Charter School are contained in Section 1002.33, Florida Statutes. The
Charter School operates under a charter with the sponsoring school district, the School District of
Manatee County, Florida (the “Sponsor”). The initial charter was renewed in 2015 and is effective
through June 30, 2030. The charter may be renewed pursuant to Section 1002.33, Florida Statutes,
for such duration as may be established by mutual written consent of the parties and by successful
completion of the renewal process. At the end of the term of the charter, the Sponsor is required to
notify the Charter School in writing at least 90 days prior to the charter’s expiration. During the term
of the charter, the Sponsor may also terminate the charter if good cause is shown. The Charter
School shall notify the Sponsor in writing at least 90 days prior to the expiration of the charter as to
its intent to renew or not renew.

2. Basis of Presentation

The financial statements of the Charter School have been prepared in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America as applicable to state and local
governments. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-
setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles in the
United States of America. The more significant of the Charter School’s accounting policies are
described below.

3. Government-Wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements, including the statement of net position and the
statement of activities, present information about the Charter School as a whole. These statements
include the nonfiduciary financial activity of the Charter School and report only governmental
activities as the Charter School does not engage in any business type activities.

The government-wide financial statements are prepared using the economic resources
measurement focus. The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses
and program revenues for each function or program of the Charter School's governmental activities.
Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with a service, program, or department
and are thereby clearly identifiable to a particular function. Program revenues include grants and
contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular
program. Revenues that are not classified as program revenues are presented as general
revenues. The comparison of direct expenses with program revenues identifies the extent to which
each governmental function is self-financing or draws from the general revenues of the Charter
School.

4. Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements report detailed information about the Charter School in the
governmental and custodial funds. The focus of governmental fund financial statements is on major
funds rather than reporting funds by type.

17
33



STATE COLLEGE OF FLORIDA COLLEGIATE SCHOOL - BRADENTON CAMPUS
A CHARTER SCHOOL AND RESTRICTED FUND OF
STATE COLLEGE OF FLORIDA, MANATEE-SARASOTA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2025

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4. Fund financial statements (continued)

Because the focus of governmental fund financial statements differs from the focus of government-
wide financial statements, a reconciliation is presented with each of the governmental fund financial
statements.

The Charter School reports the following major governmental funds:
General Fund - to account for all financial resources not required to be accounted for in another
fund, and for certain revenues from the State that are legally restricted to be expended for

specific current operating purposes.

Grant Special Revenue Fund — to account for financial resources that are provided by Federal
grants, and are restricted to be expended for specific purposes.

Capital Project Fund — to account for financial resources that are to be used for educational
capital outlay needs, including new construction, renovation and remodeling projects, financing
right to use assets for school buildings.

Additionally, the Charter School reports the following custodial fund type:

Custodial Fund — to account for resources of the school internal funds which are used to
administer monies collected in connection with parent-teacher organization fund-raisers.

5. Basis of Accounting

Basis of accounting refers to when revenues, expenses and related assets and liabilities are
recognized in the accounts and reported in the financial statements. Specifically, it related to the
timing of the measurements made, regardless of the measurement focus applied.

The government-wide and fiduciary fund financial statements are prepared using the economic
resources measurement focus and accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized when
earned and expenses are recognized when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of the
related cash flows.

The governmental fund financial statements are prepared using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues, except for certain
grant revenues, are recognized when they become measurable and available. Revenues are
considered to be available when they are collectible within the current period or soon enough
thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. The Charter School considers revenues to be
available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal year. When grant terms
provide that the expenditure of resources is the prime factor for determining eligibility for Federal,
State, and other grant resources, revenue is recognized at the time the expenditure is made. Under
the modified accrual basis of accounting, expenditures are generally recognized when the related
fund liability is incurred, except for principal and interest on long-term debt, claims and judgements,
postemployment healthcare benefits, and compensated absences, which are recognized when
due. Allocations of cost, such as depreciation, are not recognized in governmental funds.

18
34



STATE COLLEGE OF FLORIDA COLLEGIATE SCHOOL - BRADENTON CAMPUS
A CHARTER SCHOOL AND RESTRICTED FUND OF
STATE COLLEGE OF FLORIDA, MANATEE-SARASOTA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2025

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

6. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Amounts reported as cash consist of cash on hand and cash in demand deposit accounts. Cash
deposits of the Charter School are held by banks qualified as public depositories under Florida law.
All such deposits are insured by Federal depository insurance, up to specified limits, or
collateralized with securities held in Florida’s multiple financial institution collateral pool required by
Chapter 280, Florida Statutes.

Further discussion of cash and cash equivalents are continued in Note 2.

7. Capital Assets

The Charter School uses the policies of the College for capitalization and depreciation. The Charter
School has a capitalization threshold of $5,000 for tangible personal property and $25,000 for
improvements other than buildings. All capital assets are depreciated using the straight-line method
over their estimated useful lives. Capital assets are depreciated using group depreciation and the
straight-line method over the following useful lives of the asset group:

Estimated Useful

Asset Class Lives (years)
Other structures and improvements 40
Furniture 7
Vehicles, office machines, educational equipment 5
Computer equipment 3

Current year information relative to changes in capital assets is described in a subsequent note.
8. Leases

The Charter School is a lessee for an office lease. The Charter School recognizes a lease liability
and an intangible right-to-use lease asset (lease-asset) in the government-wide financial
statements. At the commencement of a lease, the Charter School initially measures the lease
liability at the present value of payments expected to be made during the lease term. Subsequently,
the lease liability is reduced by the principal portion of the lease payments made. The lease asset
is initially measured as the initial amount of the lease liability, adjusted for lease payments made at
or before the lease commencement date, plus certain initial direct costs. Subsequently, the lease
asset is amortized on a straight-line basis over the useful life.

9. Net Position

Net position represents the difference between assets and liabilities. Net investment in capital
assets consist of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding
balance of any borrowings used for the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets.
Net position is reported as restricted when there are limitations imposed on its use either through
enabling legislation or through external restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors, laws, or
regulations.

19
35



STATE COLLEGE OF FLORIDA COLLEGIATE SCHOOL - BRADENTON CAMPUS
A CHARTER SCHOOL AND RESTRICTED FUND OF
STATE COLLEGE OF FLORIDA, MANATEE-SARASOTA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2025

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

9. Net Position (continued)

Net position not reported as net investment in capital assets or restricted reported as unrestricted
net position. When both restricted and unrestricted amounts of net position are available for use for
expenses incurred, it is the Charter School's policy to use restricted amounts first and then
unrestricted amounts as they are needed.

10. Fund Balance

The Charter School follows the provisions of Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB)
Statement No. 54, “Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions”.
Accordingly, in the fund financial statements, governmental funds report fund classifications that
comprise a hierarchy based primarily on the extent to which the Charter School is bound to honor
constraints on the specific purposes for which amounts in those funds can be spent. Fund balance
is reported in five components: non-spendable, restricted, committed, assigned, and unassigned.

Non-Spendable Fund Balance — Amounts that are (a) not in spendable form or (b) legally or
contractually required to be maintained intact. “Not in spendable form” includes items that are
not expected to be converted to cash (such as inventories and prepaid amounts) and items
resale, the corpus (or principal) of a permanent fund is an example of an amount that is legally
or contractually required to be maintained intact. Non-spendable fund balance was zero in the
general fund as of June 30, 2025.

Restricted Fund Balance — Amounts that can be spent only for specific purposes stipulated by
(a) external resource providers such as creditors (by debt covenants), grantors, contributors,
or laws or regulations of other governments, or (b) imposed by law through constitutional
provisions or enabling legislation. Restricted fund balance consists of $1,194,908 in the capital
project fund as of June 30, 2025.

Committed Fund Balance — Amounts that can be used only for the specific purposes
determined by a formal action (resolution) of the Board of Trustees, the Charter School’s
highest level of decision-making authority. Commitments may be changed or lifted only by the
Board of Trustees taking the same formal action (resolution) that imposed the constraint
originally. Resources accumulated pursuant to stabilization arrangements sometimes are
reported in this category. There is no committed fund balance as of June 30, 2025.

Assigned Fund Balance — Includes spendable fund balance amounts established by the
administration of the Charter School that are intended to be used for specific purposes that are
neither considered restricted nor committed. A zero balance was in the assigned fund balance
in the general fund as of June 30, 2025.

Unassigned Fund Balance — Unassigned fund balance is the residual classification for the
general fund. This classification represents fund balance that has not been restricted,
committed, or assigned to specific purposes within the general fund. Unassigned fund balance
may also include negative balances for governmental funds if expenditures exceed amounts
restricted, committed, or assigned for those specific purposes. Unassigned fund balance
consists of $2,275,089 in the general fund as of June 30, 2025.

20
36



STATE COLLEGE OF FLORIDA COLLEGIATE SCHOOL - BRADENTON CAMPUS
A CHARTER SCHOOL AND RESTRICTED FUND OF
STATE COLLEGE OF FLORIDA, MANATEE-SARASOTA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2025

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

10. Fund Balance (continued)

Unassigned Fund Balance (continued) — The Charter School expends restricted amounts first
when both restricted and unrestricted fund balances are available unless there are legal
documents that prohibit doing this, such as in grant agreements requiring dollar for dollar
spending. Additionally, the Charter School would first use committed fund balance, followed by
assigned fund balance and then unassigned fund balance, when expenditures are incurred for
purposes for which amounts in any of the unrestricted fund balance classifications could be
used.

11. Due to and Due from Other Funds

Amounts reported as due to and due from other funds are for interfund loans between General
Fund, Grant Special Revenue Fund, and the Capital Project Fund.

12. Revenue Sources

Revenue for current operations is received primarily from the School District of Manatee County,
Florida, pursuant to the funding provisions included in the Charter. In accordance with the funding
provisions of the Charter and Section 1002.33(18)(b), Florida Statutes, the Charter School reports
its Student’s enroliment to the Sponsor. Under provisions of Section 1011.62, Florida Statutes, the
Sponsor reports the number of student enroliments and related data to the Florida Department of
Education (DOE) for funding through the Florida Education Finance Program (FEFP). Funding for
the Charter School is adjusted during the year to reflect revised calculations of actual student
enroliment. The State provides financial assistance to administer certain categorical educational
programs. State Board of Education rules require that revenue earmarked for certain programs be
expended only for the program for which the money is provided, and require that the money not
expended as of the close of the fiscal year be carried forward into the following year to be expended
for the same categorical educational programs. The Department generally requires that categorical
educational program revenues be accounted for in the General Fund.

The Charter School may receive federal awards for the enhancement of various educational
programs. This assistance is generally based on applications submitted to and approved by various
granting agencies. These federal awards may have eligibility requirements whereby the issuance
of grant funds is withheld until such eligible expenditures are incurred. Revenues for these awards
are recognized only to the extent that eligible expenditures are incurred.

13. Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from these
estimates.

21
37



STATE COLLEGE OF FLORIDA COLLEGIATE SCHOOL - BRADENTON CAMPUS
A CHARTER SCHOOL AND RESTRICTED FUND OF
STATE COLLEGE OF FLORIDA, MANATEE-SARASOTA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2025

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

14. Accounting Pronouncement Implemented

GASB issued Statement No. 102, Certain Risk Disclosures, in December 2023. GASB 102 enhanced
transparency by requiring disclosures about risks related to a government’s vulnerabilities due to
certain concentrations or constraints. A concentration refers to a lack of diversity in significant inflows
or outflows of resources, while a constraint is a limitation imposed by external parties or formal action
of the government’s highest decision-making authority. The Statement required disclosure when such
conditions make the government vulnerable to a substantial impact and when related events have
occurred, begun to occur, or are more likely than not to occur within 12 months of the issuance of the
financial statements. The provisions of GASB 102 were implemented in the year ended June 30,
2025. The adoption of this standard had no significant impact on the Charter School’s financial
statements.

15. New GASB Pronouncement

GASB issued Statement No. 103, Financial Reporting Model Improvements, in April 2024. GASB 103
aims to enhance the effectiveness of the financial reporting model by improving key components
such as Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A), the presentation of proprietary fund
statements, and the reporting of unusual or infrequent items. It also introduces standardized
definitions for operating and nonoperating revenues and expenses, and requires separate
presentation of major component units and budgetary comparison information as required
supplementary information (RSI). The provisions of GASB 103 are effective for fiscal years beginning
after June 15, 2025 and will be implemented in the year ended June 30, 2026. The Charter School
is evaluating the effect of this new standard on its financial statements.

GASB issued Statement No. 104, Disclosure of Certain Capital Assets, in September 2024. GASB
104 enhances transparency by requiring separate disclosures of specific types of capital assets in
the notes to financial statements. These include lease assets (GASB 87), intangible right-to-use
assets (GASB 94), subscription-based IT assets (GASB 96), and other intangible assets, all disclosed
by major class. Additionally, GASB 104 introduces disclosure requirements for capital assets held for
sale - defined as assets the government has decided to sell and for which it is probable the sale will
be finalized within one year of the financial statement date. Governments must disclose the historical
cost, accumulated depreciation, and any related debt for which such assets are pledged as collateral.
The provisions of GASB 104 are effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2025 and will be
implemented in the year ended June 30, 2026. The Charter School is evaluating the effect of this
new standard on its financial statements.

22
38



STATE COLLEGE OF FLORIDA COLLEGIATE SCHOOL - BRADENTON CAMPUS
A CHARTER SCHOOL AND RESTRICTED FUND OF
STATE COLLEGE OF FLORIDA, MANATEE-SARASOTA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2025

NOTE 2 — CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and investments consisted of the following at June 30, 2025:

Bank deposits $ 1,682,778
Florida State Board of Administration -
Local Government Investment Pool 2,047,690
Total cash and cash equivalents $ 3,730,468

The Charter School does not currently maintain individual accounts with either financial institutions or
brokerages titled under its name. Cash and cash equivalents as presented in these financial statements
reflect the Charter School's equity in the College's pooled cash and cash equivalent balances. The Charter
School does not have its own investment policy.

The Charter School's excess deposits are invested entirely in the State of Florida State Board
Administration (SBA) Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP). This external investment pool, Florida
PRIME, qualifies for making the election to measure all of its investments at amortized cost for financial
reporting purposes. The pool's participants also measure their investments in this external investment pool
at amortized cost for financial reporting purposes. Thus, the Charter School's position in Florida PRIME is
measured at amortized cost. Florida PRIME is rated by Standard & Poor's with a current rating of AAAm.
The investment policy of Florida PRIME is to manage the weighted average maturity to 50 days as of June
30, 2025.

Qualifying local government investment pools in the state of Florida must comply with applicable Florida
statutory requirements. Chapter 218.409(8)(a), Florida Statutes, states that the principal balance within a
LGIP trust fund is subject to withdrawal at any time. However, the Executive Director may, in good faith, on
the occurrence of an event that has a material impact on liquidity or operations of the trust fund, for 48
hours limit contributions to or withdrawals from the trust fund to ensure that the Board can invest in the
monies entrusted to it in exercising its fiduciary responsibility. Such action must be immediately disclosed
to all participants, the Trustees, the Joint Legislative Auditing Committee, the Investment Advisory Council,
and the Participant Local Government Advisory Council.

With regard to liquidity fees, Chapter 218.409(4) provides authority for an LGIP to impose penalties for early
withdrawal, subject to disclosure in the enrollment materials of the amount and purpose of such fees. At
present, no such disclosure has been made by the SBA.

At June 30, 2025, there were no redemption fees or maximum transaction amounts, or any other
requirements that serve to limit a participant's daily access to 100% of their account value within Florida
PRIME.

23
39



STATE COLLEGE OF FLORIDA COLLEGIATE SCHOOL - BRADENTON CAMPUS
A CHARTER SCHOOL AND RESTRICTED FUND OF
STATE COLLEGE OF FLORIDA, MANATEE-SARASOTA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2025

NOTE 3 — CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity at June 30, 2025, was as follows:

Balance at Balance at
July 1, June 30,
Governmental Activities 2024 Additions Transfers Deletions 2025
Capital assets - nondepreciable:
Construction in progress $ 73507 $ - $ (73,507) $ - $ -
Capital assets - depreciable:
Furniture, fixtures, and equipment 563,979 182,496 - - 746,475
Leasehold improvements 1,075,668 220,791 73,507 - 1,369,966
Total depreciable capital assets 1,639,647 403,287 - - 2,116,441
Accumulated depreciation:
Furniture, fixtures, and equipment 427,216 159,443 - - 586,659
Leasehold improvements 103,055 35,322 - - 138,377
Total accumulated depreciation 530,271 194,765 - - 725,036
Total capital assets, net $ 1,109,376 $ 208,522 $ - $ - $ 1,391,405

Governmental Activities

Depreciation expense totaling $194,765 for the year ended June 30, 2025 was allocated to governmental
activities, $1,052 for Instruction, $31,030 for Facilities Acquisition, $1,096 for School Administration and
Construction, and $161,587 for Instructional Related Technology.

NOTE 4 - FINANCED PURCHASE OBLIGATIONS

The Charter School has entered into three agreements with Apple, Inc. to finance the purchase of computer
equipment. These financed purchase obligations are effective for three years, with payments continuing
through 2027 and have interest rates of 7.99%, 3.99%, and 3.78% As of June 30, 2025, the value of these
financed purchase obligations is $77,036. The Charter School is required to make annual principal and
interest payments for the year ended 2026 and 2027 in the amounts of $63,247 and $17,428, respectively.

NOTE 5 — CONTRACT FOR SERVICES

The Charter School has an agreement with the Wiliam Monroe Rowlett Academy for Arts and
Communication Inc., to provide transportation for the Charter School's students for the school year.
Payment is based on annual fee per student. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2025, expenses reported
pursuant to this agreement was $234,500.

24
40



STATE COLLEGE OF FLORIDA COLLEGIATE SCHOOL - BRADENTON CAMPUS
A CHARTER SCHOOL AND RESTRICTED FUND OF
STATE COLLEGE OF FLORIDA, MANATEE-SARASOTA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2025

NOTE 6 - COMPENSATED ABSENCES

The following is a summary of changes in compensated absences for the year ended June 30, 2025.

Balance at
Balance at June 30, Due Within
Governmental Activities July 1, 2024 Additions Reductions 2025 One Year

Compensated Absences Payable $ 148,509 $ 107,621 $ (63419) $ 192,711 $ 12,847

Charter School employees accrue vacation and sick leave based on length of service, subject to certain
limitations regarding the amount that will be paid upon termination. The Charter School reports a
liability for the accrued leave; however, State appropriations fund only the portion of accrued leave that
is used or paid in the current fiscal year. Although the Charter School expects the liability to be funded
primarily from future appropriations, generally accepted accounting principles do not permit the
recording of a receivable in anticipation of future appropriations. At June 30, 2025, the estimated
liability for compensated absences totaled $192,711. Of this amount, $12,847 is estimated to be paid in
the coming fiscal year. For governmental activities, compensated absences are generally liquidated with
resources of the General Fund.

NOTE 7 - ENCUMBRANCES

Appropriations in governmental funds are encumbered upon issuance of purchase orders for goods and
services. Even though appropriations lapse at the end of the fiscal year, unfilled purchase orders of the
current year are carried forward and the next year's appropriations are likewise encumbered.

Fund balances are restricted, committed, or assigned at fiscal year-end to report an amount likely to be
expended from the 2024-25 fiscal year budget as a result of purchase orders outstanding at June 30, 2025.
At June 30, 2025, a zero balance was accounted for in assigned fund balance for purchase orders.

Because revenues of grants accounted for in the General Fund are not recognized until expenditures are
incurred, these grant funds generally do not accumulate fund balances. Accordingly, no reserve for
encumbrances are reported for grant funds. There were no purchase orders outstanding for grants
accounted for in the General Funds at June 30, 2025.

NOTE 8 —- CONCENTRATIONS

As stated in a prior note, the Charter School receives revenue for current operations primarily from the
State of Florida through the Sponsor. The Charter School maintains deposits in a financial institution that
insures its deposits with the FDIC. Periodically, bank balances may exceed the insured limits which
presents a credit risk to the company. The Company has not experienced any losses on these accounts.
The following is a schedule of the revenue for the 2024-25 fiscal year.

Source Amount
Florida Education Finance Program  $ 4,542,541
Other State Revenue 6,145
Charter School Capital Outlay 291,959
Total State Revenues $ 4,840,645

Accounting policies relating to certain state revenue sources are described in Note 1.

25
41



STATE COLLEGE OF FLORIDA COLLEGIATE SCHOOL - BRADENTON CAMPUS
A CHARTER SCHOOL AND RESTRICTED FUND OF
STATE COLLEGE OF FLORIDA, MANATEE-SARASOTA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2025

NOTE 9 — STATE RETIREMENT PLANS
General Information about the Florida Retirement System (FRS)

The FRS was created in Chapter 121, Florida Statutes, to provide a defined benefit pension plan for
participating public employees. The FRS was amended in 1998 to add the Deferred Retirement Option
Program (DROP) under the defined benefit plan and amended in 2000 to provide a defined contribution
plan alternative to the defined benefit plan for FRS members effective July 1, 2002. This integrated defined
contribution pension plan is the FRS Investment Plan. Chapter 121, Florida Statutes, also provides for
nonintegrated, optional retirement programs in lieu of the FRS to certain members of the Senior
Management Service Class employed by the State and faculty and specified employees of State colleges.
Chapter 112, Florida Statutes, established the Health Insurance Subsidy (HIS) Program, a cost-sharing
multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan to assist retired members of any State administered
retirement system in paying the costs of health insurance.

Essentially all regular employees of the College are eligible to enroll as members of the State-
administered FRS. Provisions relating to the FRS are established by Chapters 121 and 122, Florida
Statutes; Chapter 112, Part IV, Florida Statutes; Chapter 238, Florida Statutes; and FRS Rules, Chapter
60S, Florida Administrative Code; wherein eligibility, contributions, and benefits are defined and described
in detail. Such provisions may be amended at any time by further action from the Florida Legislature. The
FRS is a single retirement system administered by the Florida Department of Management Services,
Division of Retirement, and consists of two cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit plans and other
nonintegrated programs. A comprehensive annual financial report of the FRS, which includes its financial
statements, required supplementary information, actuarial report, and other relevant information, is
available from the Florida Department of Management Services Web site (www.dms.myflorida.com).
Charter School contributions to the FRS totaled $163,882. The liability and expense for pension benefits
are reported in the financial statements of the State College of Florida, Manatee-Sarasota.

NOTE 10 - OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB)

The Charter School provides post-employment health care benefits in accordance with Section 112.0801,
Florida Statutes, to all employees who retire from the Charter School. The Charter School is required to
provide health care coverage at cost to all retirees but does not pay any portion of the premium for the
retiree to participate in the Charter School's group health care plan. The liability and expense for other
post-employment benefits, calculated in accordance with GASB Statement No. 75 Accounting and Financial
Reporting for Post-employment Benefits Other Than Pensions, are reported in the financial statements of
the State College of Florida Manatee-Sarasota.

26
42


www.dms.myflorida.com

STATE COLLEGE OF FLORIDA COLLEGIATE SCHOOL - BRADENTON CAMPUS
A CHARTER SCHOOL AND RESTRICTED FUND OF
STATE COLLEGE OF FLORIDA, MANATEE-SARASOTA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2025

NOTE 11 — RISK MANAGEMENT PROGRAM

The College is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of
assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The College provided coverage
for these risks primarily through the Florida College System Risk Management Consortium (Consortium),
which was created under School of Section 1001.64(27), Florida Statutes, by the boards of trustees of the
Florida public colleges for the purpose of joining a cooperative effort to develop, implement, and participate
in a coordinated statewide college risk management program. The Consortium is self-sustaining through
member assessments (premiums) and purchases excess insurance through commercial companies for
claims in excess of specified amounts. Insurance coverage obtained through the Consortium included fire
and extended property, general and automobile liability, workers' compensation, health, life, and other
liability coverage. Settled claims resulting from these risks have not exceeded commercial coverage in any
of the past three fiscal years. The Charter School, as part of the College, is covered under the Consortium's
plan.

NOTE 12 — RELATED PARTIES

Building Lease

Effective July 1, 2022, the Charter School entered into a 10-year lease agreement with the College for the
rental of the Charter School building. Lease charges are $365,490 per year. As of June 30, 2025, the
present value of the lease obligation is $2,198,649. The lease asset and liability were calculated utilizing
risk-free discount rate (3.87%) as determined by the IRS, according to the Charter School’s elected policy.

Future minimum lease payments and the present value of the minimum lease payments as of June 30, are
as follows:

Principal Interest Total
2026 $ 278,883 $ 86,613 $ 365,496
2027 289,869 75,627 365,496
2028 301,288 64,208 365,496
2029 313,157 52,339 365,496
2030 325,493 40,003 365,496
Thereafter 689,959 41,033 730,992

$ 2,198,649 $ 359,823 $ 2,558,472

Dual Enrollment

Pursuant to Florida Statute 1007.27(21)(n)1., the Charter School shall pay the College the standard tuition
rate per credit hour for dual enroliment courses taken on the College's campus. For the 2024-25 school
year, $296,965 was charged by the College to the Charter School for dual enroliment.

27
43



STATE COLLEGE OF FLORIDA COLLEGIATE SCHOOL - BRADENTON CAMPUS
A CHARTER SCHOOL AND RESTRICTED FUND OF
STATE COLLEGE OF FLORIDA, MANATEE-SARASOTA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2025

NOTE 13 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

In accordance with GASB Codification Section 2250.106, the Charter School has evaluated subsequent
events and transactions for potential recognition or disclosure through September 22, 2025 which is the
date the financial statements were available be issued.

28
44



STATE COLLEGE OF FLORIDA COLLEGIATE SCHOOL - BRADENTON CAMPUS
A CHARTER SCHOOL AND RESTRICTED FUND OF
STATE COLLEGE OF FLORIDA, MANATEE-SARASOTA
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE - GENERAL FUND

Year Ended June 30, 2025

Budgeted Amounts

Actual Variance with
Original Final Amounts Final Budget
Revenues

Federal sources:

Federal through state and local 34,536 20,879 $ 2,416 $ (18,463)

State sources:

Florida education finance program 4,636,099 4,584,535 4,542,541 (41,994)
Other state revenues - - 6,145 6,145
Local sources:
Dues and donations - - 56,000 56,000
Unrestricted interest earnings - - 127,950 127,950
Other local revenue 157,000 127,218 - (127,218)
Total revenues 4,827,635 4,732,632 4,735,052 2,420
Expenditures

Instruction 2,913,689 2,884,837 2,857,854 26,983

Student support services 147,801 146,338 148,195 (1,857)

Instructional staff training services 3,455 3,421 10,292 (6,871)

Instruction-related technology 169,967 168,284 263,795 (95,511)

School administration 917,534 908,449 802,057 106,392

Facilities acquisition 33,724 33,390 36,480 (3,090)

Fiscal services 71,891 71,179 70,676 503

Food services 64,440 63,802 65,328 (1,526)

Central services 269 257 48,213 (47,956)

Student transportation services 267,046 264,402 260,846 3,556

Operation of plant 308,944 305,885 162,380 143,505

Administrative technology services 2,622 2,596 5,946 (3,350)

Debt service:

Principal 98,761 97,784 89,217 8,567
Interest - - 4,077 (4,077)
Other capital outlay expenditures 10,172 310,720 407,357 (96,637)
Total expenditures 5,010,315 5,261,344 5,232,713 (28,631)
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
(under) expenditures (182,680) (528,712) (497,661) 31,051
Other financing sources (uses)

Transfers - - 38,286 38,286
Net change in fund balances (182,680) (528,712) (459,375) 69,337
Fund balances at July 1, 2024 2,399,310 2,506,651 2,734,464 (227,813)
Fund balances at June 30, 2025 2,216,630 1,977,939 $ 2,275,089 $ 297,150

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
45

29



STATE COLLEGE OF FLORIDA COLLEGIATE SCHOOL - BRADENTON CAMPUS
A CHARTER SCHOOL AND RESTRICTED FUND OF
STATE COLLEGE OF FLORIDA, MANATEE-SARASOTA
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE - CAPITAL OUTLAY FUND

Year Ended June 30, 2025

Budgeted Amounts
Actual Variance with
Original Final Amounts Final Budget
Revenues
State sources:
Charter school capital outlay $ 292,009 $ 292,009 $ 291,959 $ (50)
Capital improvement tax 243,551 243,551 243,552 1
Total revenues 535,560 535,560 535,511 (50)
Expenditures
Facilities acquisition 362,352 468,523 55,416 413,107
Operation of plant 84,500 - 20,280 (20,280)
Instruction-related technology - - 5,849 (5,849)
Total expenditures 446,852 468,523 81,545 386,978
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
(under) expenditures 88,708 67,037 453,966 386,929
Net change in fund balance 88,708 67,037 453,966 386,929
Fund balance at July 1, 2024 740,842 740,942 740,942 -
Fund balance at June 30, 2025 $ 829,550 $ 807,979 $ 1,194,908 $ 386,929

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

30 46



REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

47



STATE COLLEGE OF FLORIDA COLLEGIATE SCHOOL — BRADENTON CAMPUS
A CHARTER SCHOOL AND RESTRICTED FUND OF
STATE COLLEGE OF FLORIDA, MANATEE-SARASOTA

NOTE TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION
June 30, 2025

NOTE A — BUDGETARY VARIANCES IN GRANT SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

The Charter School had a revenue variance in the Capital Outlay Revenue Fund of $50. The Charter School
will budget grant revenues and expenditure at the amount accessible during the fiscal year, regardless if those

funds will actually be received and expended.

31
48



Partners

W. Ed Moss, Jr.
Joe M. Krusick
Ric Perez

Cor1 G. Novinich
Renee C. Varga

Winter Park, FL. 32789
501 S. New York Ave.
Phone; 407-644-5811
www.mosskrusick.com

Clearwater, FL 33761
29605 US Hwy 19 North
Phone: 727-785-7460

N. Palm Beach, F1. 33408
631 US Highway One
Phone: 561-848-9300

Miami Lakes, FL 33016
7900 NW 155th Street
Phone: 305-445-7956

Miramar, F1. 33025
11450 Interchange Circle
Phone: 954-435-4222

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT
OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT
AUDITING STANDARDS

Board of Trustees
State College of Florida Collegiate School, Bradenton Campus
Bradenton, Florida

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial
statements of the governmental activities and each major fund of State College of Florida
Collegiate School, Bradenton Campus (the “Charter School”), as of and for the year ended
June 30, 2025, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise
the Charter School’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated
September 22, 2025.

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Charter
School’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing
our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Charter School’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Charter School’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not
allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material
weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there
is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements
will not be prevented or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is
a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a
material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control
that might be material weaknesses or, significant deficiencies. Given these limitations,
during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to
be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may
exist that were not identified.

32

Moss, Krusick & Associates, LLC 9



Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Charter School’s financial statements are free from
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective
of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances
of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or on
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not
suitable for any other purpose.

Moss, Krusick & Associates, LLC

Winter Park, Florida
September 22, 2025

33
50



Partners

W. Ed Moss, Jr.
Joe M. Krusick
Ric Perez

Cor1 G. Novinich
Renee C. Varga

Winter Park, FL. 32789
501 S. New York Ave.
Phone; 407-644-5811
www.mosskrusick.com

Clearwater, FL 33761
29605 US Hwy 19 North
Phone: 727-785-7460

N. Palm Beach, F1. 33408
631 US Highway One
Phone: 561-848-9300

Miami Lakes, FL 33016
7900 NW 155th Street
Phone: 305-445-7956

Miramar, F1. 33025
11450 Interchange Circle
Phone: 954-435-4222

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

MANAGEMENT LETTER

Board of Trustees
State College of Florida Collegiate School, Bradenton Campus
Bradenton, Florida

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the financial statements of the State College of Florida Collegiate Schools,
Bradenton Campus (the “Charter School”), as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2025,
and have issued our report thereon dated September 22, 2025.

Auditor’s Responsibility

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States and
Chapter 10.850, Rules of the Auditor General.

Other Reporting Requirements

We have issued our Independent Auditor's Report on Internal Control over Financial
Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of the Financial
Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards. Disclosures in
those reports, which are dated September 22, 2025, should be considered in conjunction with
this management letter.

Prior Audit Findings

Section 10.854(1)(e)1, Rules of the Auditor General, requires that we determine whether or
not corrective actions have been taken to address findings and recommendations made in
the preceding annual financial audit report. There were no prior year findings.

Official Title

Section 10.854(1)(e)5, Rules of the Auditor General, requires that the name or official title of
the entity and the school code assigned by the Florida Department of Education be disclosed
in this management letter. The official title and the school code assigned by the Florida
Department of Education of the entity is State College of Florida Collegiate School —
Bradenton Campus and 412141.

Financial Condition and Management

Sections 10.854(1)(e)2. and 10.855(11), Rules of the Auditor General, require us to apply
appropriate procedures and communicate whether or not the Charter School has met one
or more of the condition(s) described in Section 218.503(1), Florida Statutes, and to identify
the specific conditions met. In connection with our audit, we determined that the Charter
School did not meet any of the conditions described in Section 218.503(1), Florida Statutes

34

Moss, Krusick & Associates, LLC o1



Financial Condition and Management (continued)

Pursuant to Sections 10.854(1)(e)6.a. and 10.855(12), Rules of the Auditor General, we applied financial
condition assessment procedures for the Charter School. It is management’s responsibility to monitor the
School’s financial condition, and our financial condition assessment was based in part on representations made
by management and the review of the financial information provided by same.

Section 10.854(1)(e)3, Rules of the Auditor General, requires that we communicate any recommendations to
improve financial management. In connection with our audit, we did not have any such recommendations.

Transparency

Sections 10.854(1)(e)7 and 10.855(13), Rules of the Auditor General, require us to apply appropriate procedures
and communicate the results of our determination as to whether the Charter School maintains on its website the
information specified in Section 1002.33(9)(p), Florida Statutes. In connection with our audit, we determined that
the Charter School maintained on its website the information specified in section 1002.33(9)(p), Florida Statutes.

Additional Matters

Section 10.854(1)(e)4, Rules of the Auditor General, requires us to communicate noncompliance with provisions
of contracts or grant agreements, or fraud, waste, or abuse that have occurred, or ia likely to have occurred, that
have an effect on the financial statements that is less than material but which warrants the attention of those
charged with governance. In connection with our audit, we did not note any such findings.

Purpose of this Letter

Our management letter is intended solely for the information and use of Legislative Auditing Committee,
members of the Florida Senate and the Florida House of Representatives, The Florida Auditor General, Federal
and other granting agencies, the board of trustees, applicable management, and the School Board of Manatee
County, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Moss, Krusick & Associates, LLC

Winter Park, Florida
September 22, 2025

35
52



MANAGEMENT FINDINGS, RECOMMENDATIONS, AND RESPONSES

For the year ended June 30, 2025, there are no management recommendations.

36

53



Exhibit F

State College of Florida Collegiate
School, Venice Campus

Basic Financial Statements and
Supplemental Information

For the year ended
June 30, 2025

54



TABLE OF CONTENTS

Page
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 1-3
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 4-8
BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Statement of Net Position 9
Statement of Activities 10
Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds 11
Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds
to the Statement of Net Position 12
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds 13
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds to
the Statement of Activities 14
Statement of Fiduciary Net Position 15
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position 16
Notes to Financial Statements 17-27
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual - General Fund 28
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual — Capital Outlay Fund 29
Note to Required Supplemental Information 30
SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN
AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 31-32
MANAGEMENT LETTER 33-34

MANAGEMENT FINDINGS, RECOMMENDATIONS, AND RESPONSES 35

55



Partners

W. Ed Moss, Jr.
Joe M. Krusick
Ric Perez

Cor1 G. Novinich
Renee C. Varga

Winter Park, FL. 32789
501 S. New York Ave.
Phone; 407-644-5811
www.mosskrusick.com

Clearwater, FL 33761
29605 US Hwy 19 North
Phone: 727-785-7460

N. Palm Beach, F1. 33408
631 US Highway One
Phone: 561-848-9300

Miami Lakes, FL 33016
7900 NW 155th Street
Phone: 305-445-7956

Miramar, F1. 33025
11450 Interchange Circle
Phone: 954-435-4222

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Board of Trustees
State College of Florida Collegiate School — Venice Campus
Venice, Florida

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinions

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities and
each major fund of State College of Florida Collegiate School — Venice Campus (the “Charter
School”), a restricted fund of State College of Florida, Manatee-Sarasota, as of and for the
year ended June 30, 2025, and the related notes to the financial statements, which
collectively comprise the Charter School’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of
contents.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities and each major fund,
of the Charter School as of June 30, 2025, and the respective changes in financial position,
and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinions

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be
independent of the Charter School and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in
accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinions.

Emphasis of Matter

As discussed in Note 1, the financial statements of the Charter School are intended to present
the financial position, and the changes in financial position, of only that portion of the
governmental activities, and each major fund, of the State College of Florida that is
attributable to the transactions of the Charter School. They do not purport to, and do not,
present fairly the financial position of the State College of Florida, as of June 30, 2025, the
changes in its financial position, or, where applicable, its cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
Our opinions are not modified with respect to this matter.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America, and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant
to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

1

Moss, Krusick & Associates, LLC %



Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements (continued)

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events,
considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Charter School’s ability to continue as a going
concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any currently known information that
may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government
Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are
considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence
the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing
Standards, we:

e Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Charter School’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

e Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that
raise substantial doubt about the Charter School’s ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable
period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters that
we identified during the audit.

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s
discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison information on pages 4-8 and 28-30 be presented to
supplement the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and, although
not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who
considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an
appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the
required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information
and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not
express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us
with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

57



Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated September 30,
2025, on our consideration of the School’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters.
The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Charter School’s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of
an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Charter School’'s
internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Moss, Krusick & Associates, LLC

Winter Park, Florida
September 30, 2025

58



Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Management’s discussion and analysis (MD&A) provides an overview of the financial position and
activities of the State College of Florida Collegiate School, Venice Campus (the “Charter School”) for the
fiscal years ended June 30, 2025 and 2024. This discussion has been prepared by management and the
information contained in the MD&A is intended to highlight significant transactions, events and conditions,
and should be read in conjunction with the School’s financial statements and notes thereto. Responsibility
for the completeness and fairness of this information rests with the school’s management. This discussion
and analysis contain financial activities of the school as a restricted fund of the State College of Florida,
Manatee-Sarasota (the “College”).

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

For the year ended June 30, 2025, the Charter School's revenues exceeded expenses by $367,318, due
to increased student enrollment in fiscal year 2025 that began in fiscal year 2024. The Charter School
conducted operations for the 2024-25 academic year with revenues of $3,520,585.

The Charter School commenced operations during the year beginning July 1, 2019. Start-up activities
began in fiscal year 2018-19, and students first enrolled during the 2019-20 academic year. For the year
ended June 30, 2024, the Charter School's revenues exceeded expenses by $479,493 resulting in an
ending net position of $1,723,969. The Charter School conducted operations for the 2023-24 academic
year with revenues of $2,697,741.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Charter School’s basic financial statements consists of three components:
- Government-wide financial statements
- Fund financial statements
- Notes to financial statements

The Charter School is a public charter school sponsored by the School District of Sarasota County,
Florida. The initial charter became effective July 1, 2019 and continues until June 30, 2034. The
Charter School is organized pursuant to Section 1002.33, Florida Statutes, and is governed by the
District Board of Trustees of the State College of Florida, Manatee-Sarasota, who are appointed by
the Governor of the State of Florida and confirmed by the Senate in regular session.

The Charter School is operated by the College and is housed on the College's Venice Campus. It is
designed to provide students with the opportunity to graduate simultaneously with a high school
diploma and an Associate in Arts (AA) degree. Students will explore their potential, discover the
importance of higher education, and receive personalized attention in a close-knit school setting.

The Charter School is recognized as a separate restricted fund in the accounting system of the College.
The State of Florida Auditor General's Office audits the College's financial statements. The College
adheres to internal control procedures contained in the Board of Trustees Rules and the Accounting
Manual of the Florida College System. As a restricted fund of the College, the Charter School is subject
to the same internal control procedures as the College, and in addition, to the standards contained in the
Financial and Program Cost Accounting and Reporting for Florida Schools (Red Book) and other
stipulated guidelines for Charter Schools.

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements provide both short-term and long-term information about the
Charter School's overall financial condition in a manner similar to those of a private sector business. The
statements include a statement of net position and a statement of activities that are designed to provide
consolidated financial information about the governmental activities of the primary government presented
on the accrual basis of accounting.

59



Government-Wide Financial Statements (continued)

The statement of net position provides information about the Charter School's financial position, its assets
and liabilities, using an economic resources measurement focus. The difference between the assets and
liabilities, the net position, is a measure of the financial health of the Charter School. The statement
of activities presents information about the change in the Charter School's net position, the results of
operations, during the fiscal year. An increase or decrease in net position is an indication of whether
the Charter School's financial health is improving or deteriorating.

All of the Charter School's activities and services are reported in the government-wide financial
statements as governmental activities. The Charter School's governmental activities include
instruction, student support services, instructional support services, administrative support, facility
maintenance, and student transportation services. Revenues for current operations are received primarily
from the Sponsor pursuant to the funding provisions included in the charter.

Fund Financial Statements

Fund financial statements are one of the components of the basic financial statements. A fund is a
grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been
segregated for specific activities or objectives. The Charter School uses fund accounting to ensure and
demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements and prudent fiscal management.
Certain funds are established by law while others are created by legal agreements, such as bond
covenants. Fund financial statements provide more detailed information about the Charter School's
financial activities, focusing on its most significant or "major" funds rather than fund types. This is in
contrast to the entity wide perspective contained in the government-wide statements. All of the
operations of the Charter School are presented in governmental funds only.

Governmental Funds: Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions
reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, the
governmental funds utilize a spendable financial resources measurement focus rather than the
economic resources measurement focus found in the government-wide financial statements. The
financial resources measurement focus allows the governmental fund statements to provide
information on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as balances of
spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year.

The governmental fund statements provide a detailed short-term view that may be used to evaluate
the Charter School's near-term financing requirements. This short-term view is useful when
compared to the long-term view presented as governmental activities in the government-wide
financial statements. To facilitate this comparison, both the governmental funds balance sheet and
the governmental funds statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide
a reconciliation of governmental funds to governmental activities.

The governmental funds balance sheet and statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund
balances provide detailed information about the Charter School's governmental funds. The Charter
School's major funds are the General Fund, Grant Special Revenue Fund, and Capital Outlay Fund.

The Charter School adopts an annual appropriated budget for its governmental funds.

Fiduciary Fund: The custodial fund is used to report assets held in a fiduciary capacity for the benefit
of external parties, such as parent teacher organizations. The custodial fund is not reflected in the
government-wide statements because the resources are not available to support the Charter
School's own programs. In its fiduciary capacity, the Charter School is responsible for ensuring that
the assets reported in these funds are used only for their intended purposes.

60



Notes to Financial Statements

The notes provide additional information that is essential for a full understanding of the data provided
in the government-wide and fund financial statements.

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

Net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government's financial position. The following
is a summary of the Charter School's net position as of June 30:

2025 2024
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 2,156,797 $ 2,040,838
Accounts receivable - 50,172
Capital assets:

Depreciable capital assets, net 1,072,743 1,080,126
Right of use asset 810,171 909,040
Total assets 4,039,711 4,080,176

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 17,918 1,194
Accrued expenses 7,866 -
Accrued wages and benefits 104,243 60,467
Deferred revenue 104,307 -
Due to State College of Florida 734,220 1,311,799
Financed purchase obligation - current 59,083 21,769
Financed purchase obligation - noncurrent 24,724 -
Right of use laibility - current 102,765 98,869
Right of use liability - noncurrent 707,406 810,171
Compensated absences - current 4,598 4,155
Compensated absences - noncurrent 81,294 47,783
Total liabilities 1,948,424 2,356,207
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 988,936 1,058,357
Restricted - capital projects 1,331,683 1,311,799
Unrestricted (229,332) (646,187)
Total net position $ 2,091,287 $ 1,723,969

Unrestricted net position may be used to meet the Charter School's ongoing obligations to
students, employees, and creditors.

61



The key elements of the changes in the Charter School’s net position for the fiscal years ended June 30
are as follows:

2025 2024
REVENUES
Federal through state and local $ - $ 126,983
Florida education finance program 2,864,864 2,240,670
Charter school capital outlay 174,001 134,229
Capital improvements 397,881 116,788
Dues and donations 54,553 37,929
Unrestricted interest earnings 29,286 14,097
Contributions from State College of Florida - 27,045
Total revenues 3,520,585 2,697,741
EXPENSES
Instruction 1,356,009 1,376,068
Instruction support services 270,714 68,762
Board 266 1,241
School administration 252,131 355,665
Facilities acquisition 13,125 12,500
Fiscal senices 642,399 163,466
Food senvices 19,481 15,227
Student transportation senvices 87,640 87,167
Operation of plant - 134,680
Administrative technology senices 11,502 3,472
Total expenses 2,653,267 2,218,248
Transfer to State College (500,000) -
Change in net position 367,318 479,493
Net position - beginning 1,723,969 1,244,476
Net position - ending $ 2,091,287 $ 1,723,969

The Charter School’s 2024-25 net position increased by $367,318. This is due to an increase in students,
capital outlay, and capital improvement funding during the year.

The largest revenue source is the funds received by the School District (81%). The primary source of
these funds comes from the State of Florida and flows through the School District on behalf of the Charter
School. Revenues from state sources for current operations are primarily received through the Florida
Education Finance Program (FEFP) funding formula. The FEFP formula utilizes student enroliment data
and is designed to maintain equity in funding across all Florida school districts including charter schools.

The Charter School's State appropriations fluctuate with changes in enroliment; there was a increase

in enroliment of approximately 228 FTE to 287 FTE, which does not reflect the actual student
enroliment after the survey recalculations.

62



FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CHARTER SCHOOL'’S FUNDS

Major Governmental Funds

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the Charter School. At the end of the current fiscal year,
unassigned fund balance is $970,655 and the restricted balance is $0.

The Special Revenue Fund is a fund restricted for the use of federal grant monies received. At the end of
the current fiscal year, the unassigned fund balance is $0 after transfers out of the General Fund totaling
$10,571.

The Capital Project Fund has a total fund balance of $321,895. Any fund balance would be restricted
for acquisition, construction, leasing, and maintenance of capital assets.

GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

Budget revisions are due primarily to changes in estimated State funding levels and corresponding
adjustments to planned expenditures to ensure maintenance of an adequate fund balance. Actual
revenues are $27,567 or 1% more than the budgeted amount. Actual expenditures are $310,339 or 11%
less than the budgeted amount.

ECONOMIC FACTORS THAT WILL AFFECT THE FUTURE

The Charter School's economic condition is closely tied to that of the State of Florida. It is expected that
the Charter School will continue to maintain its present level of services and financial health. The initial
contract of fifteen (15) years between the School District of Sarasota County, Florida, and the District
Board of Trustees of State College of Florida, Manatee-Sarasota commenced operations in the 2019-20
academic year. At this time, enroliment is approximately 312 students.

REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION
This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of finances for those who may be
interested. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for additional

information should be addressed to the Vice President for Finance and Administrative Services, State
College of Florida, Manatee-Sarasota, 5840 26th Street West, Bradenton, Florida 34207.

63



STATE COLLEGE OF FLORIDA COLLEGIATE SCHOOL - VENICE CAMPUS
A CHARTER SCHOOL AND RESTRICTED FUND OF
STATE COLLEGE OF FLORIDA, MANATEE-SARASOTA

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

June 30, 2025

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Capital assets:
Depreciable capital assets, net
Right of use asset
Total assets

LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION

Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Accrued wages and benefits
Deferred revenue
Due to State College of Florida
Financed purchase obligation - current
Financed purchase obligation - noncurrent
Right of use liability - current
Right of use liability - noncurrent
Compensated absences - current
Compensated absences - noncurrent

Total liabilities

Net position:
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted - capital projects
Unrestricted

Total net position

Total liabilities and net position

Governmental
Activities

$ 2,156,797

1,072,743
810,171

$ 4,039,711

$ 17,918
7,866
104,243
104,307
734,220
59,083
24,724
102,765
707,406
4,598
81,294

1,948,424

988,936
1,056,115
46,236

2,091,287

$ 4,039,711

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

9

64



STATE COLLEGE OF FLORIDA COLLEGIATE SCHOOL - VENICE CAMPUS
A CHARTER SCHOOL AND RESTRICTED FUND OF
STATE COLLEGE OF FLORIDA, MANATEE-SARASOTA

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

Year Ended June 30, 2025

Program Revenues

Net Revenue

Operating Capital (Expense)
Grants and Grants and and Changes in
Functions/Programs Expenses Contributions Contributions Net Position
Governmental activities:

Instruction $ 1,356,009 $ - $ - $ (1,356,009)

Instruction support services 270,714 - - (270,714)

Board 266 - - (266)

School administration 252,131 - (252,131)

Facilities acquisition 13,125 - 571,882 558,757

Fiscal services 642,399 - - (642,399)

Food services 19,481 - - (19,481)

Student transportation services 87,640 - - (87,640)

Administrative technology services 11,502 - - (11,502)

Total governmental activities $ 2,653,267 $ - $ 571,882 (2,081,385)
General revenues:

State through School Board of Manatee County 2,864,864

Dues and donations 54,553

Unrestricted investment earnings 29,286

Total general revenues 2,948,703

Transfer to State College (500,000)

Change in net position 367,318

Net position at July 1, 2024 1,723,969

Net position at June 30, 2025 $ 2,091,287

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

10

65



STATE COLLEGE OF FLORIDA COLLEGIATE SCHOOL - VENICE CAMPUS
A CHARTER SCHOOL AND RESTRICTED FUND OF
STATE COLLEGE OF FLORIDA, MANATEE-SARASOTA

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Due from other funds

Total assets

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Accrued wages and benefits
Due to other funds
Due to State College of Florida

Total liabilities

FUND BALANCES
Restricted
Unassigned

Total fund balances

Total liabilities and fund balances

BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

June 30, 2025

General Grant Special  Capital Project

Fund Revenue Fund Fund Total
$ 865,381 $ - $ 1,291,416 2,156,797
227,582 - - 227,582
$ 1,092,963 $ - $ 1,291,416 2,384,379
$ 10,199 $ - $ 7,719 17,918
7,866 - - 7,866
104,243 - - 104,243
- - 227,582 227,582
- - 734,220 734,220
122,308 - 969,521 1,091,829
- - 321,895 321,895
970,655 - - 970,655
970,655 - 321,895 1,292,550
$ 1,092,963 $ - $ 1,291,416 2,384,379

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

11

66



STATE COLLEGE OF FLORIDA COLLEGIATE SCHOOL - VENICE CAMPUS
A CHARTER SCHOOL AND RESTRICTED FUND OF
STATE COLLEGE OF FLORIDA, MANATEE-SARASOTA

RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL
FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

June 30, 2025

Fund balances - total governmental funds $ 1,292,550

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position are
different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and,
therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds. 1,072,743

Compensated absences are not due and payable in the current period;

therefore, are not reported in the fund statements. (85,892)

Right of use asset 810,171

Right of use liability are not due and payable in the current period and,

therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds. (810,171)

Deferred revenue (104,307)

Financed purchase obligations are not due and payable in the current period

and, therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds. (83,807)
Net position of governmental activities $ 2,091,287

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

12
67



STATE COLLEGE OF FLORIDA COLLEGIATE SCHOOL - VENICE CAMPUS
A CHARTER SCHOOL AND RESTRICTED FUND OF
STATE COLLEGE OF FLORIDA, MANATEE-SARASOTA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Year Ended June 30, 2025

Grant
Special Total
General Revenue Capital Governmental
Fund Fund Outlay Fund Funds
Revenues
State sources:
Florida education finance program $ 2,863,687 $ - $ - $ 2,863,687
Other state revenues 1,177 - - 1,177
Charter school capital outlay - - 174,001 174,001
Local sources:
Capital improvement - - 502,188 502,188
Dues and donations 54,553 - - 54,553
Unrestricted interest earnings 29,286 - - 29,286
Total revenues 2,948,703 - 676,189 3,624,892
Expenditures
Instruction 1,182,403 - - 1,182,403
Instruction support services 270,714 - - 270,714
Board 266 - - 266
School administration 252,131 - - 252,131
Facilities acquisition 384,680 - 257,719 642,399
Fiscal services 13,125 - - 13,125
Food services 19,481 - - 19,481
Central services - - - -
Student transportation services 87,640 - - 87,640
Administrative technology services 11,502 - - 11,502
Debt service:
Principal 64,975 - - 64,975
Interest 5,256 - - 5,256
Total expenditures 2,292,173 - 257,719 2,549,892
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
(under) expenditures 656,530 - 418,470 1,075,000
Other financing sources (uses)

Transfer to State College (250,000) - (250,000) (500,000)
Interfund Transfers 10,571 (10,571) - -
Net change in fund balances 417,101 (10,571) 168,470 575,000
Fund balances at July 1, 2024 553,554 10,571 153,425 717,550
Fund balances at June 30, 2025 $ 970,655 $ - $ 321,805 $ 1,292,550

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

13

68



STATE COLLEGE OF FLORIDA COLLEGIATE SCHOOL - VENICE CAMPUS
A CHARTER SCHOOL AND RESTRICTED FUND OF
STATE COLLEGE OF FLORIDA, MANATEE-SARASOTA

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

Year Ended June 30, 2025

Excess of revenues over expenditures - total governmental funds

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities
are different because:

In the statement of activities, the cost of compensated absences is
measured by the amounts earned during the year, while in the
governmental funds expenditures are recognized based on the
amounts actually paid for the compensated absences. This is the
net amount of compensated absences used (earned) in excess of
the amount earned (paid) in the current period

Depreciable capital assets, net

Capital asset additions 170,494
Depreciation expense (177,876)

The issue of long-term debt provides current financial resources to
governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term
debt consumes current financial resources of governmental funds.
Neither transaction has an effect on net position. The difference is
comprised of:
Proceeds from financed purchase obligations (127,014)
Principal payments 64,975

Certain revenues and expenses not considered available are not

recognized in the governmental funds but are included in the
statement of activities.

Change in net position of governmental activities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

14

$ 575,000

(33,954)

(7,382)

(62,039)

(104,307)

5367318

69



STATE COLLEGE OF FLORIDA COLLEGIATE SCHOOL - VENICE CAMPUS

A CHARTER SCHOOL AND RESTRICTED FUND OF

STATE COLLEGE OF FLORIDA, MANATEE-SARASOTA

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

ASSETS

Cash
Total assets

Restricted for:

Individuals and organizations
Total net fiduciary position

June 30, 2025

Custodial Fund

$ 289
$ 289
$ 289
$ 289

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

15

70



STATE COLLEGE OF FLORIDA COLLEGIATE SCHOOL - VENICE CAMPUS
A CHARTER SCHOOL AND RESTRICTED FUND OF
STATE COLLEGE OF FLORIDA, MANATEE-SARASOTA
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

Year Ended June 30, 2025

Custodial Fund

ADDITIONS
Membership dues and donations $ 1,281
Total additions 1,281

Restricted for:

PTO event expenses 3,367
Total deductions 3,367
Change in fiduciary net position (2,086)
Fiduciary net position - beginning 2,375
Fiduciary net position - ending $ 289

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

16

71



STATE COLLEGE OF FLORIDA COLLEGIATE SCHOOL - VENICE CAMPUS
A CHARTER SCHOOL AND RESTRICTED FUND OF
STATE COLLEGE OF FLORIDA, MANATEE-SARASOTA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2025

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1. Reporting entity

The State College of Florida Collegiate School — Venice Campus (the “Charter School”) is a
restricted fund of State College of Florida, Manatee-Sarasota (the “College”). As such, the
financial statements of the Charter School are intended to present the financial position, the
changes in financial position of only that portion of the activities of the College that is attributable
to the Charter School. The general operating rules of the Charter School are contained in Section
1002.33, Florida Statutes. The Charter School operates under a charter with the sponsoring
school district, the Sarasota County School District, Florida (the “Sponsor”). The initial charter
July 1, 2019 through June 30, 2034. The charter may be renewed pursuant to Section 1002.33,
Florida Statutes, for such duration as may be established by mutual written consent of the parties
and by successful completion of the renewal process. At the end of the term of the charter, the
Sponsor is required to notify the Charter School in writing at least 90 days prior to the charter’s
expiration. During the term of the charter, the Sponsor may also terminate the charter if good
cause is shown. The Charter School shall notify the Sponsor in writing at least 90 days prior to
the expiration of the charter as to its intent to renew or not renew.

2. Basis of Presentation

The financial statements of the Charter School have been prepared in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America as applicable to state and local
governments. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-
setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles in the
United States of America. The more significant of the Charter School’s accounting policies are
described below.

3. Government-Wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements, including the statement of net position and the
statement of activities, present information about the Charter School as a whole. These
statements include the nonfiduciary financial activity of the Charter School and report only
governmental activities as the Charter School does not engage in any business type activities.

The government-wide financial statements are prepared using the economic resources
measurement focus. The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses
and program revenues for each function or program of the Charter School's governmental
activities. Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with a service, program, or
department and are thereby clearly identifiable to a particular function. Program revenues include
grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a
particular program. Revenues that are not classified as program revenues are presented as
general revenues. The comparison of direct expenses with program revenues identifies the extent
to which each governmental function is self-financing or draws from the general revenues of the
Charter School.

4. Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements report detailed information about the Charter School in the
governmental and custodial funds. The focus of governmental fund financial statements is on
maijor funds rather than reporting funds by type.

17
72



STATE COLLEGE OF FLORIDA COLLEGIATE SCHOOL - VENICE CAMPUS
A CHARTER SCHOOL AND RESTRICTED FUND OF
STATE COLLEGE OF FLORIDA, MANATEE-SARASOTA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2025

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4. Fund financial statements (continued)

Because the focus of governmental fund financial statements differs from the focus of
government-wide financial statements, a reconciliation is presented with each of the
governmental fund financial statements.

The Charter School reports the following major governmental funds:
General Fund — to account for all financial resources not required to be accounted for in
another fund, and for certain revenues from the State that are legally restricted to be

expended for specific current operating purposes.

Special Revenue Fund — to account for financial resources that are provided by Federal
grants, and are restricted to be expended for specific current purposes.

Capital Outlay Fund — to account for financial resources that are to be used for educational
capital outlay needs, including new construction, renovation and remodeling projects, leasing
financing and debt service payments on capital leases for relocatable school buildings.

Additionally, the Charter School reports the following custodial fund type:

Custodial Fund — to account for resources of the school internal funds which are used to
administer monies collected in connection with parent-teacher organization fund-raisers. This
fund was established in the prior year as related activities and fundraising continue to
expand.

5. Basis of Accounting

Basis of accounting refers to when revenues, expenses and related assets and liabilities are
recognized in the accounts and reported in the financial statements. Specifically, it related to the
timing of the measurements made, regardless of the measurement focus applied.

The government-wide financial statements are prepared using the economic resources
measurement focus and accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized when earned and
expenses are recognized when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of the related cash
flows.

The governmental fund financial statements are prepared using the current financial
resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues,
except for certain grant revenues, are recognized when they become measurable and
available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the current
period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. The Charter School
considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current
fiscal year. When grant terms provide that the expenditure of resources is the prime factor for
determining eligibility for federal, state, and other grant resources, revenue is recognized at
the time the expenditure is made. Under the modified accrual basis of accounting,
expenditures are generally recognized when the related fund liability is incurred, except for
principal and interest on long-term debt, claims and judgments, postemployment healthcare
benefits, and compensated absences, which are recognized when due. Allocations of cost,
such as depreciation, are not recognized in governmental funds.

18
73



STATE COLLEGE OF FLORIDA COLLEGIATE SCHOOL - VENICE CAMPUS
A CHARTER SCHOOL AND RESTRICTED FUND OF
STATE COLLEGE OF FLORIDA, MANATEE-SARASOTA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2025

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

6. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Amounts reported as cash consist of cash on hand and cash in demand deposit accounts.
Cash deposits of the Charter School are held by banks qualified as public depositories under
Florida law. All such deposits are insured by federal depository insurance, up to specified
limits, or collateralized with securities held in Florida's multiple financial institution collateral
pool required by Chapter 280, Florida Statutes.

The Charter School considers all highly liquid investments with original maturities of three
months or less when purchased, as well as investment in the Charter School's cash and
investment pool, to be cash equivalents.

Further discussion of cash and cash equivalents are continued in Note 2.

7. Capital Assets

The Charter School uses the policies of the College for capitalization and depreciation. The
Charter School has a capitalization threshold of $5,000 for tangible personal property and
$25,000 for improvements other than buildings. All capital assets are depreciated using the
straight-line method over their estimated useful lives. Capital assets are depreciated using group
depreciation and the straight-line method over the following useful lives of the asset group:

Estimated Useful

Asset Class Lives (years)
Other structures and improvements 40
Furniture 7
Vehicles, office machines, educational equipment 5
Computer equipment 3
Right to use asset Lease term

Current year information relative to changes in capital assets is described in a subsequent note.
8. Leases

The Charter School is a lessee for an office lease. The Charter School recognizes a lease liability
and an intangible right-to-use lease asset (lease-asset) in the government-wide financial
statements. At the commencement of a lease, the Charter School initially measures the lease
liability at the present value of payments expected to be made during the lease term.
Subsequently, the lease liability is reduced by the principal portion of the lease payments made.
The lease asset is initially measured as the initial amount of the lease liability, adjusted for lease
payments made at or before the lease commencement date, plus certain initial direct costs.
Subsequently, the lease asset is amortized on a straight-line basis over the useful life.

19
74



STATE COLLEGE OF FLORIDA COLLEGIATE SCHOOL - VENICE CAMPUS
A CHARTER SCHOOL AND RESTRICTED FUND OF
STATE COLLEGE OF FLORIDA, MANATEE-SARASOTA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2025

NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
9. Net Position

Net position represents the difference between assets and liabilities. Net investment in capital
assets consist of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding
balances of any borrowings used for the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those
assets. Net position is reported as restricted when there are limitations imposed on its use either
through enabling legislation or through external restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors, laws,
or regulations. Net position not reported as net investment in capital assets or restricted reported
as unrestricted net position. When both restricted and unrestricted amounts of net position are
available for use for expenses incurred, it is the Charter School’s policy to use restricted amounts
first and then unrestricted amounts as they are needed.

10. Fund Balance

The Charter School follows the provisions of Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB)
Statement No. 54, “Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions”.
Accordingly, in the fund financial statements, governmental funds report fund classifications that
comprise a hierarchy based primarily on the extent to which the Charter School is bound to honor
constraints on the specific purposes for which amounts in those funds can be spent. Fund
balance is reported in five components: non-spendable, restricted, committed, assigned, and
unassigned.

Non-Spendable Fund Balance — Amounts that are (a) not in spendable form or (b) legally or
contractually required to be maintained intact. "Not in spendable form" includes items that are
not expected to be converted to cash (such as inventories and prepaid amounts) and items
such as long-term amount of loans and notes receivable, as well as property acquired for
resale, the corpus (or principal) of a permanent fund is an example of an amount that is
legally or contractually required to be maintained intact. There was no nonspendable fund
balance reported as of June 30, 2025.

Restricted Fund Balance — Amounts that can be spent only for specific purposes stipulated
by (a) external resource providers such as creditors (by debt covenants), granters,
contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments, or (b) imposed by law through
constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. There was a restricted fund balance of
$321,895 reported as of June 30, 2025.

Committed Fund Balance — Amounts that can be used only for the specific purposes
determined by a formal action (resolution) of the Board of Trustees, the Charter School's
highest level of decision-making authority. Commitments may be changed or lifted only by the
Board of Trustees taking the same formal action (resolution) that imposed the constraint
originally. Resources accumulated pursuant to stabilization arrangements sometimes are
reported in this category. There was no committed fund balance reported as of June 30,
2025.

Assigned Fund Balance — Includes spendable fund balance amounts established by the
administration of the Charter School that are intended to be used for specific purposes
that are neither considered restricted nor committed. There was no assigned fund balance
reported as of June 30, 2025.

20
75



STATE COLLEGE OF FLORIDA COLLEGIATE SCHOOL - VENICE CAMPUS
A CHARTER SCHOOL AND RESTRICTED FUND OF
STATE COLLEGE OF FLORIDA, MANATEE-SARASOTA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2025

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

10. Fund Balance (continued)

Unassigned Fund Balance — Unassigned fund balance is the residual classification for the
general fund. This classification represents fund balance that has not been restricted,
committed, or assigned to specific purposes within the general fund. Unassigned fund
balance may also include negative balances for governmental funds if expenditures
exceed amounts restricted, committed, or assigned for those specific purposes.
Unassigned fund balance consists of $970,655 in the General Fund as of June 30, 2025.

The Charter School expends restricted amounts first when both restricted and
unrestricted fund balances are available unless there are legal documents that prohibit
doing this, such as in grant agreements requiring dollar for dollar spending. Additionally,
the Charter School would first use committed fund balance, followed by assigned fund
balance and then unassigned fund balance, when expenditures are incurred for purposes
for which amounts in any of the unrestricted fund balance classifications could be used.

In the Special Revenue Fund, there is a restricted fund balance of $0 as of June 30, 2025.
The Charter School is reimbursed from grant funding entities for expenditures incurred. When
reimbursement for these funds has not been received with 60 days of the current period,
those funds are considered unavailable resources for the current period.

11. Due to and Due from Other Funds

Amounts reported as due to and due from other funds are for interfund loans between the
General Fund and Capital Project Fund.

12. Revenue Sources

Revenue for current operations is received primarily from the School District of Sarasota County,
Florida, pursuant to the funding provisions included in the Charter. In accordance with the funding
provisions of the Charter and Section 1002.33(1B)(b), Florida Statutes, the Charter School reports
its student enrollment to the Sponsor. Under provisions of Section 1011.62, Florida Statutes, the
Sponsor reports the number of student enrollments and related data to the Florida Department
of Education (DOE) for funding through the Florida Education Finance Program (FEFP). Funding
for the Charter School is adjusted during the year to reflect revised calculations of actual student
enrolilment. The State provides financial assistance to administer certain categorical
educational programs. State Board of Education rules require that revenue earmarked for certain
programs be expended only for the program for which the money is provided and require that the
money not expended as of the close of the fiscal year be carried forward into the following year to
be expended for the same categorical educational programs. The DOE generally requires that
categorical educational program revenues be accounted for in the General Fund.

The Charter School may receive federal awards for the enhancement of various educational
programs. This assistance is generally based on applications submitted to and approved by
various granting agencies. These federal awards may have eligibility requirements whereby the
issuance of grant funds is withheld until such eligible expenditures are incurred. Revenues for
these awards are recognized only to the extent that eligible expenditures are incurred.

21
76



STATE COLLEGE OF FLORIDA COLLEGIATE SCHOOL - VENICE CAMPUS
A CHARTER SCHOOL AND RESTRICTED FUND OF
STATE COLLEGE OF FLORIDA, MANATEE-SARASOTA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2025

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

12. Revenue Sources (continued)

Additionally, other revenues may be derived from various fundraising activities and certain other
programs. During 2024-25, the Charter School received no additional contributions from State
College of Florida, Manatee-Sarasota, due to capital projects completed in fiscal year 2025 that
began in fiscal year 2023.

13. Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results
could differ from these estimates.

14. Accounting Pronouncements Implemented

GASB issued Statement No. 102, Certain Risk Disclosures, in December 2023. GASB 102
enhanced transparency by requiring disclosures about risks related to a government’s
vulnerabilities due to certain concentrations or constraints. A concentration refers to a lack of
diversity in significant inflows or outflows of resources, while a constraint is a limitation imposed
by external parties or formal action of the government’s highest decision-making authority. The
Statement required disclosure when such conditions make the government vulnerable to a
substantial impact and when related events have occurred, begun to occur, or are more likely
than not to occur within 12 months of the issuance of the financial statements. The provisions of
GASB 102 were implemented in the year ended June 30, 2025. The adoption of this standard
had no significant impact on the Charter School’s financial statements.

15. New GASB Pronouncements

GASB issued Statement No. 103, Financial Reporting Model Improvements, in April 2024. GASB
103 aims to enhance the effectiveness of the financial reporting model by improving key
components such as Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A), the presentation of
proprietary fund statements, and the reporting of unusual or infrequent items. It also introduces
standardized definitions for operating and nonoperating revenues and expenses, and requires
separate presentation of major component units and budgetary comparison information as
required supplementary information (RSI). The provisions of GASB 103 are effective for fiscal
years beginning after June 15, 2025 and will be implemented in the year ended June 30, 2026.
The Charter School is evaluating the effect of this new standard on its financial statements.

GASB issued Statement No. 104, Disclosure of Certain Capital Assets, in September 2024.
GASB 104 enhances transparency by requiring separate disclosures of specific types of capital
assets in the notes to financial statements. These include lease assets (GASB 87), intangible
right-to-use assets (GASB 94), subscription-based IT assets (GASB 96), and other intangible
assets, all disclosed by major class. Additionally, GASB 104 introduces disclosure requirements
for capital assets held for sale - defined as assets the government has decided to sell and for
which it is probable the sale will be finalized within one year of the financial statement date.
Governments must disclose the historical cost, accumulated depreciation, and any related debt
for which such assets are pledged as collateral. The provisions of GASB 104 are effective for
fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2025 and will be implemented in the year ended June 30,
2026. The Charter School is evaluating the effect of this new standard on its financial statements.

22
77



STATE COLLEGE OF FLORIDA COLLEGIATE SCHOOL - VENICE CAMPUS
A CHARTER SCHOOL AND RESTRICTED FUND OF
STATE COLLEGE OF FLORIDA, MANATEE-SARASOTA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2025

NOTE 2 — CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and investments consisted of the following at June 30, 2025:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,451,240
Florida State Board of Administration -
Local government investment pool 705,557
Total cash and cash equivalents $ 2,156,797

The Charter School does not currently maintain individual accounts with either financial institutions or
brokerages titled under its name. Cash and cash equivalents as presented in these financial statements
reflects the Charter School's equity in the College's pooled cash and cash equivalent balances. The
Charter School does not have its own investment policy.

The Charter School's excess deposits are invested entirely in the State of Florida State Board
Administration (SBA) Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP). This external investment pool,
Florida PRIME, qualifies for making the election to measure all of its investments at amortized cost
for financial reporting purposes. The pool's participants also measure their investments in this external
investment pool at amortized cost for financial reporting purposes. Thus, the Charter School's position in
Florida PRIME is measured at amortized cost. Florida PRIME is rated by Standard & Poor's with a
current rating of AAAm. The investment policy of Florida PRIME is to manage the weighted average
maturity to 50 days as of June 30, 2025.

Qualifying local government investment pools in the state of Florida must comply with applicable
Florida statutory requirements. Chapter 218.409(8)(a), Florida Statutes, states that the principal balance
within a LGIP trust fund is subject to withdrawal at any time. However, the Executive Director may, in
good faith, on the occurrence of an event that has a material impact on liquidity or operations of the
trust fund, for 48 hours limit contributions to or withdrawals from the trust fund to ensure that the Board
can invest in the monies entrusted to it in exercising its fiduciary responsibility. Such action must be
immediately disclosed to all participants, the Trustees, the Joint Legislative Auditing Committee, the
Investment Advisory Council, and the Participant Local Government Advisory Council.

With regard to liquidity fees, Chapter 218.409(4) provides authority for an LGIP to impose penalties for
early withdrawal, subject to disclosure in the enrollment materials of the amount and purpose of such
fees. At present, no such disclosure has been made by the SBA.

At June 30, 2025, there were no redemption fees or maximum transaction amounts, or any other
requirements that serve to limit a participant's daily access to 100% of their account value within
Florida PRIME.

23
78



STATE COLLEGE OF FLORIDA COLLEGIATE SCHOOL - VENICE CAMPUS
A CHARTER SCHOOL AND RESTRICTED FUND OF
STATE COLLEGE OF FLORIDA, MANATEE-SARASOTA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2025

NOTE 3 — CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2025, was as follows:

Balance at Balance at
July 1, June 30,
Governmental Activities 2024 Additions Transfers 2025
Capital assets - depreciable:
Furniture, fixtures, and equipment $ 49,782 $ - $ - $ 49,782
Leasehold improvement 1,100,683 - - 1,100,683
Equipment 65,438 170,494 235,932
Total depreciable capital assets 1,215,903 170,494 1,386,397
Less accumulated depreciation:
Furniture, fixtures, and equipment 30,804 13,060 43,864
Leasehold improvement 61,306 40,871 102,177
Equipment 43,668 123,945 - 167,613
Total accumulated depreciation 135,778 $ 177,876 $ - 313,654
Total governmental activities, capital assets, net $ 1,080,125 $ 1,072,743

Governmental Activities

Depreciation expense totaling $177,876 for the year ended June

governmental activities, specifically instruction.

NOTE 4 - COMPENSATED ABSENCES

30, 2025 was allocated to

The following is a summary of changes in compensated absences for the year ended June 30, 2025.

Balance at
June 30, Due Within
2025 One Year

Balance at
Governmental Activities July 1, 2024 Additions
Compensated Absences Payable $ 51,938 $ 37,111

(3,157) '§ 85892 S 4,598

Charter School employees accrue vacation and sick leave based on length of service, subject to certain
limitations regarding the amount that will be paid upon termination. The Charter School reports a
liability for the accrued leave; however, State appropriations fund only the portion of accrued leave
that is used or paid in the current fiscal year. Although the Charter School expects the liability to be
funded primarily from future appropriations, generally accepted accounting principles do not permit
the recording of a receivable in anticipation of future appropriations. As of June 30, 2025, the estimated
liability for compensated absences totaled $85,892. Of this amount, $4,598 is estimated to be paid in
the coming fiscal year. For governmental activities, compensated absences are generally liquidated with

resources of the General Fund.

24

79



STATE COLLEGE OF FLORIDA COLLEGIATE SCHOOL - VENICE CAMPUS
A CHARTER SCHOOL AND RESTRICTED FUND OF
STATE COLLEGE OF FLORIDA, MANATEE-SARASOTA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2025

NOTE 5 - ENCUMBRANCES

Appropriations in governmental funds are encumbered upon issuance of purchase orders for goods
and services. Even though appropriations lapse at the end of the fiscal year, unfilled purchase orders
of the current year are carried forward and the next year's appropriations are likewise encumbered.

Fund balances are restricted, committed, or assigned at fiscal year-end to report an amount likely to be
expended from the 2024-25 fiscal year budget as a result of purchase orders outstanding at June 30,
2025. At June 30, 2025, $0 was accounted for in assigned fund balance for purchase orders.

Because revenues of grants accounted for in the General Fund are not recognized until expenditures are
incurred, these grant funds generally do not accumulate fund balances. Accordingly, no reserve for
encumbrances is reported for grant funds.

NOTE 6 - SCHEDULE OF STATE REVENUE SOURCES

As stated in a prior note, the Charter School receives revenue for current operations primarily from the
State of Florida through the Sponsor. The following is a schedule of the revenue for the 2024-25 fiscal
year.

Source Amount
Florida Education Finance Program $ 2,864,864
Charter school capital outlay 174,001
Capital improvement 397,881
Total state revenues $ 3,436,746

Accounting policies relating to certain state revenue sources are described in Note 1.

NOTE 7 — STATE RETIREMENT PLANS
General Information about the Florida Retirement System (FRS)

The FRS was created in Chapter 121, Florida Statutes, to provide a defined benefit pension plan for
participating public employees. The FRS was amended in 1998 to add the Deferred Retirement
Option Program (DROP) under the defined benefit plan and amended in 2000 to provide a defined
contribution plan alternative to the defined benefit plan for FRS members effective July 1, 2002. This
integrated defined contribution pension plan is the FRS Investment Plan. Chapter 121, Florida Statutes,
also provides for nonintegrated, optional retirement programs in lieu of the FRS to certain members
of the Senior Management Service Class employed by the State and faculty and specified employees
of State colleges. Chapter 112, Florida Statutes, established the Health Insurance Subsidy (HIS)
Program, a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan to assist retired members
of any State- administered retirement system in paying the costs of health insurance.

Essentially all regular employees of the College are eligible to enroll as members of the State-
administered FRS. Provisions relating to the FRS are established by Chapters 121 and 122, Florida
Statutes; Chapter 112, Part IV, Florida Statutes; Chapter 238, Florida Statutes; and FRS Rules, Chapter
60S, Florida Administrative Code; wherein eligibility, contributions, and benefits are defined and
described in detail. Such provisions may be amended at any time by further action from the Florida
Legislature.

25
80



STATE COLLEGE OF FLORIDA COLLEGIATE SCHOOL - VENICE CAMPUS
A CHARTER SCHOOL AND RESTRICTED FUND OF
STATE COLLEGE OF FLORIDA, MANATEE-SARASOTA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2025

NOTE 7 — STATE RETIREMENT PLANS (continued)
General Information about the Florida Retirement System (FRS) (continued)

The FRS is a single retirement system administered by the Florida Department of Management Services,
Division of Retirement, and consists of two cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit plans and other
nonintegrated programs. A comprehensive annual financial report of the FRS, which includes its financial
statements, required supplementary information, actuarial report, and other relevant information, is
available from the Florida Department of Management Services Web site (www.dms.myflorida.com).

Charter School contributions to the FRS totaled $67,195 for the year ending June 30, 2025. The liability
and expense for pension benefits are reported in the financial statements of the State College of Florida
Manatee-Sarasota.

NOTE 8 - OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB)

The Charter School provides post-employment health care benefits in accordance with Section
112.0801, Florida Statutes, to all employees who retire from the Charter School. The Charter School is
required to provide health care coverage at cost to all retirees but does not pay any portion of the
premium for the retiree to participate in the Charter School's group health care plan. The liability and
expense for other post-employment benefits, calculated in accordance with Government Accounting
Standards Board Statement No. 75 Accounting and Financial Reporting for Post-employment Benefits
Other Than Pensions, are reported in the financial statements of the State College of Florida
Manatee-Sarasota.

NOTE 9 — RISK MANAGEMENT PROGRAM

The College is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of
assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The College provided
coverage for these risks primarily through the Florida College System Risk Management Consortium
(Consortium), which was created under School of Section 1001.64(27), Florida Statutes, by the boards of
trustees of the Florida public colleges for the purpose of joining a cooperative effort to develop,
implement, and participate in a coordinated statewide college risk management program. The Consortium
is self-sustaining through member assessments (premiums) and purchases excess insurance through
commercial companies for claims in excess of specified amounts. Insurance coverage obtained through
the Consortium included fire and extended property, general and automobile liability, workers'
compensation, health, life, and other liability coverage. Settled claims resulting from these risks have not
exceeded commercial coverage in any of the past three fiscal years. The Charter School, as part of the
College, is covered under the Consortium's plan.

26
81


www.dms.myflorida.com

STATE COLLEGE OF FLORIDA COLLEGIATE SCHOOL - VENICE CAMPUS
A CHARTER SCHOOL AND RESTRICTED FUND OF
STATE COLLEGE OF FLORIDA, MANATEE-SARASOTA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2025

NOTE 10 — RELATED PARTIES

Building Lease

Effective July 1, 2022, the Charter School entered into a 10-year lease agreement with the College for the
rental of the Charter School building. Lease charges are $134,680 per year. As of June 30, 2025, the
present value of the lease obligation is $810,171. The lease asset and liability were calculated utilizing
risk-free discount rate (3.87%) as determined by the IRS, according to the Charter School’s elected

policy.

The future minimum lease payments and the present value of the minimum lease payments as of June 30
are as follows:

Principal Interest Total
2026 $102,765 $ 31,916 $134,681
2027 106,813 27,867 134,680
2028 111,020 23,660 134,680
2029 115,394 19,286 134,680
2030 119,940 14,740 134,680
Thereafter 254,239 15,120 269,359

$810,171 $132,589 $942,760

Contributions from State College of Florida

The College's Auxiliary Fund is being used to supplement funds for the initial start-up costs and
operation of the Charter School, until such time as it becomes self-supporting. State College of Florida
made contributions of $0 during the year ending June 30, 2025 and the Charter School has become self-
supporting.

Dual Enrollment

Pursuant to Florida Statute 1007.27(21)(n)1., the Charter School shall pay the College the standard
tuition rate per credit hour for dual enroliment courses taken on the College's campus. For the 2024-25
school year, $242,933 was charged by the College to the Charter School for dual enrollment.

NOTE 11 — FINANCED PURCHASE OBLIGATIONS

The Charter School has entered into three agreements with Apple, Inc. to finance the purchase of
computer equipment. These financed purchase obligations are effective for three years, with payments
continuing through 2027 and have interest rates of 7.99%, 3.99%, and 3.78% As of June 30, 2025, the
value of these financed purchase obligations is $83,807. The Charter School is required to make annual
principal and interest payments for the year ended 2026, 2027, and 2028 in the amounts of $59,083,
$12,362 and $12,362, respectively.

27
82



REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

83



STATE COLLEGE OF FLORIDA COLLEGIATE SCHOOL - VENICE CAMPUS
A CHARTER SCHOOL AND RESTRICTED FUND OF

STATE COLLEGE OF FLORIDA, MANATEE-SARASOTA

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE - GENERAL FUND

Revenues
Federal sources:
Federal through state and local
State sources:
Florida education finance program
Other state revenues
Dues and donations
Unrestricted interest earnings
Other local revenue
Total revenues

Expenditures
Instruction
Student support services
Instruction and curriculum development services
Board
School administration
Facilities acquisition
Fiscal services
Food services
Student transportation services
Administrative technology services
Debt service:
Principal
Interest
Total expenditures
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
(under) expenditures
Other financing sources (uses)
Transfer to State College
Transfers
Net change in fund balances
Fund balances at July 1, 2024
Fund balances at June 30, 2025

Year Ended June 30, 2025

Budgeted Amounts

Actual Variance with

Original Final Amounts Final Budget
$ 12,680 $ 12,680 $ - $ (12,680)
2,613,647 2,879,627 2,863,687 (15,940)

- - 1,177 1,177

- - 54,553 54,553

- - 29,286 29,286
3,000 28,829 - (28,829)
2,629,327 2,921,136 2,948,703 27,567
1,676,939 1,882,877 1,182,403 700,474

- 110,608 - 110,608
98,510 - 270,714 (270,714)

1,778 1,996 266 1,730

509,534 377,108 252,131 124,977
1,521 1,708 384,680 (382,972)

17,908 20,107 13,125 6,982

21,815 24,494 19,481 5,013
124,878 140,213 87,640 52,573
4,974 5,585 11,502 (5,917)
- 37,816 64,975 (27,159)
- - 5,256 (5,256)

2,457,857 2,602,512 2,292,173 310,339
171,470 318,624 656,530 337,906
- - (250,000) (250,000)

- - 10,571 10,571

171,470 318,624 417,101 98,477
235,029 129,435 553,554 424,119

$ 406,499 $ 448,059 $ 970,655 $ 522,596

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
84

28



STATE COLLEGE OF FLORIDA COLLEGIATE SCHOOL - VENICE CAMPUS
A CHARTER SCHOOL AND RESTRICTED FUND OF
STATE COLLEGE OF FLORIDA, MANATEE-SARASOTA
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE - CAPITAL OUTLAY FUND

Year Ended June 30, 2025

Budgeted Amounts

Actual Variance with
Original Final Amounts Final Budget
Revenues
State sources:
Charter school capital outlay $ 437,004 % 437,004 $ 174,001 $ (263,003)
Capital improvement - - 502,188 502,188
Total revenues 437,004 437,004 676,189 239,185
Expenditures
Facilities acquistion 12,000 281,000 257,719 23,281
Total expenditures 12,000 281,000 257,719 23,281
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
(under) expenditures 425,004 156,004 418,470 262,466
Other financing sources (uses)

Transfer to State College - - (250,000) (250,000)
Net change in fund balances 425,004 156,004 168,470 (12,466)
Fund balance at July 1, 2024 - - 153,425 153,425
Fund balance at June 30, 2025 $ 425,004 $ 156,004 $ 321,895 $ 165,891

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

29 85



STATE COLLEGE OF FLORIDA COLLEGIATE SCHOOL - VENICE CAMPUS
A CHARTER SCHOOL AND RESTRICTED FUND OF
STATE COLLEGE OF FLORIDA, MANATEE-SARASOTA

NOTE TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION
June 30, 2025

NOTE A — BUDGETARY VARIANCES IN GENERAL FUND

The Charter School had a revenue variance of $27,567 in the General Fund. The Charter School will budget
transfer revenues at the amount accessible during the fiscal year, regardless if those funds will actually be
received and expended.

NOTE B - BUDGETARY VARIANCES IN CAPITAL OUTLAY FUND
The Charter School had a revenue variance of $239,185 in the Capital Outlay Fund. The Charter School

will budget grant revenues and expenditure at the amount accessible during the fiscal year, regardless if
those funds will actually be received and expended.

30
86



Partners

W. Ed Moss, Jr.
Joe M. Krusick
Ric Perez

Cor1 G. Novinich
Renee C. Varga

Winter Park, FL. 32789
501 S. New York Ave.
Phone; 407-644-5811
www.mosskrusick.com

Clearwater, FL 33761
29605 US Hwy 19 North
Phone: 727-785-7460

N. Palm Beach, F1. 33408
631 US Highway One
Phone: 561-848-9300

Miami Lakes, FL 33016
7900 NW 155th Street
Phone: 305-445-7956

Miramar, F1. 33025
11450 Interchange Circle
Phone: 954-435-4222

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN
AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH

GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Board of Trustees
State College of Florida Collegiate School — Venice Campus
Venice, Florida

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial
statements of the governmental activities and each major fund of State College of Florida
Collegiate School — Venice Campus (the “Charter School”), a restricted fund of State
College of Florida, Manatee-Sarasota, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2025, and the
related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Charter School’s
basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated September 30, 2025.

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the
Charter School’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for
designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of
expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Charter School’s internal control. Accordingly, we
do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Charter School’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not
allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material
weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that
there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial
statements will not be prevented or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant
deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less
severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those
charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal
control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these
limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we
consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies may exist that were not identified.

31

Moss, Krusick & Associates, LLC &



Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Charter School’s financial statements are free
from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective
of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no
instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing
Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or
on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not
suitable for any other purpose.

Moss, Krusick & Associates, LLC

Winter Park, Florida
September 30, 2025

32
88



Partners

W. Ed Moss, Jr.
Joe M. Krusick
Ric Perez

Cor1 G. Novinich
Renee C. Varga

Winter Park, FL. 32789
501 S. New York Ave.
Phone; 407-644-5811
www.mosskrusick.com

Clearwater, FL 33761
29605 US Hwy 19 North
Phone: 727-785-7460

N. Palm Beach, F1. 33408
631 US Highway One
Phone: 561-848-9300

Miami Lakes, FL 33016
7900 NW 155th Street
Phone: 305-445-7956

Miramar, F1. 33025
11450 Interchange Circle
Phone: 954-435-4222

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

MANAGEMENT LETTER

Board of Trustees
State College of Florida Collegiate School — Venice Campus
Venice, Florida

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the financial statements of State College of Florida Collegiate School —
Venice Campus (the “Charter School”), a restricted fund of the State College of Florida,
Manatee-Sarasota, as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2025, and have issued our
report thereon dated September 30, 2025.

Auditor’s Responsibility

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States
and Chapter 10.850, Rules of the Auditor General.

Other Reporting Requirements

We have issued our Independent Auditor's Report on Internal Control over Financial
Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of the Financial
Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards. Disclosures in
those reports and schedules, which are dated September 30, 2025, should be considered in
conjunction with this management letter.

Prior Audit Findings

Section 10.854(1)(e)1, Rules of the Auditor General, requires that we determine whether or
not corrective actions have been taken to address findings and recommendations made in
the preceding annual financial audit report. There were no prior year findings or
recommendations.

Official Title

Section 10.854(1)(e)5, Rules of the Auditor General, requires that the name or official title
of the entity and the school code assigned by the Florida Department of Education be
disclosed in this management letter. The official title and the school code assigned by the
Florida Department of Education of the entity is State College of Florida Collegiate School
— Venice Campus and 0122.

Financial Condition and Management

Sections 10.854(1)(e)2. and 10.855(11), Rules of the Auditor General, require us to apply
appropriate procedures and communicate whether or not the Charter School has met one
or more of the condition(s) described in Section 218.503(1), Florida Statutes, and to
identify the specific conditions met. In connection with our audit, we determined that the
Charter School did not meet any of the conditions described in Section 218.503(1), Florida
Statutes.

33

Moss, Krusick & Associates, LLC %



Financial Condition and Management (continued)

Pursuant to Sections 10.854(1)(e)6.a. and 10.855(12), Rules of the Auditor General, we applied financial
condition assessment procedures for the Charter School. It is management’s responsibility to monitor the
School’s financial condition, and our financial condition assessment was based in part on representations
made by management and the review of the financial information provided by same.

Section 10.854(1)(e)3, Rules of the Auditor General, requires that we communicate any recommendations to
improve financial management. In connection with our audit, we did not have any such recommendations.

Transparency

Sections 10.854(1)(e)7 and 10.855(13), Rules of the Auditor General, require us to apply appropriate
procedures and communicate the results of our determination as to whether the Charter School maintains on
its Web site the information specified in Section 1002.33(9)(p), Florida Statutes. In connection with our audit,
we determined that the Charter School maintained on its Web site the information specified in section
1002.33(9)(p), Florida Statutes.

Additional Matters

Section 10.854(1)(e)4, Rules of the Auditor General, requires us to communicate noncompliance with
provisions of contracts or grant agreements, or fraud, waste, or abuse that has occurred, or is likely to have
occurred, that has an effect on the financial statements that is less than material but warrants the attention of
those charged with governance. In connection with our audit, we did not note any such findings.

Purpose of this Letter

Our management letter is intended solely for the information and use of Legislative Auditing Committee,
members of the Florida Senate and the Florida House of Representatives, The Florida Auditor General,
Federal and other granting agencies, the Board of Trustees, applicable management, and the School Board of
Manatee County, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified
parties.

Moss, Krusick & Associates, LLC

Winter Park, Florida
September 30, 2025

34
90



MANAGEMENT FINDINGS, RECOMMENDATIONS, AND RESPONSES

For the year ended June 30, 2025, there are no management findings or recommendations.

35

91



State College of Florida,
Manatee-Sarasota

SCF Collegiate School
SCF Collegiate School - Venice

STATE COLLEGE OF FLORIDA
COLLEGIATE SCHOOL

N

Articulation Agreement
2026-2027

Revised: 11/2025 KLM

Exhibit G

92



INTRODUCTION.

The State College of Florida Collegiate Schools (SCFCS Bradenton and SCFCS Venice
campuses) charters define the mission and goals for the school as follows:

The mission of the Collegiate Schools is to equip students to concurrently earn a high school
diploma and an Associate of Arts Degree upon graduation through a cooperative agreement
with the State College of Florida, Manatee-Sarasota.

The vision of the collegiate program is to provide a nurturing and supportive accelerated
academic environment. Student needs are met by implementation of an innovative collegiate
school model that individualizes student academic paths, promotes academic excellence,
removes traditional transition barriers and infuses technology into an integrated curriculum. With
a recruitment focus on first generation college students and families the college process, SCF
Collegiate Schools reach into the community to bring awareness and opportunity to families.

Sponsored by the School District of Manatee County, the SCF Collegiate School in Bradenton
charter enrolls students from 6th grade. The SCF Collegiate School-Venice charter is sponsored
by Sarasota County Schools and enrolls students beginning in 9th grade. The FLDOE "A"
graded Collegiate Schools enroll students in the full time dual enroliment college program in
11th grade.

The purpose of this articulation document is to define eligibility requirements, program
expectations, and SCF/SCFCSs College Program policies and operating procedures.

93



Table of Contents

Eligibility Criteria

Qualifying Test Scores

College Advisor Responsibilities

General Procedures for SCFCS and SCFCS-Venice

SCF Collegiate Schools College Program Guidelines and Policies
Student Information

Administrative Policies

Statement of Nondiscrimination

Dual enroliment course equivalency information

10

11



Eligibility Criteria for SCFCS and SCFCS-Venice College Program .

Qualifications
SCFCS and SCFCSV charter high school students must:
1. Have a minimum high school unweighted 3.0 cumulative grade point average (GPA).

2. Achieve a qualifying score in all sections on the PERT, ACT and React, SAT and
PSAT(10), CLT(10) and/or the Accuplacer.

3. The student must meet all SCFCS and SCFCSV published deadlines.

Academic Impact

In the collegiate program the student receives both high school and college credit upon
successful completion of the course(s). For the high school academic record, SCF courses are
weighted +1 point in the student's GPA per class.

Student Responsibilities
During program planning, the student is expected to:

e Meet with the SCFCS or SCFCSV college advisor to complete the selection of SCF
college courses.

e Follow the process to receive and return textbooks and supplies.

e Maintain required attendance in all courses.

e Follow the drop/add and grading policies outlined in the current SCF catalog, with the
approval of the college advisor and head of school.

o Seek permission from the SCFCS or SCFCSYV college advisor for any schedule
changes. Students may not enroll or withdraw from a course without approval of the
SCFCS or SCFCSV administration.

e Students on academic probation [s.1007.271(3)] after one semester and/or have not
received credit for a course will sign an academic contract to remediate during the
following semester, with conditional continuation of enrollment, with the advisor meetings
and monitoring.

Qualifying Test Scores

Exam Type PERT ACT PreACT  Digital SAT SAT  Digital PSAT PSAT/PSAT10 Accuplacer CLT CLT10
Reading 106 19 22 490 24 490 24 256 38 37
Writing 103 17 18 490 25 490 25 253 38 37
Math 114 19 22 480 24 480 24 261 16 16

SCF Placement Test Retake Policy

SCFCS and SCFCS-Venice applicants may take the Postsecondary Education Readiness Test
(PERT) one time per term not to exceed a maximum of two attempts per calendar year.

SCF Test Score Acceptance Policy
SCF will accept PERT, ACT and react, SAT and PSAT(10), CLT(10) and the Accuplacer test

scores for eligibility into the college program. Students may super score for entrance. Test score
reports must have the student's full name (first and last), test date, and test score results to be




accepted. These test score reports will be accepted via e-mail, mail, fax, or hand delivery for
processing. Retake policies for exams that do not include PERT are dictated by College Board,
ACT and Classical Learning Test (CLT) published exam schedules.

College Advisor Responsibilities
During program planning, the SCFCS or SCFCSYV college advisor will:

Assist the student with the SCF application process.

Assist the student in making SCF course selections and register the student.

Share important enroliment deadlines and academic calendar information.

Share information as permitted with parents regarding the progress of the student and

set up parent conferences when necessary.

e Enroll students in a high school junior and senior seminar to communicate college
readiness and life skills and to monitor student progress.

¢ Outline articulations for scholarships with the charter's articulations to higher education

institutions.

Costs Associated with the SCFCS Dual Enroliment Program

SCF will invoice SCFCS each semester, or Sarasota County Schools for the Venice campus
each semester. SCFCS and SCFCSV adheres to the SCF Standard Tuition Fee - $71.98/hr. All
withdrawals and refunds shall be according to SCF policy as provided in the College Catalog.
Students retaking a course will pay for the second attempt.

Textbook Policies and Procedures

SCFCS and SCFCSV will provide its dual enrolled students with all required textbooks and
materials throughout their enroliment at the Collegiate Schools.

The procedure for acquiring textbooks each semester will be communicated by the college
advisor. Books and materials, such as lab coats, goggles, and calculators must be returned
within one week after the last final exam day of each semester listed in the SCF academic
calendar. Textbooks for successive terms will not be issued until all textbook materials from
previous semesters have been returned.

Students will be responsible for the full replacement cost for any textbook or other purchased
materials not returned or deemed in unacceptable condition by the SCF bookstore.

General Procedures for SCFCS and SCFCS-Venice

Application Process

All students interested in the SCFCS and SCFCS-Venice dual enrollment program must
complete an application and enroll in the lottery. Information sessions are held in the fall and
spring. New applicants to the charters will be issued SCF college identification numbers so that
they may complete the PERT at SCF. After testing, scores and transcripts will be reviewed by



SCFCS or SCFCSV to determine eligibility for the program. Other qualifying tests may be
scheduled by the student families. Selected candidates meeting all criteria will then be notified
and asked to schedule a face-to-face advising session with the SCFCS or SCFCSV college
advisor.

Testing Procedures Precollegiate Program

SCFCS/SCFCSV college advisor will recommend early test dates for group testing of current
SCFCS/SCFCSYV students for the PERT in 9th and 10th grade, to facilitate a timely completion
of the registration process and monitor progress towards acceptance.

Course Registration Process

Students are required to meet with the SCFCS or SCFCSV college advisor to complete course
selection and registration. Students will be registered on the campus on which their school is
located. Students who enroll in an online course or at another campus will be approved on a
case-by-case basis, or as part of the possible implementation of the SCFCS or SCFCSV
Instructional Continuity Plan. Students must register with the assistance of the SCFCS or
SCFCSV college advisor as they will not have access to register independently.

Students with documented disabilities such as a 504 or IEP will be referred to SCF's Disability
Resource Center to coordinate accommodations with professors.

SCF Collegiate Schools College Program Guidelines and Policies

To receive high school course credit in a college course, student must earn a D or higher. To
earn high school and college credits, most courses must earn a C, but some may earn a D.
Students who do not earn a C may be required to remediate by taking the same course or a
course substitution. The initial attempted grade will remain on the student transcript.

Students must maintain a 2.0 SCF GPA and a 3.0 SCFCS (high school) unweighted GPA.
Those who earn below a 2.0 SCF GPA and/or a 3.0 SCFCS unweighted GPA will be advised by
the SCFCS or SCFCSV college advisor and administration regarding required remediation
and/or 2nd attempt course enroliment requirements and eligibility, per Florida State Statute
100.271(3). Students who do not maintain the required GPA for high school and college may not
be permitted to continue in the College Program, nor to transfer to, or enroll in, any other SCF
dual enrollment or Early College program.

Students who must repeat a course due to failure or withdrawal must pay tuition to retake the
second attempt.

SCFCS or SCFCSV reserves the right to follow SCF student academic standing procedures as
a whole or with modifications that serve in the best interest of the student.

Students who wish to withdraw or are withdrawn from an SCF course must notify the SCFCS or
SCFCSV college advisor immediately.

Not all college courses offered by State College of Florida, Manatee-Sarasota are available
through the SCFCS or SCFCSV dual enrollment program.



Restrictions include, but are not limited to:

¢ Remedial level and enrichment courses are not available for credit.
Flex start classes may be approved, but on an individual basis.
Upper-level baccalaureate courses are not available.
Certain nursing and health science courses will not be available due to age restrictions.
All college courses should carry transfer (associate in arts degree) credit and must meet
guidelines from the Florida Department of Education secondary schools accelerated
credit agreement.

Students who qualify for the SCFCS or SCFCSV dual enrollment before 11th grade may meet
additional academic criteria to take up to two additional courses, one course per semester, or 6
credit hours. Any student qualified to attend must have all permissions and scheduling
completed by the SCFCS or SCFCSV college advisor. Courses must fit in the high school
schedules. This limited credit allowance may be amended if students have accelerated past the
high school course curriculum.

Students beginning in their junior year are scheduled 60 credit hours over the course of four
semesters to earn the AA degree. Additional courses, such as during the summer, must not
conflict with the student's academic plan, which must allow them to graduate simultaneously
with a high school and Associate of Arts degree.

Student Information .

e Campus Resources
SCFCS and SCFCSV dual enrollment program students are entitled and encouraged to use
SCF resources including libraries, computer labs, and tutorial labs should the charter resources
be insufficient to succeed in the college course work.

e Transportation
Transportation to the SCF campus, via the Collegiate Schools charter transportation contracts,
is provided with the k12 students.

e Parking Decals
SCFCS and SCFCSV students are issued one parking decal per academic year free of charge.
All students must go to the Security Office with a photo ID and copy of their class schedule to
obtain their parking decal.

e SCF Student I.D.
SCFCS and SCFCSV College Program students must obtain an SCF Student ID at the Security
Office. This SCF Student ID will also act as a library card for the student.

¢ Maximum Age Enroliment Eligibility
To participate in the SCFCS or SCFCSV college program, eligible students must be enrolled in
SCFCS or SCFCSV no later than fall semester of grade 12 provided they meet criteria.

e Maximum Course Load and Enroliment Policy
Students in grades 11 and 12 follow SCF guidelines related to maximum course load and
enrollment policies.



o Repeat Policy
Students needing to repeat a course due to failing grades are required to conference with the
SCFCS or SCFCSV college advisor and request permission to re-take a required course.
Participating students may be eligible for SCF's grade forgiveness policy (see SCF catalog for
grade forgiveness policy). However, the original grade will continue to appear on the student's
high school and college transcripts.

Should students not successfully complete a course on the 2nd attempt, students are not
automatically enrolled in a 3rd attempt. Students and parents must appeal for the permission to
enroll for a 3rd attempt and to participate in the request for in-state tuition. The committee
reviews the student history and reasons for wanting to continue in the program. SCF guidelines
outline the consequences of failing the third course attempt.

e Withdraw Policy
A student may withdraw, with SCFCS or SCFCSV college advisor approval, from any course
without academic penalty prior to the withdraw deadline as listed in the SCF Academic
Calendar. The SCFCS or SCFCSV college advisor will advise the student of the consequences
of the 2nd and 3rd attempt law. This action may result in required credit recovery during the
summer.
It is the responsibility of the student to initiate the withdraw procedure with the SCFCS college
advisor. Failure to follow procedure could result in a grade of "F" being recorded for the student
and calculated in the grade point average. Courses mandatory for AA credits that are marked
with a W must be taken again. SCFCS or SCFCSYV students follow the SCF procedure to appeal
withdraws.

¢ Grading Policy
In accordance with F.S. 1007.235, it is the responsibility of SCF for assigning letter grades for
courses and the responsibility of SCFCS or SCFCSV for posting dual enroliment course grades
to the high school transcript as assigned by the postsecondary institution awarding the credit.
Grades earned while a student is in the SCFCS or SCFCSV dual enroliment program will
become part of the student's permanent college and high school transcript and GPA.

¢ Impact on Future College/University Admissions and Scholarships
SCFCS or SCFCSV collegiate students who receive a failing grade in a college course may
have difficulty remaining in the SCFCS or SCFCSV College Program. Furthermore, they may
not meet future admission requirements at colleges and universities, including financial aid and
scholarship opportunities.

e Transcripts
Students may request an official transcript from the SCF Educational Records Office for a
posted fee. Students may print out their unofficial transcript from the SCF website. A high school
transcript will be provided upon request by the SCFCS or SCFCSV registrar.

e Student Code of Conduct
Students taking dual enroliment courses are subject to the rules and regulations of State
College of Florida, Manatee-Sarasota as established in the SCF Catalog. SCFCS or SCFCSV
adheres to additional requirements established and distributed to students by the Manatee
County School District's Code of Conduct or the Sarasota County Schools Code of Conduct and
the SCF charters’ Principals of Participation.



e Collegiate Environment
While in college courses, students are subjected to a learning environment that promotes an
open exchange of ideas. Course content is presented on an adult level, and class discussions
require a mature understanding of diverse viewpoints and the ability to think critically on
controversial issues. Students are expected to, and will assume, a more independent role as
mature college students.
Juniors and seniors are welcome in the SCF Collegiate Schools buildings during the school day
as volunteers and during school functions and are welcome to and highly encouraged to
embrace the clubs, organizations, activities, and support services on the SCF campus. Students
who are interested in volunteer hours may work with the SCFCS or SCFCSYV certified school
counselors and instructors as tutors and/or during events with pre-collegiate students.

e College-Level Course Expectations
The student will receive a syllabus from the instructor during the first week of class outlining
college-level course expectations. This syllabus may be shared by the student with their
parents, as a reference to the expectations of each course.

e Students Requesting Accommodation for a Documented Disability
In partnership with SCF Collegiate Schools, SCF provides reasonable academic
accommodations to qualified students with disabilities. The Disability Resource Center (DRC)
has established a comprehensive plan for responding to all requests for the provision of
accommodations (adaptive devices and/or auxiliary staff and services) to meet the individual
and unique needs of individuals with disabilities. Students must self-identify to the DRC office
and provide documentation of their disability. DRC staff will review submitted documentation
and meet with the student to develop an Accommodation Agreement. The DRC staff will explain
the accommodation process, DRC services/resources, the importance of self-advocacy and
working collaboratively wit instructors.

Administrative Policies

¢ Assurance of Transfer and Credit Policies
Associate in arts (A.A.) received upon satisfactory completion of college courses offered through
this agreement shall be transferable in the State of Florida as described in Rule 6A-10.024,
PAC. [Articulation between Universities, Community Colleges and School Districts] associate in
applied science (A.A.S.) credits are not included in this rule and are not intended for transfer in
the State University System.

¢ Assurance of High School Credit
Upon satisfactory completion of college courses, students will be awarded high school credit.
Credit will be noted on high school transcript as well as official SCF transcript. Students may
need to fulfill high school requirements not offered as college courses at SCFCS or SCFCSV
pre-collegiate program, or online utilizing Florida Virtual School.

¢ Relationship of Responsibilities
Due to the parallel nature of enroliment, administrative and procedural responsibilities must be
shared between SCFCS or SCFCSV and SCF. Students must adhere to registration.
attendance, and withdraw policies as determined by SCFCS or SCFCSV and State College of
Florida, Manatee-Sarasota.

109



e College Credit Dual Enroliment Rule
Pursuant to Rule 6A-14.064, the College Credit Dual Enroliment Rule clarifies the responsibility
of the colleges in providing rigorous academic oversight for all dual enroliment courses, faculty
credentials, exams, grades, and the awarding of postsecondary credit. This rule is in keeping
with the Southern Association of Colleges and Schools accreditation requirements. The policies
and procedures outlined in this agreement reflect the provisions of Rule 6A-l 4.064.

¢ Student Complaint/Conflict Resolution
SCF provides students all appropriate means to resolve conflicts or complaints concerning
college rules, procedures, and/or course policies at the lowest level possible. The complete
process can be found on the SCF website.

o Statement of Nondiscrimination
State College of Florida, Manatee-Sarasota does not discriminate on the basis of sex,
pregnancy, race, religion, age, national origin/ethnicity, color, marital and veteran status,
disability, genetic information or sexual orientation in any of its educational programs, services
and activities, including admission and employment.

State College of Florida, Manatee-Sarasota conforms to the Family Educational Rights and
Privacy Act of 1974 (FERPA). No student grades are posted in any public manner; no grades
are provided by telephone. Students obtain their grades by conferring in person with their
instructors or by accessing them online via Canvas Learning Management System and mySCF.



Dual Enroliment College Course Equivalency Information

Please refer to the Dual Enrollment Course Equivalency List for the latest information on high
school credit awarded for dual enrollment courses. For the most up to date list, please go to
https://www.fldoe.org/core/fileparse.php/20872/urlt/9-2.pdf

This list should not be interpreted as a complete list of the dual enrollment courses available.
Current law allows for any course in the Statewide Course Numbering System (SCNS) to be
offered as dual enrollment, with the exception of remedial courses and Physical Education skills-
based courses. Physical Education courses that can be offered for dual enrollment are limited to
those that satisfy the personal fithess requirement.

Three credit (or equivalent) postsecondary courses taken through dual enroliment that are not
listed on this list shall be awarded at least 0.5 high school credits either as an elective or subject
area credit as determined by the local school district.

The college certificate programs are separated into courses, which makes transfer and
articulation easier. As a guideline, 135 instructional hours is equivalent to one secondary credit,
however, the determination of equivalency should be based on content, not "seat time."

o Bright Futures Eligibility
The Bright Futures Comprehensive Course Table (CCT) lists the secondary and dual enroliment
postsecondary courses and programs used to determine Bright Futures eligibility. If there is a
program or course specified in an inter-institutional articulation agreement that is not in the CCT,
one should contact the Standards, Benchmarks, and Frameworks Section for review and
approval of the equivalency.

SCF Courses not Approved for Dual Enroliment

MUC1211 MVB 1311 MVB 1312 MVW1012B MVS 1313
MVS1313 MVB 1313 MVB 1314 MVW1013A MUC 2221
MVS1314 MVB 1315 MVB 2321 MVW1013B MVW1314
MVS1316 MVB 2322 MVB 2323 MVW1014A MVW 1315
MVS2321 MVB 2324 MVB 2325 MVW1014B MVW 2321
MVS2321 MVK 1011A MVK 1011B MVW1015A MVW 2322
MVS2322 MVK 1013A MVK 1013B MVW1015B MVW 2324
MVS2323 MVK 1311 MVK 1313 MVW1311 MVW 2325
MVS2324 MVK 2321 MVP 1011A MVW1312 MVB 1013B
MVS2326 MVP 1011B MVP 1311 MVW1313 MVB 1014A
MVV1011A MVP 2321 MVS 1011A MVS 1312 MVB 1014B
MVV1011B MVS 1011B MVS 1012A MVB 1011A MVB 1015A
MVV1311 MVS 1012B MVS 1013A MVB 1011B MVB 1015B
MVV2321 MVS 1013B MVS 1014A MVB 1012A MVW1011B
MVWIOIIA MVS 1014B MVS 1016A MVB 1012B MVS 1016B
MVS 1311 MVB 1013A

102


https://www.fldoe.org/core/fileparse.php/20872/urlt/9-2.pdf

STATE COLLEGE OF FLORIDA, MANATEE-SARASOTA AND STATE COLLEGE OF
FLORIDA COLLEGIATE SCHOOL DUAL ENROLLMENT PROGRAM
AGREEMENT 2026-2027

The purpose of this agreement is to define the acceleration mechanisms available between the
State College of Florida Collegiate Schools and State College of Florida, Manatee-Sarasota and
to specify the details of the day-to-day operations of the charters’ dual enroliment programs.

This agreement is pursuant to and in adherence of the provisions of F. S. 1007.235 and
1007.271.

The terms of this agreement shall remain in effect for the 2026-2027 academic year, which
includes Fall 2026, Spring 2027, and Summer 2027 terms. An executed and signed letter of
intent will constitute annual renewal.

State College of Florida & Collegiate Schools approvals:

AVP Collegiate Schools, Date
State College of Florida, Manatee-
Sarasota

Vice President Academic Affairs, Date
State College of Florida, Manatee-
Sarasota

President Date
State College of Florida, Manatee-
Sarasota

Chair, District Board of Trustees Date
State College of Florida, Manatee-
Sarasota

103



Exhibit

VP Finance - CFO Report - December 9, 2025

State College of Florida is strengthening its financial reporting to the Board of Trustees to
ensure clear visibility into the financial drivers that impact academic quality, student
opportunity, and long-term operating resiliency.

Historically, financial reporting has focused largely on percentage changes in revenue and
expense categories. While helpful, this approach has not always addressed why results
change or how financial conditions affect operational sustainability and future resource
planning.

Beginning with this report, SCF is transitioning to a more strategic financial reporting model
that:

Explains why variances occur — not just what they are
Identifies risk, sustainability, and timing factors in performance
Directly connects financial results to mission-critical operations

YV VYV V

Ensures the Board receives transparent and actionable insights that support
governance responsibilities

To align with NACUBO (National Association of College and University Business
Officers) guidance and State of Florida fund accounting requirements, this report focuses
on the College’s primary operating activities, which include instruction, academic and
student support, institutional support, and campus operations — the resources essential
for delivering educational programs and services to students.

The report also includes results for the Collegiate Schools and other restricted program
activities, whose revenues must be used for designated educational purposes. These
activities play an important role in supporting SCF’s mission, but their resources are not
interchangeable with general operating funds and cannot be used to offset core operating
costs.

Other activities — such as auxiliary enterprises, agency accounts, scholarships, capital
projects, debt service, and plant funds — are included for context only. These resources
are restricted, externally designated, or otherwise unavailable to support day-to-day
operating needs. Presenting these categories alongside operating activities can create a
misleading impression of financial flexibility that does not actually exist. For
informational purposes, we have included a Fund Balance and Purpose report as of June
30, 2025 to help illustrate the purpose of each fund the College is responsible for
stewarding and their corresponding balance as of June 30, 2025.

Therefore, the monthly financial reporting that follows centers on the operations
that directly sustain academic delivery, institutional capacity, and the student
experience.

104



Our Commitment to the Board
Each financial report going forward will answer not only:

“What are the numbers?”

but also:

“What do the results mean?”

“Are they sustainable?”

“What decisions or actions may be required?”

This enhanced reporting approach strengthens transparency, improves internal control
oversight, and supports the Board'’s ability to ensure SCF’s operational and financial
stability on behalf of students and the community.

Total SCF Primary Operations - Executive Summary as of September 30, 2025

Combined academic operations and Collegiate Schools reflect a materially improved
financial position for SCF early in FY26. Across the College’s core operating portfolio,
revenue stability and recruitment progress are aligning with strong cost containment,
resulting in a significantly improved operating margin.

While topline gains are modest, expense discipline — particularly vacancy management and
reduced non-mandatory transfers — is driving performance. At the same time, specific risk

factors are emerging: personnel benefit inflation, increasing contracted services
expenditures in Collegiate Schools, and dependence on timing-sensitive revenue streams
(state allocations and fee recovery).

Overall, SCF’s operational health is trending solidly positive, supporting financial stability,

institutional reinvestment capacity, and the strategic imperative of restoring long-term

recurring balance. Finance will continue to evaluate mid-year expenditure acceleration and
maintain clear visibility to ensure improvements represent structural gains, not temporary

timing effects.

105



Lower-Level Programs - As of September 30, 2025 - FY 25-26 vs, FY 24-25

Lower Level Programs are demonstrating meaningful improvement in early FY26 financial
performance. Year-to-date revenue is up modestly (+1%), driven primarily by increases in
student fee revenue and state support. Personnel expenses are down 4% year-over-year
due to vacancy management and overtime/OPS control, while benefits inflation continues
to require attention. Current expenditures are trending slightly higher (+5%), largely
attributable to timing of instructional supply purchasing. Most notably, the absence of last
year’s $8.3M non-mandatory transfer produces a significantly lower overall expense level (-
40%), resulting in a substantially improved operating margin through the first quarter.

Key Year-to-Date Performance Indicators:

» Revenue: $17.27M vs. $17.08M prior year (+$19K; +1%)
> Expense: $12.55M vs. $20.81M prior year (-$8.26M; -40%)
» Margin: +$4.72M vs. (-$3.74M) prior year (+$8.46M)

Upper-Level Programs - As of September 30, 2025 - FY 25-26 vs. 24-25

Upper-Level Programs are performing on target and maintaining positive operating
capacity. Revenues are slightly ahead of the prior year (+2%) due to stable enrollment and
increases in other student fees. Expenditures remain well contained at 12% of budget
compared to 15% at this point last year. Personnel spending is effectively flat with modest
vacancy-related savings offset by higher benefits costs (+47%), which remain a pressure
point to monitor. Current operating expenditures are materially lower (-96%), reflecting
reduced waivers and contracted service activity in the first quarter.

Key Year-to-Date Performance Indicators:

» Revenue: $688K vs. $676K prior year (+$12K; +2%)
» Expense: $249K vs. $263K prior year (-$14K; -5%)
> Margin: +$439K vs. +$413K (+$26K)

Consolidated Summary - As of September 30, 2025 - FY 25-26 vs. FY 24-25

Together, Lower and Upper-Level Programs present a positive early-year financial position
for the College’s core academic operations. Revenues are tracking ahead of last year in both
areas, supported by enrollment stabilization and strong recurring state funding. Cost
discipline remains evident, particularly in personnel and services spending, and year-to-
date budget utilization is materially lighter compared with the prior year. As the year
progresses, continued monitoring will be required to ensure that savings achieved to date
represent sustained structural improvement rather than temporary timing delays. The
consolidated early performance reflects financially sound progress aligned with the

strategic objective of strengthening operating stability while supporting enrollment growth.

106



N0 sJiajsuel) Aloyepuew-uoN [9]

$9s0| painsuiun pue dwod juswhojdwaun ‘esuadxs }gap peq ‘sioAlem 99} ‘sdiysie|oyos ‘aI0}s [euad sapnjou]  [g]

SJOJOBJUOD pUB ‘S89} |euolISSaj0ld pue sjue}nsuod ‘soas dwa) ‘Buisianpe ‘e@duelnsul ‘saiiin ‘syuawaalbe aoinIes ‘siiedal ‘Bunuud ‘euoyd ‘ebejsod ‘|jaaesy sepnpul ]
1JOYs pue JOAO pue ‘sa|es }asse paxiy Wolj spaaoold ‘Ul siajsuely Alojepuew-uou sapnpoul  [g]

9NUBASJ SNOBUE||9ISIW PUB SBLIBA0D8I }qap peq ‘safjjeuad pue sauly ‘SPUSPIAIP pue }salajul sapnjou]  [g]

UO[)EO1ISSE[0B] dNUBAS Juswijodud leng  [|]

%0t~ %LE 80971802 $ 09.°020'89 $ LEE9LS'69 $ %61 996'€G5'2L $ 950°058'29 $ G6£°2G8°.9 § asuadx3 : |ejol puel
0 0—‘ 0 N . -
%GE % zie'ee 909°220'C 000°€L0‘ %0 9LE‘LE 8€1°9G1 ¥0L'9¥L leyde) :[ejoy
%GE %1 ziz'ee 909°220'2 000°€L0°C %02 ale’Le 8€1°9G 1 voL‘ovL Aepno eyded L2
lended
%001~ 000°00€‘8 - - %0 - TLLEEY L TLLSEY'L sidjsuel] :|ejoL
%001~ 000'00€'8 - - %0 - CTLL'EEY | TLLeEY L [o] sseysuelL JOUIO 69
slajsueld]
%SG %be $9.'20L'S 126°129'€T 1£€160°SZ %SG2 119'V86'S SY5‘€68°eT 8€1°216'cZ asuadx3 Juaung :|ejoL
%81~ %8 606'6LE G68'e8.'e 119'80S'G %9 19€'192 L19'EVL'Y 509'28L'Y [g] sebuey uaung JoYI0 €9
%0¥ %LL 610'€5. 8G.°1ZE'Y 90¥'682't %2 SYZ'vS0'L 100'798°€ 010'8€8'€ saljddng pue sjeusiely  z9
bl A ve9'y ¥1€'225°G1L ¥G2'€62'G1L 662 1% 4 126'GY8'Gl ¥'168'GL ] seoinies |
% %08 9€8'v€9" £'225's GZ'e62'S %6 90'699" 6'G¥8'S €61'168'S [¥] 9

asuadx3 Juauny

%t~ %91 2€9°€8.‘9 122'59€°TY ¥66‘LLY ‘T %S 1 086°2£5°9 109°90v'2¥ 18€‘G9€°ZY |ouuosiad : |ejoL
%1 %L 88.°256'L ZLE'6GE°LL 29£'669°L1 %L 8G8°/80'C Lov‘ory'zL Z€6'051°2L syjousg [puuosied  €G
%G1~ %L1 LLE°0LY 262591 768°95.°¢ %01 7087 682'129'c 682'129'c (wied-uoN) 1/d dx3 |suuosiad 18Yl0  Z§
%L~ %91 9zs'0Zy'y ¢ €9s'ovzLz $ 0vL'6G6'9Z $ %91 120201y $ 2LBYPE'OZ $ 09L'€62°9C § Owll Hed wied g dwl] |Ing-sauees |G
|duuosiad
asuadx3y
%1 %62 1£2°6L0°LL $ 6.7'655'8S $ S59'G9Z°09 $ %82 8ZL'vIZLL $ L1S'829°09 $ L1S°829°09 $ anuaAsy : |ejo) puel
%L %62 LE2°6L0°LL 6.7'655°8S 659'69Z°09 %82 8Z1'vLT'LL 11582909 115'829°09 anuaAdy : [ejoL
%0 (zoo't) 89/°112 892'G/Z (1) €02'6.2 €02'6.2 [c] s)dieoay 8nusAey-UON V¥
%EG- %92 vieoLe 0ze'eLL L 0zZe'cLL'L %¥e SZL'GhL 8£5°809 8£5°809 [z] enuensy o0 61
%96~ %Ly v¥1'GSY v9€°216 ¥9¢8°216 %0€ 8€8'102 258829 258819 juswyedeq seINBS pue SeleS /i
%1 99z'/¢ 000'920°¢ 000'920‘¢ %Pl 695°02 00005} 000°0G} Hoddng |esepe4 G
%S %¥e 0.£810°8 8vz'L18'ee ¥26'615'GE %LZ 6v1'6L7'8 100°026'6€ 100°026'6€ yoddng sjels vy
%0014~ %G 626'628 198" L¥¥'L 198" L1l - - - [1] Juswuienog |00 woli4 poddng  ¢f
%19 %LE 86£'clT’) 858°056'S 8G8°0G6°C %8 891°820°'C 820'¢9Z'Y 820°¢9Z'¥ [1] sea4 juspmis Jaui0 ¥
%t %SY L1Z'GlZz'9  § 090'ses'’cl $ 090°ses’cl $ %y 182'65v'9 ¢ 688'8ZLVL $ 688'8ZLYVL $ sea4juspnis Ly
9NUAAdY
1endY A1A Ad pbpnglpy BNV LA Ibpnglpy  jobpng bUO Pbpnglpy  Temoy AlA Jbpnglpy  Jobpng buo uonduosaq 3dAL
/lendY QLA AD  /IendY AlA / 1endY QLA ov
om:Nr_O juadiad juadiad juadiad
¥202 ‘0€ Joquisydeg 6202 ‘0¢ Joquiaydag

0001} pund - sweibolid |[9Aa] 1oM0]
GZ-#20C Ad "SA 92-S20Z Ad
Hoday uosuedwon asuadx3y pue anusAdY JedaA OM]
eplio|4 jo ab9j|09 ajelg

107



asuadxs }gap peq pue sionlem 99 ‘sdiysiejoyos ‘910)s [esjuad sepnou]  [¢]
SJ0JOBJJUOD pUB ‘S83} |BUOISSa)0.d pue SsjuR)NSU0D ‘soAs dwa) ‘Buisiuanpe ‘saljijin ‘sjuswaalbe aoinas ‘siiedal ‘Bunuind ‘euoyd ‘ebeysod ‘jaaesy sepnjpu  [Z]
aNUAASJ SNOBUE||SDSIW PUB SBIIOA0D3I Jgap peq ‘safjjeuad pue sauly ‘SpuaplAlp pue jsasajul sapnpoul  [1]

%S- %S L6L‘c9Z $ 0S9°L62°L $ 122'68L°L $  %cl 9z.'she $ izi'sio'c $ ler'szo0c $ asuadx3 : [ejo puei
%96~ %l 595°0€ Llz'ele 143445 %0 L'l 209°99¢ Z19'99¢ asuadx3 juaun) :[ejoL
%16~ %ce L0262 919'c6 919'c6 %0 600°L 1G8°'6€C LG8‘6ee [€] sebieyD alnd JBYIO €9
%89~ %0 10¢ 9¢198 £¥1'98 %0 S9 £61°G6 11066 sallddng pue sjeusely  z9
%06~ %< €99 Gee'ee G/9'vE %0 19 6GG°LE ¥89°LE [¢] seoimies L9

asuadx3 juaiin)

%9 %G1 129'2¢T €.£'8.G°L 1£8°0.G°L %L 685 .¥T 615801 615'80.°L [ouuosiad : |ejol
%LY %01 oLE' LY G99'76E 621 '76¢ %81 20,09 G1G'62¢ G15'62¢ sjjeueg [puuosiad €§
%Z- %61 6110 009°€9¢ 009°€9¢ %61 20.'89 000°29¢ 000°29¢ (wied-uoN) 1/d dx3 |puuosiad J8UYi0 2§
%Z- %S 1 161°1Z) $ 80L'0c8 $ so0L'cl8 $ %l Z8l'sll  $ +00CLO'L $ +00'CLOL § ewll Hed wlad @ awl] [n4-seleles |G
|2uuosiad
asuadx3
%C %S¢ 87£'9.9 $ T9TLL6'L $ TITLLEL $  %EE ovL'889 ¢ Z60°'G.0°C $ Z60'GL0C $ 9NuUdAdY : |BJO] puelD
%C %GE 82£'9.9 292°L16°L 292°L16°L %EE 01889 260°5.0'C 260°6.0°C anudAdY : |ejo)
%Ze- %82 6LL'GY €81'6G1) €81'6G1) %2 zze'se 000°0G} 000°0S1 [L] enuanay 1oy10 61
%0 - ¥9L'8/1 ¥9L'8/1 %0 - ¥9L'8/1 ¥91'8/1 yoddng sje}s  pi
%91 %¥e 90¢'8y AN 4 6yL 0L %1€ £¥8'GS zee'LSL zee'Lsl S99 JUSPMIS JBYIO 2
%C %0¥ £06°28G $ 99s'6ev'L $ 996V L %LE v/6'966 ¢ 965'G6G‘L $ 96G'G6SL ¢ S99 JUspNIS Ly
ONUBADY
[enNPY ALA Ad  19BpngIpy  [enpvy alA ybpngIpy  }8bpng bLO ybpngIpy [enpPv dlA }ebpnglpy  38bpng Buo uonduossq adAl
/len}dy ALA AD /IendVY AlA /1endY AlA ov
mm:wco Juadisd Juadisd Juadisd
#20Z ‘0¢ Joquiaydag 6Z02Z ‘o€ Joquiaydag

000Z] pun4 - sweibolid |aaaT Jaddn
G2-¥20C Ad "SA 92-520C Ad
Joday uosuedwo) asuadxg pue anuanay Jeap OM]
epuo|d jo aba||0) djels

108



Collegiate Schools
Bradenton Campus Summary - As of September 30, 2025 - FY 25-26 vs. FY 24-25

Revenue performance is trending slightly below prior year (-8%), driven by the non-
recurrence of prior-year federal COVID relief funding despite stable core county funding.
State support is now present in FY26, improving the revenue mix. Personnel expenses are
trending up (+12%) due to benefit cost inflation, while services costs are elevated (+202%)
reflecting programmatic and contracted support needs. Capital spending is significantly
reduced compared to last year.

The campus maintains a positive year-to-date operating position ($310K), though margin
has softened slightly. Overall, the Bradenton campus is financially stable but must monitor
benefits escalation and growing contracted services spend.

Key Year-to-Date Performance Indicators:

» Revenue: $1.15M vs. $1.25M prior year (-$95K; -8%)
» Expense: $0.84M vs. $0.86M prior year (-$15K; -2%)
» Margin: +$309,846 vs. +$390,008 (-$80K)

Venice Campus Summary- As of September 30, 2025 - FY 25-26 vs. FY 24-25

The Venice campus also continues to operate with a positive margin but shows tighter
margin conditions compared to FY25. Total revenue is down -2%, driven by reduced state
and federal revenue timing, though Sarasota County support remains consistent. Costs are
growing more sharply this year (+56% total expense YoY), primarily due to contracted
services (+345%), higher supply costs (+97%), and increased capital investment. Venice
remains financially sustainable; however, cost-to-serve increases warrant ongoing
attention.

Key Year-to-Date Performance Indicators:

> Revenue: $837K vs. $850K prior year (-$13K; -2%)
» Expense: $420K vs. $269K prior year (+151K; +56%)
» Margin: +$417,453 vs. +$581,056 (-$164K)

Consolidated Summary - September 30, 2025

Both Collegiate School campuses continue to produce positive YTD operating margins and
remain financially healthy in supporting strategic K-12 partnerships. Recurring county
funding streams are stable, and both campuses have maintained revenue consistency
despite volatility in state and federal support.

The primary financial risks now emerging are rapid increases in service contracts,
instructional costs, and benefit inflation, particularly at the Venice campus. These trends
could pressure margins in the second half of the fiscal year if not mitigated through

109



purchasing controls, staffing efficiencies, or adjustments in funding alignment with district
partners.

Overall, the Collegiate Schools contribution to the College’s operating strength remains
favorable, but cost dynamics require proactive management to sustain reinvestment
capacity and educational quality over time.

110



$9sS0| paJinsuiun ‘dwoo juswAojdwaun ‘esuadxa 1gap peq ‘}saiajul 1gap ‘sdiysie|oyos ‘@lols [esusd sapnjoul  [9]

s99} |euolssajoid pue ‘(3Q Buipnjoul) sadiAIes pajoeIjuod ‘eoueinsul ‘eses)| ‘bunund ‘ebejsod ‘|oaes; sepnpu]  [g]

‘paeoq [00yds Ajuno) asjeue|y Aq papieme sdiysiejoyos sapyblg g 3sag pue spuny Aiddns Jayoes) ‘puspliAlp pue jsasaul sapnoul  [¢]
anuanal juelb sepnpu|  [¢]

JouISIp jooyas Ajuno) asjeuey wouy Buipuny jeydeo sepnpul  [g]

JOLISIP |00Yyos AJUnoD asjeue|y Woly anuaAal sapnpul  [1]

%2~ %L1 9£2'658 £€5'P9L°S 296°9LL°S %51 ovL‘0v8 0S€°8.5°S 156°Z8L°S asuadx3 : [ejo) pueio

%08 152'391 266°€EE 668962 %L 9¥6'2¢ 60788V ££8'96 leyded :jejoL
%0S 1G2'891 766°€EE 668962 %L 9v6'Ze 601881 ££8'96 AepnQ |epded 12

leyded

%LE %2l [4%:x:1:] 662°0¥S‘L 09€°0€S‘L %91 816°'L¥T 151°685°L 0v6'G85°L asuadx3g juaun) : [ejoL
%91~ %0% 816'L) 168°11€ vlg'see %6< Zv9'vel 0Lg'ale eYSele se||ddng pue sjeusjelN  z9
%202 %€ €801 201891 L Gl'gee'L %01 gee'ezl YAZAYr A 16€'212'L [] seoinieg L9

asuadx3 juaiin)

%2 %S| 191°86¥ Lvz'o62'e £0.'682°C %91 912655 ¥81°005°C ¥81°005°C |auuosiad : [ejoL
%EE %61 £9e'ThL 9z0'ce. 886'2€. %2 £60°68 1£2'206 L£2'206 sjjeuag |puuosiad €5
%2E %S~ (010%€) 025'65 025'65 %9~ (€26'¢) 02529 02529 (wied-uoN) 1/d dx3 |puuosiad 1BUIO 25
%P %Pl ¥18'85¢ G69°L6¥'C 661 L6Y'C %S 160'v.€ £EY'6eG'T £e1'GeST aWI| Hed wiad B swi] |n4-sauees LG
|ouuosiad
asuadx3
%8~ %82 yvz'sve'l y.1E61SY y.LE615Y %2Z 986°6¥1°L T9E°LPL'S GE9°128Y anuaAay : |ejoL pueln
%8~ %82 yve'sve'l y1E61SY y1E6LS'Y %ZZ 986°67L°L 29e'LYL'S G£9°228Y anuaAdy : |ejoL
%L1~ 6el'ce - - %LL S¥9'9e 000°.S1 000°2G1 [¥] enuanay oYI0 6%
%165 €€8°291 89¢2'/¢ 89¢2'/¢ %0 - 9e5've 9e5've [¢] poddng |eseped G
- - - %22 0£6'0L lzl'6le - [¢] yoddng ajels ¥
%0 %ET €12'050°L 901 °26Y'y 901 °26Y'y %ET L1¥°250°) 660'9€9'y 660'9€9'y [1] Juswuieno9 [0 woi4 poddns ¢
ONUBAIY
[BNPYV AIAAd 1Ppnglpy  [enPY dlA jbpnglpy J9bpng buQ  PBpnglpy  [enPY LA pbpnglpy  19bpng buo uondusssq 3dAL
/lenjoy QLA AD  /[eNndY ALA /1en}dY alA ov
wm:wco juadiad juaduad juadiad
$202Z ‘0€ 19quiaydag G202 ‘0¢ Joquisydag

sndwe) uojuapeug - |jooyoss ajeibajjon
GZ-¥20Z Ad "SA 92-S202 Ad
Joday uosiedwo) asuadxy pue anudaAdY JedA OM ]
epuo|d jo aba|j0) ajels

111



s99} [euolissajoid pue ‘(3 Buipnjoul) sadiAlas pajoeljuod ‘aouelnsul ‘ases| ‘Bunuid ‘ebejsod ‘|oAel) sapnjou]  [G]

BNUBASBJ SPUBPIAIP PUE }SaIdjul sepnjoul ]
anuaAal juelb sapnjpoul  [g]
JoU3sIp jooyas AJuno) ejoseles wouy Buipuny eydes sapnjou|  [g]
J0UISIp |00yds AJunoD ejoseses woly anuaaal sapnppul  [1]
%98 %01 9.6'892 2€5'695°C TLL'YSS'T %vL $09'6LY 0.1'650'€ $98°21L0°E asuadx3 : |ejol pues
%0401 %91 002‘¢ 09€°02 000‘S %Ve 9zZv'Le CISLLL 90989 leyde) : |ejol
%0401 %91 00Z'e 09€‘0C 000'S %Ve [ST4 A% ZIG'LLL 90989 AepnQ (eyded 12
leyided
%LLe %€ ¥86‘VE y1E1LE0'L yLE'LE0'L %6 2.8'801 0€v'202'L 0€Y'20Z°L asuadx3z juaun : |ejoL
%16 %6 L0681 9se'vie 95€°0€T %Ll 0€z'.Le vee'eee vZy'sse sel|ddng pue s|eusiely  Z9
%SYe %2 €80°91 856018 856008 %L Lr9'LL 902°086 900°Lv6 [g] seonteg 19
asuadx3 juaiiny
%81 %S 26.°0€2 8G8°LLS‘L 8S8°LLS‘L %91 90€'€.2 828°LYL'L 828°LYLL |]auuosiad :|ejol
%St %81 v.¥'S9 186°19¢ 186°'19¢ %61 88816 0€€°'20S 0€€°L0S s)joueg |puuosidad  €g
%S€ %€ S98 000°se 000'se %S 0LL} 000'se 000°se (wied-UoN) L/d dx3 [puuosiad Joayl0 2§
%8 %S YSy'volL 128'v2L ) AR AN %S 8ve'LLL 86v'60C° | 86¥'60C°1 Swi] Yed uwlad @ awl] |In4-sauejeg |G
|auuosiad
asuadx3y
%c- %CE 2€0°0S8 12€°'629°C 12€'629'C %92 160°.€8 11€'952°¢ 619°290°¢ 3NUBAJY : |ejoL pueto
%c- %CE 2€0°0S8 12€°'629°C 12€'629°C %92 150°.€8 11€'952°¢ 619°290°C SNUBASY : |ejol
%611 €1€'G 000°¢ 000°¢ %G9¢ 0v6'L 000°¢ 000'c [¥] enuanay Joy0 6t
%6 €S 089'Ct 089zt %l €6 089'CL 089'Ct [€] voddng |esepad  g¥
%t 9196 - - %L1 GLe'Le 869'881 - [z] Hoddng ajels ¥
% %0€ 068'28. Ly9'el9'e L¥9'€19'C %92 60.'26. 6€6'150°¢ 6€6'L50'C [1]uswuienog [e007 woid poddns ey
ONUBADY
[en)dv A1lA Ad 38bpnglpy  [enjov dLA 39bpng Ipy jebpng blLIO ebpngIpy  [endv LA jebpng Ipv 1eBpng BLIO uondudsaq adAL
/1enjoy 1A AD /1endy dlA /1endy dlA v
abueyo juadiad  Juadldd jJuadlad
¥20z ‘o€ 1aquiaydag G202 ‘0€ 1aquiaydeg

sndwe9 ad1ua - [ooyss aje1bajjon
G2-¥20Z Ad "SA 92-G202 A4
Joday uosuedwon asuadxy pue anuUaAdy Jea\ OM]
epuiold jo abajj0) sjelg

112



'sqn|a/suolleziues.o jjels

00°0$ 00°0% . .
suoneziuesiQg play 24 Spuny ayl YydIym| Jo JUSPNIS JO SpUN} Se Yans ‘siaylo Joj Juase |edsly JO UeIpoIsnd
S3IUAINY 3 sqNn|D uUdpNIS 10j uoneziuedio Jo qnd ayl Aq pasodwi asoyy se 989]|02 e Aq p[ay $924n0SaJ 104 JUNOIIE 03 PISN S| puny Siy |
193[04d qn|D WLpnIS Aq Suisiespunyg 9B puny SIy} JO $32JN0S3J 9Y1 UO SUOIIIIISAY :spung Aduasy 9 pung
suoneuoq |eJausn CIT'EEES 8S0°LLTS *989]10) ay3 01 3udwAedau auinbas jou ||Im pue 233]|10D)
‘spaemy diysiejoyas 's91oua8e 9pISIN0 JOYIO| DYl 01 PaJapual SIJIAISS J0) JuswAed Ul Jou aJe YydIym spuspnis
|e207 ‘syueln J0 Jouop 3y} ‘a89||0) ay1 Aq pasodwi| 95031 | 01 SpIeME IO} D|gR|IBAR $92JN0S3J JOJ JUNOIIE 0} PASN S| puny SiyL
sdiysie|oyas| 91e1s ‘syueso |esapad 9B puny SIy} JO $32JN0S3J 9Y] UO SUOIIIIISY :spuny diysiejoyds g pung
. . ‘Ueo| 9y} JO U0I193||0
896'v8Y$ ETL'V8YS .

sSuluae] 1sauau| salpuade apisino 9Y3 40} 3|qisuodsal S| UOIINUISUI BY3 JYIdYM JO ssa|pJesal
‘saulq Sunjied J2Y30 Jo 989]|0) ay3 Aq pasodwi asoyy S1UDPN1S 0} SUBO| JOJ 3|CB|IBAR $92JNOSAJ 9SOY] S4B Spunj ueoq
sueoq JUapNIs ‘suolInNglIuo) 9JE pun} Sy} JO $32JN0S3J BY1 UO SUOIIDIIISY :spung ueoq  pung

S31IA10Y Suioddng
-419S J9Y10 60T‘L0V'8S €ST‘6ETLS (dvvD) sajdiduiid 3ujaunoaoe ‘3uiioddns -J|9s aq 01 papuajul e ydiym
‘SUOISSILIWOD 9IIAIDS paidadoe Ajjesaua8 pue saonoeud 1s9g yum pue Jje1s ‘Alnoey ‘suspnis 01 9|es 404 SIIIAISS [BUOIIINIISUI
1NQ SJ9)SuUeI|| POO4 ‘SUOISSILLWOD paus8ije pue 283||0) ay3 Aq pasodwi asoys -uou apinouad 01 Ajuewrad paysijgelss aJe sasidiaiua Al ny
‘sdiysJe|oyds ‘saliejes 2103153009 9JB puny SIy} JO $32JN0S3J 9Y1 UO SUOIIIIISY :spung Asejjixny € pung
sjueso e —— *989]102 9y3 Jo saAnda(qo
|e1oads/|e207 ‘spun4 Le0vTo’0tTS 60Z'7€9°8% 'sa1ouade Sunioddns pue Asewad ay3 ysijdwodde 03 pasn aq Aew yarym
219 ‘s|eldale|N pa1014153Y ‘syueln 9pPISINO J3Y30 Jo Siouop Ag pasodwl SOyl|  S224N0S3J JILIOUOID 3SOY] JO4 JUNOIJE 01 PASN OS|e S| puny siy |
‘lonea]  ‘saljddns ‘saliejes| 91e1S ‘Sjue.D [eJapa4 9JB puny SIy} JO $32JN0S3J 9Y1 UO SUOIIIIISY Pa1o1ISaY — SpuNn4 uain) gz pund

S994

J39Y30 pue siajsued]

‘suiused 1saJa1u|

‘s994 Juapn
43USpms v06'vSE‘0CS 926'v89°92$

s191ndwo) ‘syoog Aseuqi]
‘quawdinb3 ‘@unjiuing “239
‘S92IAIDS ‘Bullnsuo) ‘|aAes |
‘28e150( ‘sauoyd ‘salyin
‘sal|ddng ‘s|eliaie|y ‘salieles

‘spund |ed108931e)
|e10ads ‘Asanoq
‘anuanay |eJauan
‘suoljeladosddy
aAne|sida

198pnq panoadde
3y3 Jo uoiie|n8as ‘me| Aq pasodwi asoyl
9JE puny Sy} JO $32JN0S3J BY1 UO SUOIIIIISY

*983]102 ay31 Jo saA13d3lqo Suiuoddns pue Asewiud ay3 ysijdwodoe
01 pasn aq Aew Yyd1ym $924N0S3J JIWLIOUOID 3SOY] J0) JUNOIJE
01 Pasn S| puny siy| :pajduIsalun — spung Juauan) T pung

sasn

$3924n0S

sasuejeg pajedojjeun
13 SOAIBSDY
pajewnsy
520z ‘0€ aunr

saJue|jeg paiedojjeun
13 SOAI9SDY
¥20z ‘o€ aunr

Suo139111S3Y

annd

G20¢Z ‘0O€ =2unr m:_ﬁ:w JEoIA |eJSi4 9y] 10} asodind pue ajuejeg pun4

113



‘paonpad Ajpusnbasqgns

SI UOI1BJ0||B 9Y3 4 UOIIDNPAP B SE pue Paledo||e Sl I UBYMm spund jue|d paidadxaun o3 uollippe ue se paziu§odau st Asuow QD3d 40O UOIIeIO||e By "uol1ednp3 Jo usawiedaqg
ep1IO|{ Yl WOJ} UollezIJoyIne adueiquindua ue SulAledal pue oy SulAjdde uodn Ajuo sadinosaJ asay) puadxa 01 paziioyine si 98s||0D 9y ‘sIseq |enuue ue uo 3ga||0) ayl 0}
‘Buipuny (0D3d) AejanQ |eude) uoileanpl aljgnd se umouy Ajjesauas ‘soxe] s1d192aJ $S043 s91e20]|E 91e]1S By |

8uipung 0J3d

'$989]|02 5,91e1S 9Yy3 4o wesSoud Suiresado juaaund ay3 jo uoddns ay3 4oy aunie|sida] ayl Aq spew suoinrelsdosdde jo Ajuofew syl asludwod [[eys ydiym me| ui paysijgeiss pund

(4dD2) pun4 weaSoad a83|j0) Aylunwiwo)

*Jeal |BISl) IX2U Y3 Ul S2INHPUSdXd MdU puny 03 d|qe|ieAe S| Ydiym aduejeq puny Suipua jo uoipiod v

aduejeg pun4 pajelojjeun

‘@oduejeq punj woJdj} paysi|jgelsa aJe SaAIaSal ~£wmu 0] P31J3AUO0)d 2( 10U ||IM JO Jouue)d S)asse 1ey] Jualxa ayl 0] "sallljigel| J9A0 S}asse JO SSadXa ay |

3juejeg pun4

‘@oue|eq punj umc_mmw 9AI9SaJ e se _uwtOQwL 9Je Sadueiqunoua Qwr_umm_ ‘salpjiqel| Jo mw.:‘;__ucwaxw se _Uwu‘_oaw.h
JOU 2Je saduelquindul ‘aiep mc_tOn_w._ 93} JO Se PaAISI33J 10U S3JIAJSS JO S|eliale 10} SjusWHWWOI |[eUJ91XD J19Ylo 10 SIapJo mmmr_u._Jn_ wc__ucmwmujo wc_wcwmw._n_w._ saduelJquindul

sadueiquindul
:suonyuyag
96T‘0LS‘T6TS €98°6VY' VLTS leiol
'suedA /£ ‘@anjiuing pue ‘siedA g “b3 - ue
Z2v'T19'90TS 0TS‘S6L/0T$ £ sanuuind p s bapap
S9UIYIBI 92110 ‘S9IIIYIA ‘sieah € quawdinb]
J9Indwo) ‘sueadA QT ‘S24N10N41S JBYIQ ‘S4edh op ‘Aue 41 ‘osea)| |ended uapun
(syoog ‘s8uip|ing :smojjo4 se paindwod si uonjeldaudag s1asse ‘ssau8oud ul uoI1aNJISUOI ‘BueMos elep ‘Quawdinba
'219 2J4njuung ‘syoog Aleaqry Aseaqi quawdinby ‘syuawanodwil ‘Adauryoew ‘ainjiuiny ‘syuswanoldwl pue sainyonils
‘quawdinb3 pspowinp ‘s3uip|ing ‘pue) pue sa4n1onJ3s Jay1o pue s3ulp|ing Joj 000°SZS | 42Y1o ‘s3ulp|ing ‘pue| JO 1SISUOD S1aSSE DY "S3IlI|Iel| PR1RIJOSSe
pue ‘919|0sqQ ‘pPa1epPINQ JO saseyound |eude) pue Ajiadoud |euosiad a|qi8uel o) 000’SS O pue s3asse jue|d JO SIS0 dAI1B|NWND 3y} JOJ JUNOIDE
suol33|ag pue uoliealdag 104 Suidaaypioday pjoysaJy3 uoiiezijeyded e apnjoul SUOIIIIISIY 01 pPasn S| punj Siy| :Spun4 jue|d ui paisanu| 6 pund
00°0$ 00°0$ *(s)uoize8ijqo ay3 uo 1sa493ul 9yl Aed
sjusawAed pue 1gap ay3 341324 03 PASN 3q ||IM YdIYM S224n0S3J 3y} JOJ pue
|edidulid pue 1sa4a3u| s994 Se| syuawAed 921A43s 1gap 03 paywi|| 289]|02 e JO 1gap WJd) -U0| Y] JOJ JUNOIIE 0} PASN S| puny siy |
puog ‘syuswAed 1g9Q| 9sua2I7 ‘Uj SJajsue. | 9Je puny siy} JO $92JN0SAJ 9Y] UO SUOIIIIISAY 'spun4 921A19S 19aQ 8 pung
S92IAJIDS JUDWaSeuey o s ueld |eaisAyd ayi aSeuew ‘sal|igel|
6V9'€9€'SY$ v6T'LEY'8TS

jue|d quawdinby
|exde) ‘uoiusinboy

91IS ‘suieday Jolen
‘uilspoway/uoiieAousy
‘s3up|ing MaN

sJajsued|

|1e207 ‘s3uiuie]
1S9J491U| ‘se94

Se] asuadIq/spuog
S@80D ‘spun4 0J3d

0] S92IAJS PAjeID0SSe 9yl pue uolusinboe ays
‘quawdinba |endes ‘sutedau Jolfew ‘Suijapowsal
/SUOI1BAOUSI ‘UOIIINJIISUOD MBU 0} Pa1dIIISaI
9.Je pue spuny 0)3d 404 a1nie1s Aq pasodwi
9Je puny siy} JO $92JN0SAJ BY] UO SUOIIIIISAY

paie|oosse se [|om se ‘Aliadoud [euojiniiisul jo yuswade|dals
Jo/pue Jiedas Jofew ay3 4o paleudisap $a2inosal pue sasodind
uol3N}iIsulJoy pasn aq 03 Ayadoud |eaisAyd o uoi3dNIISUO0d J0
uollisinboe ay3 4oy} 3|qe|leA. aJe 1.y} S924N0SAJ JOJ JUNOIJEe

0] pasn S| punj siy] :spung jue|d papuadxaun £ pung

sasn

$921n0S

saoue|eg pajedojjeun
3 SAAIISAY
palewnsy
9202 ‘0€ dunr

saJue|jeg paiedojjeun
13 SOAI9SDY
S20¢ ‘o€ dunr

suo1311ISaY

annd

114



RESOLUTION NUMBER: Eight (08)
AMENDMENT NUMBER: Eight (08)

FUND NAME: CURRENT UNRESTRICTED

Exhibit I

BUDGET AMENDMENT REQUEST
STATE COLLEGE OF FLORIDA, MANATEE - SARASOTA

FISCAL YEAR: 2025-26
September 2025

FUND NUMBER: 11000

PRESENT REVISED

CATEGORY BUDGET INCREASE DECREASE BUDGET
Beginning Fund Balance 16,284,302 $ $ $ 16,284,302
REVENUES 60,628,517 60,628,517
TOTAL TO BE ACCOUNTED FOR 76,912,819 $ 0 $ 0 $ 76,912,819
SALARIES 42,407,601 $ § 1,000 <a> § 42,406,601
CURRENT EXPENSES 25,278,317 9,000 <b> 25,287,317
CAPITAL OUTLAY 155,638 500 <c> 156,138
ENDING FUND BALANCE 9,071,263 8,500 <d> 9,062,763
TOTAL ACCOUNTED FOR 76,912,819 $ 9,500 $ 9,500 $ 76,912,819
JUSTIFICATION:
<a> The $1,000 decrease in Salaries Expense is due to:

Reversal of September budget adjustment for Supplemental pay for LWR Admin Assistant $ (1,000)

<b> The $9,000 increase in Current Expenses is due to:
Reversal of September budget adjustment for Supplemental pay for LWR Admin Assistant $ 1,000

$ (1,000)

SCF's portion Economic Impact Study of the Florida College System 9,000
Purchase of new server for Communications and Marketing (500)
Community Outreach transferred budget to Student Life for the purchase of gift cards (500)
$ 9,000
<c> The $500 increase in Capital Outlay is due to:
Purchase of new server for Communications and Marketing $ 500
$ 500
<d> The $8,500 decrease in Fund Balance is due to:
SCF's portion Economic Impact Study of the Florida College System (9,000)
Community Outreach transferred budget to Student Life for the purchase of gift cards 500
$ (8,500)

115



BUDGET AMENDMENT REQUEST
STATE COLLEGE OF FLORIDA, MANATEE - SARASOTA

RESOLUTION NUMBER: Nine (09) FISCAL YEAR: 2025-26
AMENDMENT NUMBER: Nine (09) September 2025
FUND NAME: GENERAL RESTRICTED FUND NUMBER: TWO
PRESENT REVISED
CATEGORY BUDGET INCREASE DECREASE BUDGET
Beginning Fund Balance $ 5,301,817 $ $ $ 5,301,817
REVENUES 14,690,615 749,550 <a> 15,440,165
TOTAL TO BE ACCOUNTED FOR $ 19,992,432 $ 749,550 $ 0 $ 20,741,982
SALARIES $ 10,486,677 $ 237,214 <b> 10,723,891
CURRENT EXPENSES 6,228,730 58,928 <c> 6,287,658
CAPITAL OUTLAY 222,675 222,675
ENDING FUND BALANCE 3,054,350 453,409 <d> 3,507,759
TOTAL ACCOUNTED FOR $ 19,992,432 $ 749,550 $ 0 $ 20,741,982
JUSTIFICATION:

<a> The $749,550 increase in Revenue is due to:
Establish FY26 CAPE budget 749,550

$____ 749550

<b> The $237,214 increase in Salaries Expense is due to:
Establish FY26 CAPE budget 148,257
Establish FY26 Pathway Navigator payroll budget 88,957

$ 237,214

<c> The $58,928 increase in Current Expense is due to:

Establish FY26 CAPE budget 94,104
Purchase LinkedIn subscription 10,000
Establish FY26 Pathway Navigator payroll budget (57,926)
AHEC budget roll forward 12,250
Community Outreach transferred budget to Student Life for the purchase of gift cards 500

$ 58,928

<d> The $453,409 increase in Ending Fund Balance is due to:

Establish FY26 CAPE budget 507,189
Establish FY26 Pathway Navigator payroll budget (31,030)
Purchase LinkedIn subscription (10,000)
AHEC budget roll forward (12,250)
Community Outreach transferred budget to Student Life for the purchase of gift cards (500)

116



RESOLUTION NUMBER: Ten (10)

BUDGET AMENDMENT REQUEST
STATE COLLEGE OF FLORIDA, MANATEE - SARASOTA

FISCAL YEAR: 2025-26

AMENDMENT NUMBER: Ten (10) September 2025
FUND NAME: UNEXPENDED PLANT FUND FUND NUMBER: SEVEN
PRESENT REVISED
CATEGORY BUDGET INCREASE DECREASE BUDGET
Beginning Fund Balance $ 36,434,297 $ $ $ 36,434,297
REVENUES 628,084 9,000,000 <a> 9,628,084
TOTAL TO BE ACCOUNTED FOR $ 37,062,381 $ 9,000,000 $ 0 $ 46,062,381
SALARIES $ 347,236 $ 347,236
CURRENT EXPENSES 622,570 227,021 <b> 849,591
CAPITAL OUTLAY 35,913,739 10,774,979 <c> 46,688,718
ENDING FUND BALANCE 178,836 2,002,000 <d> (1,823,164)
TOTAL ACCOUNTED FOR $ 37,062,381 $ 11,002,000 $ 2,002,000 $ 46,062,381
JUSTIFICATION:
<a> The $9,000,000 increase in Revenue is due to:
Establish budget for Parrish Phase | Development $ 9,000,000
$ 9,000,000
<b> The $227,021 increase in Current Expenses is due to:
Tech Refresh $ 1,000
Bldg. 1 DRC remodel 35,000
Bldg. 11 Howard Theatre remodel 57,900
Bldg. 4 Student Annex remodel 32,000
Architect fees for College wide projects 50,000
Bldg. 19 A/C replacement 51,121
$ 227,021
<c> The $10,774,979 increase in Capital Outlay is due to:
Establish budget for Parrish Phase | Development $ 9,000,000
Replace Venice Collegiate School windows 13,000
Bldg. 19 A/C replacement 300,000
Tech Refresh (1,000)
College wide repair/maintenance/remodel projects 550,000
Bldg. 1 DRC remodel 105,000
Bldg. 11 Howard Theatre remodel (57,900)
Bldg. 4 Student Annex remodel 117,000
Bldg. 19 A/C replacement 248,879
Bldg. 26 roof replacement 500,000
$ 10,774,979

117



RESOLUTION NUMBER: Ten (10)

BUDGET AMENDMENT REQUEST
STATE COLLEGE OF FLORIDA, MANATEE - SARASOTA

FISCAL YEAR: 2025-26

AMENDMENT NUMBER: Ten (10) September 2025
FUND NAME: UNEXPENDED PLANT FUND FUND NUMBER: SEVEN
PRESENT REVISED

CATEGORY BUDGET INCREASE DECREASE BUDGET
Beginning Fund Balance $ 36,434,297 $ $ $ 36,434,297
REVENUES 628,084 9,000,000 <a> 9,628,084
TOTAL TO BE ACCOUNTED FOR $ 37,062,381 $ 9,000,000 $ 0 3 46,062,381
SALARIES $ 347,236  $ 347,236
CURRENT EXPENSES 622,570 227,021 <b> 849,591
CAPITAL OUTLAY 35,913,739 10,774,979 <c> 46,688,718
ENDING FUND BALANCE 178,836 2,002,000 <d> (1,823,164)
TOTAL ACCOUNTED FOR $ 37,062,381 $ 11,002,000 $ 2,002,000 $ 46,062,381
<d> The $2,002,000 decrease in Ending Fund Balance is due to:

Bldg. 1 DRC remodel $ (140,000)

Bldg. 4 Student Annex remodel (149,000)

Architect fees for College wide projects (50,000)

Bldg. 19 A/C replacement (600,000)

Replace Venice Collegiate School windows (13,000)

College wide repair/maintenance/remodel projects (550,000)

Bldg. 26 roof replacement (500,000)

§____(2,002,000)

118



Exhibit J

ACCEPTANCE OF GIFTS AND GRANTS

It is respectfully requested the District Board of Trustees of State College of Florida, Manatee-Sarasota

accept and approve the following gifts and grants.

September 2025

DONOR/GRANTOR

Grants:
United States Department of Education

September YTD Revenue
August YTD Revenue

Change for Month of September

September YTD Revenue
August YTD Revenue

Change for Month of September

September YTD Revenue
August YTD Revenue

Change for Month of September

Total Received (Returned) - Pell Grant

AMOUNT DESCRIPTION

5

5 Pell Grant 2023-24
864,261
875,990

(11,729) Pell Grant 2024-25

- Pell Grant 2025-26
(11,724)

119



Exhibit K

Meeting of the
DISTRICT BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF STATE COLLEGE OF FLORIDA, MANATEE-SARASOTA
December 9, 2025
AGENDA ITEM:
Approval to Write-off Delinquent Accounts — $230,622.66

RECOMMENDATION:

The College recommends District Board of Trustees’ approval of Dual Enrolilment Due from State
Write-off.

STAFF ANALYSIS:

The College is seeking approval to write off uncollectible dual enrollment receivables associated
with the Summer 2024, Fall 2024, and Summer 2025 terms.

For the Summer 2024 and Fall 2024 terms, the College did not receive full reimbursement from
the Florida Department of Education (FDOE) due to an isolated reporting error that occurred
during a period of staff turnover. The error was promptly identified, corrective measures have
been implemented, and the reporting issue has not recurred.

For the Summer 2025 term, the College was unable to secure full reimbursement due to
statewide budget constraints within the FDOE. The College received approximately 50% of the
total Summer 2025 dual enrollment reimbursement, and the remaining unreimbursed balance
represents the portion included in this write-off request.

These amounts have been deemed uncollectible after reasonable efforts and are being requested
for write-off in accordance with College policy and sound accounting practices.

Term Amount Reason
Summer 2024 (202430) S 97,347.15 Reporting mistake/Staff turnover
Fall 2024 (202510) S 67,255.84 Reporting mistake/Staff turnover
Summer 2025 (202530) S 66,019.67 FL DOE budget limitation FY25

FISCAL IMPACT YES
Funding Source: N/A
Amount: _$230,622.66

Will this action result in a Budget Amendment? No

If yes, indicate the dollar amount: N/A
Attachment
REQUESTED BY: __ Jennifer Price
Vice President, Finance & Administration, Chief Financial Officer

120


https://230,622.66
https://230,622.66

AUTHORIZATION TO CHARGE-OFF DELINQUENT STUDENT AND OTHER ACCOUNTS

Itis respectfully requested that the Board of Trustees of State College of Florida, Manatee-Sarasota

grant authorization to charge off the following delinquent student and other accounts:

DE School Contract #
CNTCO1
CNTCSVC
CNTHMM
CNTHMS
CNTMO1
CNTMO02
CNTMO03
CNTMO04
CNTMO05
CNTMO06
CNTMO08
CNTM10
CNTPM10
CNTPSO01
CNTSO01
CNTS02
CNTSO03
CNTS04
CNTSO05
CNTSO06
CNTSO07
CNTSO08
CNTSO09
CNTS10
CNTSCF
CNTHMM
CNTHMS
CNTPM10
CNTPM15
CNTPSO01
CNTPS08
CNTPS17
CNTCO1
CNTCSVC
CNTHMM
CNTHMS
CNTMO1

R AR - R - - = - i R - - T o - < - < R - R < - - - S <o < SR T~ < - <o <

Amount
579.62
11,291.79
9,044.89
5,792.66
5,492.35
6,872.99
6,859.18
3,647.15
473.88
1,166.99
215.94
5,547.99
519.38
7,132.68
597.11
3,302.03
602.11
602.11
870.80
5,237.86
948.30
1,989.79
848.55
644.82
17,066.18
24,643.40
27,682.04
1,943.46
431.88
10,453.12
1,670.06
431.88
72.56
4,873.14
3,991.61
3,645.99
1,044.86

Term
202430
202430
202430
202430
202430
202430
202430
202430
202430
202430
202430
202430
202430
202430
202430
202430
202430
202430
202430
202430
202430
202430
202430
202430
202430
202510
202510
202510
202510
202510
202510
202510
202530
202530
202530
202530
202530

Reason
Billing error/Staff turnover
Billing error/Staff turnover
Billing error/Staff turnover
Billing error/Staff turnover
Billing error/Staff turnover
Billing error/Staff turnover
Billing error/Staff turnover
Billing error/Staff turnover
Billing error/Staff turnover
Billing error/Staff turnover
Billing error/Staff turnover
Billing error/Staff turnover
Billing error/Staff turnover
Billing error/Staff turnover
Billing error/Staff turnover
Billing error/Staff turnover
Billing error/Staff turnover
Billing error/Staff turnover
Billing error/Staff turnover
Billing error/Staff turnover
Billing error/Staff turnover
Billing error/Staff turnover
Billing error/Staff turnover
Billing error/Staff turnover
Billing error/Staff turnover
Billing error/Staff turnover
Billing error/Staff turnover
Billing error/Staff turnover
Billing error/Staff turnover
Billing error/Staff turnover
Billing error/Staff turnover
Billing error/Staff turnover
DOE budget limitation FY25
DOE budget limitation FY25
DOE budget limitation FY25
DOE budget limitation FY25
DOE budget limitation FY25

121



AUTHORIZATION TO CHARGE-OFF DELINQUENT STUDENT AND OTHER ACCOUNTS

Itis respectfully requested that the Board of Trustees of State College of Florida, Manatee-Sarasota

grant authorization to charge off the following delinquent student and other accounts:

DE School Contract #
CNTMO02
CNTMO03
CNTMO04
CNTMO05
CNTMO06
CNTMO08
CNTM10
CNTPM10
CNTPSO01
CNTPS08
CNTSO01
CNTS02
CNTSO03
CNTS04
CNTSO05
CNTSO06
CNTS07
CNTSO08
CNTSO09
CNTS10
CNTSCF
Total

Amount
4,626.81
5,326.62
2,454.23

379.13
700.04
2,627.93
4,908.30
66.43
5,575.98
171.40
1,268.91
828.80
436.96
2,606.00
1,992.61
6,738.78
1,637.69
1,071.06
327.12
236.65
8,410.06

230,622.66

Term
202530
202530
202530
202530
202530
202530
202530
202530
202530
202530
202530
202530
202530
202530
202530
202530
202530
202530
202530
202530
202530

Reason
DOE budget limitation FY25
DOE budget limitation FY25
DOE budget limitation FY25
DOE budget limitation FY25
DOE budget limitation FY25
DOE budget limitation FY25
DOE budget limitation FY25
DOE budget limitation FY25
DOE budget limitation FY25
DOE budget limitation FY25
DOE budget limitation FY25
DOE budget limitation FY25
DOE budget limitation FY25
DOE budget limitation FY25
DOE budget limitation FY25
DOE budget limitation FY25
DOE budget limitation FY25
DOE budget limitation FY25
DOE budget limitation FY25
DOE budget limitation FY25
DOE budget limitation FY25

122



PROPERTY DISPOSAL

(Complete and route to Vice President, Finance/CFO)

Proposed by Stephanie Roy
Title Manager, Business Operations

Exhibit L

@

s

STATE COLLEGE OF FLORIDA
¢ SARASOTA COUNTILS

MANATEE A

Date:_12/1/2025

Model Name Asset ID Cost Purchase Re.ason for Mgthod for
Date Disposal Disposal
AMX Precis LT Matrix Switcher 29213 $1,481.11 05/26/2010 Obsolete E-Scrap
Crestron Processor 29214 $1,737.46 05/26/2010 Obsolete E-Scrap
Crestron Touch Panel 29215 $1,674.79 05/26/2010 Obsolete E-Scrap
Elmo Document Camera 26469 $2,548.78 11/09/2005 Obsolete E-Scrap
Elmo Document Camera 27457 $1,726.67 06/23/2008 Obsolete E-Scrap
Extron Six Input Switcher Amplifier 25725 $1,091.46 02/28/2005 Obsolete E-Scrap
iMac, Mid 2017, 21.5"i516GB 256GB SSD 36832 $1,229.00 07/27/2021 Obsolete E-Scrap
iMac, Mid 2017, 21.5" i5 16GB 256GB SSD 36833 $1,229.00 07/27/2021 Obsolete E-Scrap
iMac, Mid 2017, 21.5"i5 16GB 256GB SSD 36834 $1,229.00 07/27/2021 Obsolete E-Scrap
iMac, Mid 2017, 21.5"i5 16GB 256GB SSD 36835 $1,229.00 07/27/2021 Obsolete E-Scrap
iMac, Mid 2017, 21.5"i5 16GB 256GB SSD 36836 $1,229.00 07/27/2021 Obsolete E-Scrap
iMac, Mid 2017, 21.5"i5 16GB 256GB SSD 36837 $1,229.00 07/27/2021 Obsolete E-Scrap
iMac, Mid 2017, 21.5"i5 16GB 256GB SSD 36838 $1,229.00 07/27/2021 Obsolete E-Scrap
iMac, Mid 2017, 21.5"i5 16GB 256GB SSD 36839 $1,229.00 07/27/2021 Obsolete E-Scrap
iMac, Mid 2017, 21.5"i5 16GB 256GB SSD 36840 $1,229.00 07/27/2021 Obsolete E-Scrap
iMac, Mid 2017, 21.5"i516GB 256GB SSD 36842 $1,229.00 07/27/2021 Obsolete E-Scrap
iMac, Mid 2017, 21.5"i5 16GB 256GB SSD 36843 $1,229.00 07/27/2021 Obsolete E-Scrap
iMac, Mid 2017, 21.5"i5 16GB 256GB SSD 36844 $1,229.00 07/27/2021 Obsolete E-Scrap
iMac, Mid 2017, 21.5"i5 16GB 256GB SSD 36845 $1,229.00 07/27/2021 Obsolete E-Scrap
iMac, Mid 2017, 21.5"i5 16GB 256GB SSD 36846 $1,229.00 07/27/2021 Obsolete E-Scrap
iMac, Mid 2017, 21.5"i5 16GB 256GB SSD 36847 $1,229.00 07/27/2021 Obsolete E-Scrap
iMac, Mid 2017, 21.5"i5 16GB 256GB SSD 36848 $1,229.00 07/27/2021 Obsolete E-Scrap
iMac, Mid 2017, 21.5"i5 16GB 256GB SSD 36849 $1,229.00 07/27/2021 Obsolete E-Scrap
iMac, Mid 2017, 21.5"i5 16GB 256GB SSD 36850 $1,229.00 07/27/2021 Obsolete E-Scrap
iPad, 4th Gen, 9.7" Wi-Fi 16GB, Black 31073 $429.00 03/24/2014 Obsolete E-Scrap
iPad, 7th Gen, 10.2" Wi-Fi 32GB, Gold 35126 $259.99 01/13/2020 Obsolete E-Scrap
iPad, 9th Gen, 10.2" Wi-Fi 64GB 37959 $299.00 01/31/2023 Obsolete E-Scrap
iPad, 9th Gen, 10.2" Wi-Fi 64GB 37985 $299.00 01/31/2023 Obsolete E-Scrap
Krug 36" x 24" x 68" AV Cabinet 24433 $1,897.92 06/29/2002 Obsolete E-Scrap
Latitude 3410 37885 $0.00 10/11/2022 Obsolete E-Scrap
Latitude 3410 37886 $0.00 10/11/2022 Obsolete E-Scrap
Latitude 3410 37887 $0.00 10/11/2022 Obsolete E-Scrap
Latitude 3410 37888 $0.00 10/11/2022 Obsolete E-Scrap
Latitude 3410 BTX 35593 $475.00 01/19/2021 Obsolete E-Scrap
Latitude 3410 BTX 35594 $475.00 01/19/2021 Obsolete E-Scrap
Latitude 3410 BTX 35596 $475.00 01/19/2021 Obsolete E-Scrap
Latitude 3410 BTX 35598 $475.00 01/19/2021 Obsolete E-Scrap
Latitude 5400 XCTO 35158 $1,150.00 02/24/2020 Obsolete E-Scrap
Latitude 5400 XCTO 35514 $1,041.30 11/05/2020 Obsolete E-Scrap
Latitude 5400 XCTO 35516 $1,041.30 11/05/2020 Obsolete E-Scrap
Latitude 5400 XCTO 35519 $1,041.30 11/05/2020 Obsolete E-Scrap
Latitude 5420 XCTO 36509 $1,090.00 06/22/2021 Obsolete E-Scrap
Latitude 5420 XCTO 36522 $1,090.00 06/22/2021 Obsolete E-Scrap
Latitude 5420 XCTO 36704 $1,090.00 06/22/2021 Obsolete E-Scrap
Latitude 5420 XCTO 36708 $1,090.00 06/22/2021 Obsolete E-Scrap
Latitude 5420 XCTO 36712 $1,090.00 06/22/2021 Obsolete E-Scrap
Latitude 5420 XCTO 36723 $1,090.00 06/22/2021 Obsolete E.Sgrap

https://scfcloud-my.sharepoint.com/personal/roys_scf edu/Documents/Documents/BOT/SCF Blank BOT Disposal Request November 11.14.2025.docx

TZ0



https://scfcloud-my.sharepoint.com/personal/roys_scf_edu/Documents/Documents/BOT/SCF

PROPERTY DISPOSAL

(Complete and route to Vice President, Finance/CFO)

Latitude 5420 XCTO 36729 $1,090.00 06/22/2021 Obsolete E-Scrap
Latitude 5420 XCTO 36741 $1,090.00 06/22/2021 Obsolete E-Scrap
Latitude 5420 XCTO 36780 $1,090.00 06/17/2021 Obsolete E-Scrap
Latitude 5420 XCTO 36786 $1,090.00 06/17/2021 Obsolete E-Scrap
Latitude 5420 XCTO 36789 $1,090.00 06/17/2021 Obsolete E-Scrap
Latitude 5430 BTX 37873 $1,201.00 10/05/2022 Obsolete E-Scrap
Latitude 5430 BTX 38107 $1,218.00 02/23/2023 Obsolete E-Scrap
Latitude 5510 BTX 35353 $1,350.00 07/30/2020 Obsolete E-Scrap
Latitude 5510 BTX 35354 $1,350.00 07/30/2020 Obsolete E-Scrap
Latitude 5510 BTX 35453 $1,350.00 08/20/2020 Obsolete E-Scrap
Latitude 5510 XCTO 35539 $1,350.00 10/12/2020 Obsolete E-Scrap
Latitude 5510 XCTO 35540 $1,350.00 10/12/2020 Obsolete E-Scrap
Latitude 5510 XCTO 35548 $1,350.00 10/12/2020 Obsolete E-Scrap
Latitude 5510 XCTO 35942 $1,380.29 04/09/2021 Obsolete E-Scrap
Latitude 5510 XCTO 36115 $1,378.41 05/10/2021 Obsolete E-Scrap
Latitude 5510 XCTO 36118 $1,362.42 05/18/2021 Obsolete E-Scrap
Latitude 5510 XCTO 36119 $1,378.41 05/19/2021 Obsolete E-Scrap
Latitude 5510 XCTO 36120 $1,375.83 05/19/2021 Obsolete E-Scrap
Latitude 5511 MLK XCTO 36217 $2,265.64 06/04/2021 Obsolete E-Scrap
MacBook Pro, 2020, 13" 16GB 37168 $1,699.00 09/30/2021 Obsolete E-Scrap
OptiPlex 3060 Micro BTX 34014 $550.00 09/14/2018 Obsolete E-Scrap
OptiPlex 3060 Micro BTX 34015 $550.00 09/14/2018 Obsolete E-Scrap
OptiPlex 3060 Micro BTX 34016 $550.00 09/14/2018 Obsolete E-Scrap
OptiPlex 3060 Micro BTX 34017 $550.00 09/14/2018 Obsolete E-Scrap
OptiPlex 3060 Micro BTX 34018 $550.00 09/14/2018 Obsolete E-Scrap
OptiPlex 3060 Micro BTX 34019 $550.00 09/14/2018 Obsolete E-Scrap
OptiPlex 3060 Micro BTX 34020 $550.00 09/14/2018 Obsolete E-Scrap
OptiPlex 3060 Micro BTX 34021 $550.00 09/14/2018 Obsolete E-Scrap
OptiPlex 3060 Micro BTX 34023 $550.00 09/14/2018 Obsolete E-Scrap
OptiPlex 3060 Micro BTX 34024 $550.00 09/14/2018 Obsolete E-Scrap
OptiPlex 3060 Micro BTX 34025 $550.00 09/14/2018 Obsolete E-Scrap
OptiPlex 3060 Micro BTX 34026 $550.00 09/14/2018 Obsolete E-Scrap
OptiPlex 3060 Micro BTX 34027 $550.00 09/14/2018 Obsolete E-Scrap
OptiPlex 3060 Micro BTX 34028 $550.00 09/14/2018 Obsolete E-Scrap
OptiPlex 3060 Micro BTX 34029 $550.00 09/14/2018 Obsolete E-Scrap
OptiPlex 3070 Micro BTX 35202 $602.65 04/03/2020 Obsolete E-Scrap
OptiPlex 3080 Micro XCTO 36424 $725.00 06/22/2021 Obsolete E-Scrap
OptiPlex 5040 Mini XCTO 32946 $1,147.66 04/28/2017 Obsolete E-Scrap
OptiPlex 5060 Mini XCTO 34213 $933.20 04/08/2019 Obsolete E-Scrap
OptiPlex 5060 Mini XCTO 34328 $900.00 05/03/2019 Obsolete E-Scrap
OptiPlex 5060 Mini XCTO 34344 $900.00 05/03/2019 Obsolete E-Scrap
OptiPlex 5060 Mini XCTO 34351 $900.00 05/03/2019 Obsolete E-Scrap
OptiPlex 5060 Mini XCTO 34361 $900.00 05/03/2019 Obsolete E-Scrap
OptiPlex 5060 Mini XCTO 34362 $900.00 05/03/2019 Obsolete E-Scrap
OptiPlex 5060 Mini XCTO 34365 $900.00 05/03/2019 Obsolete E-Scrap
OptiPlex 5060 Mini XCTO 34366 $900.00 05/03/2019 Obsolete E-Scrap
OptiPlex 5060 Mini XCTO 34367 $900.00 05/03/2019 Obsolete E-Scrap
OptiPlex 5060 Mini XCTO 34384 $900.00 05/03/2019 Obsolete E-Scrap
OptiPlex 5060 Mini XCTO 35020 $850.00 12/02/2019 Obsolete E-Scrap
OptiPlex 5060 Mini XCTO 35023 $850.00 12/02/2019 Obsolete E-Scrap
OptiPlex 5060 Mini XCTO 35030 $850.00 12/02/2019 Obsolete E-Scrap
OptiPlex 5060 Mini XCTO 35134 $850.00 12/17/2019 Obsolete E-Scrap
OptiPlex 5070 Tower XCTO 35164 $975.00 02/24/2020 Obsolete E-Scrap
OptiPlex 5070 Tower XCTO 35181 $975.00 03/09/2020 Obsolete E-Scrap
OptiPlex 5070 Tower XCTO 35187 $975.00 03/09/2020 Obsolete E-Scrap
OptiPlex 5070 Tower XCTO 35189 $975.00 03/09/2020 Obsolete E-Scrap
OptiPlex 5070 Tower XCTO 35195 $975.00 03/09/2020 Obsolete E-Scrap
OptiPlex 5070 Tower XCTO 35197 $975.00 03/09/2020 Obsolete E-Scrap
Samsung Digital Presenter 29212 $2,423.84 05/26/2010 Obsolete E-Scrap
Smart Widescreen Sympodium 29211 $3,011.54 05/26/2010 Obsolete E-Scrap

124
https://scfcloud-my.sharepoint.com/personal/roys_scf edu/Documents/Documents/BOT/SCF Blank BOT Disposal Request November 11.14.2025.docx


https://scfcloud-my.sharepoint.com/personal/roys_scf_edu/Documents/Documents/BOT/SCF

PROPERTY DISPOSAL

(Complete and route to Vice President, Finance/CFO)

Surface Laptop 4, 15"i7 512GB 37668 $1,747.99 06/13/2022 Obsolete E-Scrap
Surface Laptop 4, 15"i7 512GB 37669 $1,747.99 06/13/2022 Obsolete E-Scrap
Surface Pro 7, i5 128GB 35572 $919.99 12/10/2020 Obsolete E-Scrap
XPS 139310 35946 $1,606.36 04/13/2021 Obsolete E-Scrap
XPS 139310 37076 $1,410.00 07/16/2021 Obsolete E-Scrap
XPS 159500 36985 $1,445.00 06/22/2021 Obsolete E-Scrap
XPS 159500 36986 $1,445.00 06/22/2021 Obsolete E-Scrap
XPS 179700 36318 $2,093.86 06/22/2021 Obsolete E-Scrap
. 11/14/2025
Stephanie Roy
Proposer Date
%WJQM 11/14/25
Business Services Administrator Date
11/14/25
J f ice (Nov 14, 2025 15:19:39 EST)
Signature of Vice President, Finance/CFO Date
125

https://scfcloud-my.sharepoint.com/personal/roys_scf edu/Documents/Documents/BOT/SCF Blank BOT Disposal Request November 11.14.2025.docx



https://scfcloud-my.sharepoint.com/personal/roys_scf_edu/Documents/Documents/BOT/SCF

Exhibit M

126

- - 060‘TLO‘T8 |elol
uo11I3I3S INID pue I3y puewsaq 43y10 ‘0J3d 5202/0€/6 | 000°006'9T Suip|ing Jooyds ae133)|0) ystied
uo13123J3S INID pue IBY puewsaq 12410 ‘0d3d S702/0€/6 | 000°000°9T 3uip|ing |ooyds 31e183]|0) 3JIUBA
Suluueld ‘JuIe|A\l pa44asaq M35y |eude) S202/v2/9 | 000°0S¢ apessdn sjo1uo) IYAH M1
usisaq-u| Jule\ paslasaq 41D se0z/ve/9 | 000002 JuawWde|day waisAs olpny aseayl piemoH
usisaq-ul "Julely paslsjeq 'say |ende) ‘0)3d 21e189(|0) | ST0Z/v2/9 | 000°009 apes3dn DVAH |ooyds a1e133]|0) 6T Sulp|ing

udisaq 410 Sujuue|d ‘|enoaddy

uonesedald dIND “JUleIAl paliajaad an1asay |eyde) §202/v2/9 | 000°00S judwade|day jooy 9z Sulp|ing
uoneuedaid dIND "JulelN pailajaa an19s3Y [euded ¥eoz/ot/eT | 0000CT sapes3dn IVAH Ld/10 8¢ Bulpjing
§5320.d Ul Uo1INIISUO) Hiys uonejndod 43410 ‘0J3d €202/€2/S | S8€'S9T’6E judwdo|anaq T aseyd ysiiied
$100Q "1x3 00§ Suip|ing "JUlE\l Pa1I34RQ S3YVYD 18IS INT'8$ Teoz/8e/9 | 000'0LT'T 00S'6Z°LT s3ulp|ing ‘ddueudjuie|y paid4aQ Sulp|ing

uo139NJ3SU0) /UOIIINIISUO)-3id

a19|dwo) “JuIel\ pasajad yavs/aniasay [ende) vz0z/0t/zT | 000005 sapes3dn juswdinb3 pue wooy 31> M
919|dwo) “Jule\ paLid)aq an13s3Yy |eyde) ¥coz/01/2T | 000°'0SL sapessdn wnuoypny SuisinN 62 Sulpjing
a19|dwo) slieday anIasay |eyde) ¥202/62/0T | SOL‘'STI'Y slieday uolji|Al suesLny

SJuswwo)

uoneayisnr 199fodd

spund J0 a3inos

198png
panoisddy
pJeog s1eq

198png panoaddy
931sn.] jo pseog

p219|dwo)

S¢0¢-6-¢T
MNOSTS 1910 s3a3f04d |eyide) Jualin)
eplio|4 Jo 98a||0) 311




Meeting of the
DISTRICT BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF STATE COLLEGE OF FLORIDA, MANATEE-SARASOTA
December 9", 2025

AGENDA ITEM:

Budget Increase & Contract Approval for Building 26 Roof Replacement, Bradenton
Campus

RECOMMENDATION:
The College recommends approval by the Board of Trustees to increase the budget and

for the contract with The Garland Company Inc. to replace the roof on the Building 26
Science Building, Bradenton Campus.

STAFF ANALYSIS:

This project and a $500,000 budget were approved at the June 2025 Board of Trustee
meeting.

For this project the college intends to utilize The Garland Company Inc. through the
OMNIA Cooperative Purchasing Agreement. The Florida Department of Management
Services evaluated the Garland Company, Inc. Cooperative Purchasing Agreement
through OMNIA Partners, which consists of competitively procured Roofing Products and
Services. The Secretary of the Department of Management Services determined that the
provisions of the contract services are cost effective and the best value to the state.

The Garland Company Inc. received competitive bids from roofing subcontractors. The
subcontractor competitive bids were evaluated. The material unit pricing and quantities
were also evaluated and compared to the approved OMNIA Partners Cooperative
Purchasing Agreement. The total price of $507,892 received from The Garland Company
Inc. is found to be fair and reasonable. The total price is $7,892.00 over the approved
budget. This is due to additional repairs required to address areas of the roof with high
moisture content.

Therefore, requesting Board approval to increase the budget by $7,892.00 and contract
with The Garland Company Inc. for $507,892.00.

FISCAL IMPACT Yes

Funding Source: Capital Reserve
Will this action result in a Budget Amendment? Yes
If yes, indicate the dollar amount: $507,892.00

REQUESTED BY: Chris Wellman, VP, Operations

Exhibit N

127


https://507,892.00
https://507,892.00
https://7,892.00
https://7,892.00

Exhibit O

S9|111 91epdn

1uapIsald ays Jo Ajlioyany pue Ayjigisuodsay

LO'T-¥IXHS

uoIsinay

SIL

3Ny

SZ0Z ‘6 439IN3D3A NOILIV 1VNI4 04 S31NY

128



RULE

. - . . Number:
Subject Responsibility and Authority of the President 6HX14-1.07
Authority F.S. 1001.64, 1001.65 Date:
History 1/18/84, 12/15/99, 2/18/04, 9/17/08, 10/23/13, 10/30/2018, 12/13/2022
Seuree Prestdent

The Board of Trustees delegates to the President administrative authority over the College and
holds the President responsible for the efficient and lawful direction and operation of the College
under the rules adopted by the Board of Trustees.

The President is authorized to sign, on behalf of the Board, all agreements, contracts and other
documents reflecting action previously approved or authorized by the Board.

The President may delegate authority to the staff to perform administrative functions necessary to
the efficient operation of the College. The responsibility for the performance of these functions
shall remain with the President.

If the President is unable to perform his/her duties, in descending order, the Exeeutive—Viee
President—and—ProvestVice President, Academic Affairs;—Viee—President—ofFinanee
and—Administrative—ServieesVice President, Finance & Chief Financial Officer, Vice
President & General Counsel, Vice President, Student Services and -EnreHment
Management, or the Vice President, Institutional Effectiveness or the Vice President, Operations
will assume the President’s duties.

State College of Florida, Manatee-Sarasota

129


NICOLE HUGGINS
Cross-Out


RULE

. — . . Number:
Subject Responsibility and Authority of the President 6HX14-1.07
Authority F.S. 1001.64, 1001.65 Date:
History 1/18/84, 12/15/99, 2/18/04, 9/17/08, 10/23/13, 10/30/2018, 12/13/2022

The Board of Trustees delegates to the President administrative authority over the College and
holds the President responsible for the efficient and lawful direction and operation of the College
under the rules adopted by the Board of Trustees.

The President is authorized to sign, on behalf of the Board, all agreements, contracts and other
documents reflecting action previously approved or authorized by the Board.

The President may delegate authority to the staff to perform administrative functions necessary to
the efficient operation of the College. The responsibility for the performance of these functions
shall remain with the President.

If the President is unable to perform his/her duties, in descending order, the Vice
President, Academic Affairs, Vice President, Finance & Chief Financial Officer, Vice
President & General Counsel, Vice President, Student Services and Enrollment
Management, Vice President, Institutional Effectiveness or the Vice President, Operations
will assume the President’s duties.

State College of Florida, Manatee-Sarasota

130



131



	BoardPacketCover
	Agenda  20251209
	October 28 2025
	LLWD Classes - Fall 2025 (Amended Nov 2025)
	Template

	CDR Summary BOTDecember 2025
	HR Monthly_Board_Report_Oct_2025
	2025 state college of florida collegiate schools bradenton campus
	bradenton fs notes.pdf
	BRADENTON pg 1.pdf
	bradenton fs notes
	bradenton fs notes
	bradenton fs pg 9
	bradenton fs pg 10
	bradenton fs pg 11
	bradenton fs pg 12
	bradenton fs pg 13
	bradenton fs pg 14
	bradenton fs pg 15
	bradenton fs pg 16
	bradenton fs notes
	bradenton fs pg 29
	bradenton fs pg 30
	bradenton fs notes
	BRADENTON pg 32.pdf
	bradenton fs notes
	BRADENTON pg 34.pdf
	bradenton fs notes

	2025 state college of florida collegiate schools Venice
	venice fs notes.pdf
	venice pg 1.pdf
	venice fs notes
	venice fs.pdf
	vv.pdf
	vvv.pdf
	venice fs notes
	venice fs notes
	venice fs notes
	vvv
	vvv
	venice fs notes
	venice pg 333
	venice fs notes
	venice pg 33.pdf
	venice fs notes

	SCF.SCFCS  SCFCSV Articulation Agreement 2026-2784
	VP Finance_CFO Report_12.09.25
	FY26_03_Tab4a_BA1_11000 BA Detail (Resolution 08)
	FY26_03_Tab6a_BA3_TWO BA Detail (Resolution 09)
	FY26_03_Tab8a_BA5_SEVEN BA Detail (Resolution 10)
	FY26_03_Tab11_Pell Grant info
	BA Dual Enrollment Write Off
	FY26_12_Tab13a_BOT Agenda Item_DE Due from State Writeoffs.pdf
	Dual Enrollment Write Off.pdf

	Property Disposal
	Copy of Project List to be Included in the December 9 2025 BOT Package
	Building 26 Roof Replacement Garland Roofing Contract Approval Board Memo
	Rules for Final Action 12.09.2025
	Back Page Blank
	CFO Report 12.9.25_updated_11.24.25_Final.pdf
	VP Finance_CFO Report_12.09.25.pdf
	CFO Report 12.9.25.pdf
	FY26_03_Tab1b_LL_Two Year Revenue and Expense.pdf
	TAB 1b

	FY26_03_Tab2a_UL_Two Year Revenue and Expense.pdf
	TAB 2a

	FY26_03_Tab3a_SCFCS_BC_Two Year Revenue and Expense.pdf
	TAB 1b

	FY26_03_Tab3d_SCFCS_VC_Two Year Revenue and Expense.pdf
	TAB 1b

	Fund Balance and Purpose - 6.30.25.pdf

	CFO Report 12.9.25_updated_11.24.25.pdf


	Text2: December 9, 2025


